

5



prepared for

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

prepared by

TLG Services, Inc. Bridgewater, Connecticut

February 2002

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Page ii of xi

APPROVALS

Project Engineer

Project Manager

Geo

Dietz

M. Grif

13/02 Date

<u>2/13/62</u> Date

2/13/02

Date

William A. Cloutier

Carolyn G. Helner

fiths

Date

Technical Manager

Quality Assurance Manager

--

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Page iii of xi

TABLE OF CONTENTS

.

PAGE

.

EXE(CUTIV	E SUMMARY	vii
1.	INTR	ODUCTION	.1-1
	1.1	Objective of Study	.1-1
	1.2	Site Description	.]-1
	1.3	Regulatory Guidance	1-2
	2.00	1.3.1 Nuclear Waste Policy Act	1-4
		1.3.2 Low-Level Radioactive Waste Policy Amendments Act	1-6
		1.3.3 Other Regulations and Standards Applicable to	
		Decommissioning	1-7
		1.3.4 Radioactive Criteria for License Termination	1-7
2.	SAFS	STOR DECOMMISSIONING ACTIVITIES	2-1
	2.1	Period 2 – Safe Storage and Decommissioning Preparations	2-2
	2.2	Period 3 – Preparations	2-3
		2.2.1 Engineering and Planning	2-3
		2.2.2 Site Preparations	2-4
	2.3	Period 4 – Decommissioning Operations & License Termination	2-4
		2.3.1 System Removal – Wet Fuel	2-5
		2.3.2 Fuel Transfer	2-5
		2.3.3 System Removal – Dry Fuel (ISFSI)	2-5
		2.3.4 Building Demolition	2-7
		2.3.5 Final Site Survey – License Termination	2-8
	2.4	Period 5 – Site Restoration	2-8
	2.5	Post-Period 5 – ISFSI Operations and Demolition	2-8
3.	COS	r estimate	3-1
	3.1	Basis of Estimate	3-1
	3.2	Methodology	3-2
	3.3	Financial Components of the Cost Model	3-3
		3.3.1 Contingency	3-3
		3.3.2 Financial Risk	3-8
	3.4	Site Specific Considerations	3-9
		3.4.1 Spent Fuel Disposition	3 -9
		3.4.2 Reactor Vessel and Internal Components	-10

÷

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Page iv of xi

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

SECTION

PAGE

		3.4.3 Main Turbine and Condenser		
		3.4.4 Plant Systems		
		3.4.5 Humboldt Bay Unit 3 Facilities		
		3.4.6 Transportation Methods		
		3.4.7 Coordination with Units 1 and 2	3-15	
		3.4.8 Site Conditions Following Decommissioning	3-15	
	3.5	Assumptions	3-16	
		3.5.1 Estimating Basis	3-16	
		3.5.2 Labor Costs	3-16	
		3.5.3 General	3-17	
	3.6	Cost Estimate Summary	3-19	
		;		
4.	SCH	4-1		
	4.1	Schedule Estimate Assumptions	4-1	
	4.2	Project Schedule	4-2	
5	RAT	DIOACTIVE WASTE		
•••	5.1	General		
	52	Class A Waste and Recycling		
	5.3	Class B Waste		
	5.4	Class C Waste		
	5.5	Greater Than Class C Waste	5-2	
6.	RES	SULTS	6-1	
7.	REF	TERENCES	7-1	

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Page v of xi

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

SECTION

.

PAGE

TABLES

3.1a	Schedule of Expenditures	[.]
3.1b	Schedule of Expenditures, Excluding CPUC Disallowances	
5.1	Decommissioning Waste Disposal Summary	5-3
6.1	Summary of Decommissioning Cost Contributors	

FIGURES

1.1	Layout of the Nuclear Plant Site and Surrounding Area	
1.2	Schematic Diagram of the Vessel and Internals	1-10
1.3	Sectional View Through the Caisson	1-11
4.1	Decommissioning Timeline	4-3

APPENDICES

Α	Work Difficulty Factor AdjustmentsA	1-1
В	Unit Cost Factor DevelopmentB	3-1
C	Unit Cost Factor Listing (Representative of Power Block Structures Only)C	-1
D	Humboldt Bay 2006 SAFSTOR Decommissioning CostD)-1
E	Humboldt Bay 2006 SAFSTOR CPUC Cost Disallowances	
	Decommissioning CostE	-1
F	Humboldt Bay 2006 SAFSTOR Decommissioning ScheduleF	-1

.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Page vi of xi

REVISION LOG

Rev. No.	CRA No.	Date	Item Revised	Reason for Revision
0		02/13/02		Original Issue

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Page vii of xi

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TLG Services, Inc (TLG) has prepared a site-specific cost study for the 2006 SAFSTOR decommissioning of the Humboldt Bay Power Plant Unit 3 (HBPP3) for the Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E). This estimate includes a comprehensive cost and schedule estimate for completing the decommissioning of HBPP3 based on outlined work areas of the plant. Manpower levels and activity durations were developed and are reflected within the project schedule along with other associated site programs. The projected cost to decommission HBPP3. including a 21% contingency, is estimated to be approximately \$300.4 million (2002) dollars). The California Public Utility Commission has previously ruled that certain costs that were incurred after HBPP3 was permanently shutdown would not be included in rates for recovery of decommissioning costs. The portion of the above costs that have been identified by the (CPUC) as decommissioning disallowances is estimated at \$712,869. The major cost contributors to the overall decommissioning cost are labor, spent fuel storage and the disposition of waste generated in the decontamination and demolition of the unit. The estimate is based on several key assumptions. including regulatory requirements, estimating methodology. contingency requirements, low-level radioactive waste disposal availability, high-level radioactive waste disposal options, and site restoration requirements. A complete discussion of the assumptions used in this estimate is presented in Section 3.

A detailed breakdown of these major cost contributors to the decommissioning cost estimate is reported in Section 6 of this document. Schedules of annual expenditures are provided in Section 3, and detailed cost, waste volume, and man-hour schedules are provided in Appendix D. Costs are reported in 2002 dollars. Cash flows are based on schedule forecasts as of July 2001. The estimate includes the costs for storing the HBPP3 spent fuel until such time that the Department of Energy (DOE) can complete the transfer to an off-site facility.

Alternatives and Regulations

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) provided general decommissioning guidance in the rule adopted on June 27, 1988.¹ In this rule the NRC sets forth technical and financial criteria for decommissioning licensed nuclear facilities. The regulation addresses planning needs, timing, funding methods, and environmental review requirements for decommissioning. The rule also defined three

¹ U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Title 10, Parts 30, 40, 50, 51, 70 and 72 "General Requirements for Decommissioning Nuclear Facilities," Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Federal Register Volume 53, Number 123 (p 24018+), June 27, 1988.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Page viii of xi

decommissioning alternatives as being acceptable to the NRC — DECON, SAFSTOR and ENTOMB.

<u>DECON</u> was defined as "the alternative in which the equipment, structures, and portions of a facility and site containing radioactive contaminants are removed or decontaminated to a level that permits the property to be released for unrestricted use shortly after cessation of operations." 2

<u>SAFSTOR</u> was defined as "the alternative in which the nuclear facility is placed and maintained in a condition that allows the nuclear facility to be safely stored and subsequently decontaminated (deferred decontamination) to levels that permit release for unrestricted use." ³

<u>ENTOMB</u> was defined as "the alternative in which radioactive contaminants are encased in a structurally long-lived material, such as concrete; the entombed structure is appropriately maintained and continued surveillance is carried out until the radioactive material decays to a level permitting unrestricted release of the property."⁴

In 1996, the NRC published revisions to the general requirements for decommissioning nuclear power plants to clarify ambiguities and codify procedures and terminology as a means of enhancing efficiency and uniformity in the decommissioning process. The amendments allow for greater public participation and better define the transition process from operations to decommissioning. The costs and schedules presented in this estimate follow the general guidance and sequence in the amended regulations.

Methodology

The methodology used to develop the decommissioning cost estimates for HBPP3 follows the basic approach originally presented in the Guidelines.⁵ This reference describes a unit cost factor method for estimating decommissioning activity costs. The unit cost factors used in this study reflect site-specific costs, as well as the latest available information about worker productivity in decommissioning. The data obtained from the Shippingport Station Decommissioning Project, completed in 1989,

² Ibid. Page FR24022, Column 3.

s <u>Ibid.</u>

^{4 &}lt;u>Ibid.</u> Page FR24023, Column 2.

⁵ T.S. LaGuardia et al., "Guidelines for Producing Commercial Nuclear Power Plant Decommissioning Cost Estimates," AIF/NESP-036, May 1986.

as well as from TLG's involvement in the decommissioning planning and engineering for the Shoreham, Yankee Rowe, Trojan, Rancho Seco, Pathfinder, and Cintichem reactor facilities, is reflected within this estimate.

An activity duration critical path is used to determine the total decommissioning program schedule required for calculating the carrying costs which include program management, administration, field engineering, equipment rental, quality assurance, and security. This systematic approach for assembling decommissioning estimates has ensured a high degree of confidence in the reliability of the resulting costs.

This study assumes that PG&E's primary contractor is already experienced in the techniques and technology of nuclear power plant decommissioning, and therefore performs all work (both field activities and project management) in an optimally efficient manner. Therefore, this study does not attempt to quantify any cost impact for any increase in efficiency from experience gained in decommissioning other plants in the past.

Contingency

Consistent with industry practice, contingencies are applied to the decontamination and dismantling costs developed as, "specific provision for unforeseeable elements of cost within the defined project scope, particularly important where previous experience relating estimates and actual costs has shown that unforeseeable events which will increase costs are likely to occur."⁶ The cost elements in this estimate are based on ideal conditions; therefore, the types of unforeseeable events that are almost certain to occur in decommissioning, based on industry experience, are addressed through a percentage contingency applied on a line-item basis. This contingency factor is a nearly universal element in all large-scale construction and demolition projects. It should be noted that contingency, as used in this estimate, does not account for price escalation and inflation in the cost of decommissioning during the decommissioning period.

The use and role of contingency within decommissioning estimates is not a safety factor issue. Safety factors provide additional security and address situations that may never occur. Contingency funds, by contrast, are expected to be fully expended throughout the program. Application of contingency on a line-item basis is necessary to provide assurance that sufficient funding will be available to accomplish the intended tasks.

⁶

Project and Cost Engineers' Handbook, Second Edition, American Association of Cost Engineers, Marcel Dekker, Inc., New York, New York, p. 239.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Page x of xi

Low-Level Radioactive Waste Disposal

The contaminated and activated material removed in the decontamination and dismantling of a commercial nuclear reactor is classified as low-level radioactive waste, although not all of the material is suitable for "shallow-land" disposal. Much of the contaminated material generated in dismantling the plant is routed off-site to waste recovery vendors for processing, decontamination and volume reduction.

With the passage of the "Low-Level Radioactive Waste Disposal Act" in 1980, and its Amendments of 1985, the states became ultimately responsible for the disposition of low-level radioactive waste generated within their own borders. However, at this time a regional facility is not available. There are 3 types of low-level radioactive waste acceptable for near surface disposal, Class A, B, and C. All require controlled disposal in a licensed disposal facility. These classes distinguish the degree of disposal requirements with A having the least and C the greatest requirements. For the purposes of this estimate, Class A low-level radioactive waste generated in the decontamination and dismantling of HBPP3, is assumed to be shipped outside the Southwest Compact to the Envirocare facility, in Clive, Utah. Class B and C low-level radioactive waste is designated for disposal at the future Southwest Compact disposal site or other nationally available Class B/C low-level disposal site neither of which currently exists. It is assumed for this estimate that one of these alternatives becomes available by 2005 to support decommissioning operations.

High-Level Waste

Congress passed the "Nuclear Waste Policy Act" in 1982, assigning the responsibility for disposal of spent nuclear fuel created by the commercial nuclear generating plants to the Department of Energy (DOE). This legislation also created a Nuclear Waste Fund to cover the cost of the program, which is funded by the sale of electricity from PG&E and an estimated equivalent for assemblies irradiated prior to April 1983. The target date for startup of the federal Waste Management System was originally 1998. However, after a series of delays, the DOE has no plans to accept any spent fuel from commercial U.S. reactors before the year 2010.

For purposes of this cost study, TLG has assumed that the high-level waste repository or some interim storage facility will be operational by 2010. Under the provisions of 10 CFR 50.54(bb), PG&E is responsible for the management of the irradiated nuclear fuel at the reactor until such time that possession of the fuel is transferred to the Secretary of Energy. As such, this estimate includes the continuing cost to store the fuel until the transfer can be completed.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Page xi of xi

Site Restoration

The efficient removal of the contaminated materials and verification that residual radionuclide concentrations are below the NRC guidelines will result in substantial damage to many of the site structures. Blasting, coring, drilling, scarification (surface removal), and the other decontamination activities will substantially damage power block structures, potentially weakening the footings and structural supports. Prompt demolition is clearly the most appropriate and cost-effective option.

All above-ground demolition debris is assumed to be transported and disposed of at a controlled disposal facility. Site structures not associated with Units 1 and 2 will be removed to a nominal depth of three feet below grade level. Below grade structures will be decontaminated and backfilled with clean fill. The site will then be graded and landscaped.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 1, Page 1 of 11

1. INTRODUCTION

TLG prepared this decommissioning cost estimate to provide Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) with sufficient information to prepare the financial planning documents for decommissioning, as required by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC). It is not a detailed engineering document, but a cost estimate prepared in advance of the detailed engineering planning required to carry out the decommissioning of the HBPP3.

1.1 OBJECTIVE OF STUDY

The objective of the study is to prepare a comprehensive estimate of the cost, a schedule of the associated activities, and an estimate of the volume of radioactive waste generated during decommissioning of HBPP3.

1.2 SITE DESCRIPTION

HBPP3 is located approximately four miles southwest of Eureka, California. The site consists of approximately 143 acres located on the mainland shore of Humboldt Bay. Figure 1.1 shows the layout of the site and the surrounding area. The adjacent generating units are fossil-fueled and are not considered in the scope of this study, except where noted.

The Nuclear Steam Supply System (NSSS) for HBPP3 consists of a single cycle, natural circulation, boiling water reactor and the associated control and support systems. Figure 1.2 shows a schematic diagram of the reactor pressure vessel and internal components. The generating unit has a rated core thermal power of 220 MWth (thermal) with a corresponding net electrical output of 65 MWe (electric).

The NSSS is located within the "primary containment structure." The primary containment is located mostly below grade and consists of a drywell vessel and a suppression chamber. Both the drywell and the suppression chamber area are located within a reinforced concrete caisson. The drywell vessel is centrally located in the caisson and serves as the primary containment vessel. The suppression chamber is constructed of reinforced concrete and lined with carbon steel plate. Six vent pipes connect the drywell to a common ring header at the top of the suppression chamber. Downcomers drop from the ring header and terminate below the normal water level of the suppression pool. As a system, the drywell, suppression chamber, and interconnecting piping were

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 1, Page 2 of 11

designed to reduce the pressure increase in the event of a local process system piping failure. Figure 1.3, a sectional view through the caisson, depicts this general arrangement and the associated concrete structure.

The turbine-generator system converts heat produced in the reactor to electrical energy. This system converts the thermal energy of steam produced in the reactor vessel into mechanical shaft power and then into electrical energy. The unit's turbine-generator consists of a tandem, compound, double flow, condensing turbine directly connected to a 13,800V, 3-phase, 60 cycle, hydrogen-cooled, synchronous generator. The turbine consists of a single flow high-pressure section and a double flow, low-pressure section with a crossover pipe connecting the two sections. The turbine is operated in a closed feedwater cycle whereby steam is condensed and the condensate/feedwater is returned to the reactor vessel. Heat rejected in the main condenser is removed by the Circulating Water System (CWS). The CWS delivers the water required to remove the heat load from the main condenser and other auxiliary equipment and returns it to the bay through the discharge pipes and a canal.

Commercial operation began in August of 1963 and continued until July of 1976, at which time the unit was shut down after approximately 13 years of operation to conduct seismic modifications. In 1983 PG&E announced the decision to decommission Unit 3. The plant has been maintained in NRC safestorage since that time. Active plant systems presently supporting the wet storage of the spent fuel will be retired once the fuel is transferred to an Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI). This activity is scheduled to be completed in 2006.

1.3 REGULATORY GUIDANCE .

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC or Commission) provided decommissioning guidance in the rule "General Requirements for Decommissioning Nuclear Facilities," (Ref. 1) published and adopted on June 27, 1988. This rule amended NRC regulations and established technical and financial criteria for decommissioning licensed nuclear facilities. The regulation addresses decommissioning planning needs, timing, funding methods, and environmental review requirements. The intent of the rule is to ensure that decommissioning will be accomplished in a safe and timely manner and that adequate licensee funds will be available. Subsequent to the rule, the NRC issued Regulatory Guide 1.159, "Assuring the Availability of Funds for Decommissioning Nuclear Reactors," (Ref. 2) which provided guidance to the licensees of nuclear facilities on methods acceptable to the NRC staff for

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 1, Page 3 of 11

complying with the requirements of the rule. The regulatory guide addresses the funding requirements and provides guidance on the content and form of the financial assurance mechanisms indicated in the rule amendments.

The rule defines the following three decommissioning alternatives as being acceptable to the NRC: DECON, SAFSTOR and ENTOMB.

<u>DECON</u> is defined by the rule as "the alternative in which the equipment, structures, and portions of a facility and site containing radioactive contaminants are removed or decontaminated to a level that permits the property to be released for unrestricted use shortly after cessation of operations."

<u>SAFSTOR</u> is defined as "the alternative in which the nuclear facility is placed and maintained in a condition that allows the nuclear facility to be safely stored and subsequently decontaminated (deferred decontamination) to levels that permit release for unrestricted use."

<u>ENTOMB</u> is defined as "the alternative in which radioactive contaminants are encased in a structurally long-lived material, such as concrete; the entombed structure is appropriately maintained and continued surveillance is carried out until the radioactive material decays to a level permitting unrestricted release of the property."

The rule places limits on the time allowed to complete the decommissioning process. For SAFSTOR, the process is restricted in overall duration to 60 years unless it can be shown that a longer duration is necessary to protect public health and safety. The guidelines for ENTOMB are similar, providing the NRC with both sufficient leverage and flexibility to ensure that these deferred options are only used in situations where it is reasonable and consistent with the definition of decommissioning. Consequently, with these restrictions, the SAFSTOR and ENTOMB options are no longer decommissioning alternatives in themselves, as neither terminates the license for the site. At the conclusion of a 60-year dormancy period (or longer for ENTOMB if the NRC approves such a case), the site would still require significant remediation to meet the definition of unrestricted release and license termination. The 60-year restriction has limited the practicality of the ENTOMB alternative at commercial reactors that generate significant amounts of long-lived radioactive material. However, the NRC is currently re-evaluating this option and the

technical requirements and regulatory actions that would be necessary for entombment to become a viable option.

When the decommissioning regulations were adopted in 1988, it was assumed that the majority of licensees would decommission at the end of the operating license life. Since that time, several licensees had permanently and prematurely ceased operations without having submitted a decommissioning plan. In addition, these licensees requested exemptions from certain operating requirements as being unnecessary once the reactor is defueled. Each case has been handled individually without clearly defined generic requirements. The NRC amended the decommissioning regulations in 1996 to clarify ambiguities and codify procedures and terminology as a means of enhancing efficiency and uniformity in the decommissioning process (Ref. 3). The new amendments allow for greater public participation and better define the transition process from operations to decommissioning.

Under the revised regulations, licensees will submit written certification to the NRC within 30 days after the decision is made to cease operations. Certification will also be required once fuel has been permanently removed from the reactor vessel. Submittal of these notices will entitle the licensee to a fee reduction and eliminate the obligation to follow certain requirements needed only during operation of the reactor. Within two years of submitting notice of permanent cessation of operations, the licensee is required to submit a Post-Shutdown Decommissioning Activities Report (PSDAR) to the NRC. This report describes the planned decommissioning activities, the associated sequence and schedule, and an estimate of expected costs. Prior to completing decommissioning, the licensee will be required to submit an application to the NRC to terminate the license, along with a license termination plan.

1.3.1 Nuclear Waste Policy Act

Congress passed the Nuclear Waste Policy Act in 1982 (Ref. 4), assigning the responsibility for disposal of spent nuclear fuel from the commercial generating plants to the Department of Energy (DOE). Two permanent disposal facilities were envisioned, as well as an interim facility. To recover the cost of permanent spent fuel disposal, this legislation created a Nuclear Waste Fund through which money was to be collected from the consumers of the electricity generated by commercial nuclear power plants. The target startup date of the federal Waste Management System was 1998.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 1, Page 5 of 11

After pursuing a national site selection process, the Act was amended in 1987 to designate Yucca Mountain, Nevada, as the only site to be evaluated for geologic disposal of high-level waste. Also in 1987, DOE announced a five-year delay in the opening date for the repository, from 1998 to 2003. Two years later, in 1989, an additional 7-year delay was announced, primarily due to problems in obtaining the required permits from the state of Nevada to perform the required characterization of the site. DOE has projected additional delays as a result of proposed Congressional reductions in appropriations for the program.

The NRC recently approved the DOE siting guidelines for the Yucca Mountain site. A recommendation by the Energy Secretary to use the Yucca Mountain site as the country's high-level waste burial site has been made. Even at this point in the review process, the ultimate fate of the site is still very questionable.

Utilities have responded to this impasse by initiating legal action and constructing supplemental storage as a means of maintaining necessary operating margins. On November 14, 1997, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit issued a decision in Northern States Power Company, et al., v. U.S. Department of Energy. In the decision, the Court reaffirmed its ruling in Indiana Michigan Power Company, et al v. U.S. Department of Energy that the DOE has an unconditional obligation to begin disposal of the utilities' spent nuclear fuel by January 31, 1998. Since the agency was not in default at the time the Northern States Power decision was issued, the court declined to prescribe "remedies" in the likely event the DOE failed to uphold its obligation. More recently, the U.S. Court of Federal Claims has ruled in favor of Yankee Atomic Power Company in its damage claim. However, even with the ruling, the DOE's position has remained unchanged. The agency continues to maintain that its delayed performance is unavoidable because it does not have an operational repository and does not have authority to provide storage in the interim. Consequently, the DOE has no plans to accept any spent fuel from commercial U.S. reactors before the year 2010.

For purposes of this cost study, TLG has assumed that the high-level waste repository or some interim storage facility will be operational by 2010. Under the provisions of 10 CFR 50.54(bb), PG&E is responsible for the management of the irradiated nuclear fuel at the reactor until such time that possession of the fuel is transferred to the Secretary of Energy.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 1, Page 6 of 11

As such, this estimate includes the continuing cost to store the fuel until the transfer can be completed.

For purposes of the decommissioning cost estimate, DOE is assumed to initiate spent fuel acceptance from HBPP3 starting in the year 2011. The rate of acceptance from HBPP3 is based upon the "Acceptance Priority Ranking & Annual Capacity Report" (Ref. 5) issued by the DOE's Office of Civilian Radioactive Waste Management. Based upon this publication and a 2011 start date, the transfer can be completed by the year 2015.

1.3.2 Low-Level Radioactive Waste Policy Amendments Act

Congress passed the "Low-Level Radioactive Disposal Act" in 1980, declaring the states as being ultimately responsible for the disposition of low-level radioactive waste generated within their own borders. The federal law encouraged the formation of regional groups or compacts to implement this objective safely, efficiently and economically, and set a target date of 1986. With little progress, the "Amendments Act" of 1985 (Ref. 6) extended the target date, with specific milestones and strong sanctions for non-compliance. However, more than 20 years later, no new regional sites have been developed, only one new commercial site has been placed in service, and even the most advanced program is far behind schedule.

With the passage of the "Low-Level Radioactive Waste Disposal Act" in 1980, and its Amendments of 1985, the states became ultimately responsible for the disposition of low-level radioactive waste generated within their own boarders. However, at this time, a regional facility is not available. There are 3 types of low-level radioactive waste acceptable for near surface disposal, Class A, B, and C. All require controlled disposal in a licensed disposal facility. These classes distinguish the degree of disposal requirements with A having the least and C the greatest requirements. For the purposes of this estimate, Class A lowlevel radioactive waste generated in the decontamination and dismantling of HBPP3, is assumed to be shipped outside the Southwest Compact to the Envirocare Facility, in Clive Utah. Class B and C lowlevel radioactive waste is designated for disposal at the future Southwest Compact disposal site or at another nationally available Class B/C lowlevel disposal site. While neither of these alternatives currently exists, it

is assumed for this estimate that one becomes available by 2005 to support decommissioning operations.

1.3.3 Other Regulations and Standards Applicable to Decommissioning

Title 10 Code of Federal Regulations Part 20 (10 CFR 20) titled, "Standards for Protection Against Radiation," regulates the receipt, possession, use, transfer, and disposal of licensed material by any licensee in such a manner that the total dose to an individual does not exceed the radiation protection standards. (According to 10 CFR 20.1001, the total dose to an individual includes doses from licensed and unlicensed radioactive material and from radiation sources other than background radiation.) In addition, the requirements of 10 CFR 20.1301 apply to NRC-licensed facilities during decommissioning and when the facility is operational.

10 CFR 50 Appendix I provides numerical guidance for keeping radioactive materials in liquid and gaseous effluents released to unrestricted areas ALARA, "As Low As Reasonably Achievable" during normal operations of a nuclear power reactor.

1.3.4 Radioactive Criteria for License Termination

In 1997, 10 CFR 20, Subpart E, "Radiological Criteria for License Termination" (Ref. 7) was published. This subpart provides radiological criteria for releasing a facility for unrestricted use. The regulation provides that the site can be released for unrestricted use if radioactivity levels are such that the average member of a critical group would not receive a Total Effective Dose Equivalent (TEDE) in excess of 25 millirem per year, and provided residual radioactivity has been reduced to levels that are ALARA.

In December 1997 the NRC, in cooperation with the EPA, DOE, and DOD issued the "Multi-Agency Radiation Survey and Site Investigation Manual" (MARSSIM) as NUREG -1575. This document provides information on planning, conducting, evaluating and documenting radiological surveys for demonstrating compliance with dose or risk-based regulations and standards. The NRC is using this manual as its primary standard for reviewing License Termination Plans. It should be noted that the NRC and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) differ on the amount of residual radioactivity considered acceptable after site remediation. The EPA has two limits that apply to radioactive materials. An EPA limit of 15 millirem per year is derived from criteria established by the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA or Superfund). An additional limit of 4 millirem per year, as defined in 40 CFR Part 141.16, is applied to drinking water.

The Congress has prohibited the EPA from spending funds to enforce cleanup requirements at sites under the jurisdiction of the NRC. However, the mandate is not legally binding and the possibility exists that a site, once released from its NRC license, could be subject to EPA regulation. Furthermore one state has established decommissioning site release limits that are below both the EPA and NRC limits.

{

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 1, Page 9 of 11

FIGURE 1.1

LAYOUT OF THE NUCLEAR PLANT SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA



Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 1, Page 10 of 11

FIGURE 1.2

SCHEMATIC DIAGRAM OF THE VESSEL AND INTERNALS



Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 1, Page 11 of 11

FIGURE 1.3

SECTIONAL VIEW THROUGH THE CAISSON



2. SAFSTOR DECOMMISSIONING ACTIVITIES

This section describes the activities associated with the decontamination and disassembly of the plant. Although detailed procedures for each activity identified are not provided, and the actual sequence of work may vary, the activity descriptions provide a basis not only for estimating, but also for understanding the expected scope of work, i.e., engineering and planning at the time of decommissioning.

The operation, shut down, and safe storage of the nuclear unit were described in detail in the decommissioning plan, "SAFSTOR Decommissioning Plan for the Humboldt Bay Power Plant, Unit No. 3" (Ref. 8). The activities and associated costs expended to date are therefore not repeated here. This study specifically addresses those activities and costs associated with the conclusion of the safe storage period and the subsequent decommissioning process.

The NRC defines SAFSTOR as "the alternative in which the nuclear facility is placed and maintained in a condition that allows the nuclear facility to be safely stored and subsequently decontaminated (deferred decontamination) to a level that permits release for unrestricted use." The decommissioning scenario evaluated in this study presumes that decommissioning activities will officially start in 2004, prior to transfer of spent fuel into dry storage.

The SAFSTOR decommissioning plan prepared by PG&E primarily addressed the activities and tasks related to preparing and maintaining the facility in safe storage. The document was originally intended to be revised (updated) prior to initiating decommissioning activities in the year 2004. Under the current NRC decommissioning requirements, the SAFSTOR Decommissioning Plan was considered to be both a Preliminary Shutdown Decommissioning Activities Report (PSDAR) and a Defueled Safety Analysis Report (DSAR). As a result, PG&E submitted a PSDAR in February 1998 that describes planned decommissioning activities and associated schedule and cost (Ref. 9). The SAFSTOR Decommissioning Plan was renamed the DSAR, and it contains system descriptions, administrative controls, and accident analysis. At lease two years prior to license termination, PG&E will submit a License Termination Plan.

The current NRC guidance (Reg. Guide 1.184 Decommissioning of Nuclear Power Reactors) defines decommissioning in three phases. The current plant status (safe storage) is addressed in Phase II. This phase is applicable to the dormancy phase of the deferred decommissioning alternatives. Phase III pertains to the activities involved in license termination.

The TLG cost estimating methodology subdivides the decommissioning project into periods, based upon major milestones in the project. Continuing Phase II expenses, denoted as Period 2 in this study, are not addressed in detail. Phase III, addressing the activities associated with license termination, is subdivided into Periods 3 and 4 in the cost estimate. Period 5 addresses those activities required for site restoration. Post-Period 5 covers ISFSI operations, fuel transfer to the DOE, and ISFSI demolition.

2.1 PERIOD 2 – SAFE STORAGE AND DECOMMISSIONING PREPARATIONS

Current site activities include: preventive and corrective maintenance on essential systems, general building maintenance, operation and maintenance of heating and ventilation equipment, routine radiological inspections of contaminated structures, maintenance of structural integrity, and monitoring of environmental and radiation conditions.

Since the two adjoining fossil units are operational and site resources can be shared, the staff dedicated to Unit 3 is minimal. Consequently, to support decommissioning operations, PG&E will have to secure additional resources, both internally from the corporate organization and through external contractors.

- Pre-decommissioning Period 2 activities are included in this study, one of which is the licensing and design of the ISFSI. The licensing and construction of this facility will allow the spent fuel currently stored in the plant's wet storage spent fuel pool to be relocated to a passive, dry storage system so that decommissioning of the components within the Refueling Building can proceed without restrictions caused by the storage of spent fuel in the storage pool.
- The following additional preparatory activities are scheduled during Period 2 prior to start of the formal decommissioning: abatement of asbestos, performance of a vessel and internals activation analysis, performance of a radiological characterization survey of work areas, major components, and structures (including the drywell), sampling of internal piping and primary shield cores, development of cost and work control program, development of detailed work plans and schedules, development of a radioactive waste processing and disposal plan, and the development of the engineering decommissioning licensing basis.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 2, Page 3 of 9

2.2 PERIOD 3 - PREPARATIONS

In anticipation of decommissioning, preparations are undertaken to provide a smooth transition from safe storage. The organization required to plan and manage the intended decommissioning activities is assumed to be assembled from available utility staff and outside resources, as required. For purposes of this study, a decommissioning operations contractor (DOC) is utilized to manage the decommissioning and to manage and perform the physical decommissioning activities and associated management functions. A radwaste contractor will be employed to manage the processing and disposal of decommissioning waste, including the recycling of equipment, components, and material and the disposal of all decommissioning waste, including concrete and steel structural debris, contaminated soil, and associated hazardous and mixed waste.

2.2.1 Engineering and Planning

Significant technical and engineering planning and evaluation must be performed in preparation for physical decommissioning activities. Technical requirements documents are prepared for systems. components, and structures during each phase of the decommissioning. These engineering requirements are then transferred into specific documents for the preparation of material and services contracts and for the preparation of detailed work plans and work authorization documents. Also, regulations require the preparation of a license termination plan. The plan is required at least two years prior to the The plan includes a site anticipated date of license termination. characterization, description of the remaining dismantling activities, plans for site remediation, procedures for the final radiation survey, designation of any reuse of the site, an updated cost estimate to complete the decommissioning, and resolution of environmental concerns. The NRC will make the plan available for public comment. Plan approval will be subject to conditions and limitations as deemed appropriate by the NRC. Much of the information needed in preparing this submittal will have been used to develop the detailed engineering plans and procedures needed to support Period 4 activities.

Other engineering and planning work activities performed during Period 3 include: evaluating alternatives for the removal of highly radioactive reactor vessel components, identifying specialty contractors, selecting the methodology and requirements for systems and structures

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 2, Page 4 of 9

decontamination, preparing procedures for radioactive material disposal, and designing and procuring specialty tooling.

2.2.2 <u>Site Preparations</u>

In preparation for the actual decommissioning, the following physical tasks are performed and included in the cost estimate:

- The design and licensing of the ISFSI facility
- Constructing and modifying site support and storage facilities, as required.
- Processing and disposal of residual liquid, solid, and mixed waste inventories.
- Procuring waste containers, including specialty containers for the disposition of highly activated and hazardous materials. The types of containers needed to support decommissioning operations include strong-tight steel boxes and drums, shielded transport casks, dry fuel storage liners, high integrity containers, intermodal containers, and shipping transportation trailers.
- Developing procedures for occupational exposure control, control and release of liquid and gaseous effluent, processing of radwaste including dry active waste (DAW), resins, filter media, metallic and non-metallic components generated in decommissioning, site security and emergency programs, hazardous waste identification and processing, and industrial safety.

2.3 PERIOD 4 - DECOMMISSIONING OPERATIONS & LICENSE TERMINATION

The decommissioning cost estimate has divided this period into sub-periods to assist in the development of cost elements and to better understand the work sequence and the overall duration of the work phase. The spent fuel storage location and storage methodology during Period 4, significantly affects how costs are estimated. Therefore, costs for system removal are split into costs for system removal before and after spent fuel transfer to the ISFSI. System and structure operational requirements with the fuel in the pool control the overall sequence and approach to the HBPP3 decommissioning.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 2, Page 5 of 9

2.3.1 System Removal – Wet Fuel

This phase includes: construction of temporary facilities and shielding, modification of existing storage facilities to support the dismantling activities, decontamination of selected systems and components, procurement of specialty tooling, and modifications to systems and structures to support fuel transfer and handling of the waste from reactor vessel and spent fuel pool removal.

The following is a general chronological list of the system and component removal activities performed during this period.

- Removal of major turbine components, e.g. generator, turbine and condenser.
- Removal of components and systems in the Turbine Building, including piping, pumps, heat exchangers and associated mechanical and electrical components.
- Removal of electrical control boards, distribution buses, and transformers.
- Removal of Hot Machine Shop equipment and piping.

2.3.2 Fuel Transfer

The following is a general chronological list of the system and component removal activities performed during this period:

- Transfer of spent fuel to ISFSI
- Removal of spent fuel racks and fuel pool cleanup

2.3.3 System Removal - Dry Fuel (ISFSI)

The following is a general chronological list of the system and component removal activities performed during this period:

• Removal of the reactor vessel closure head. The head may be a candidate for decontamination; however, for estimating purposes it is assumed to be disposed of as low-level radioactive waste.

Segmentation of the head may be desirable to increase packaging efficiency and minimize its disposal volume.

- Removal and segmenting of the steam dryer, core spray piping, feedwater sparger and chimney, as required, for transport. Component segmentation may be performed in the reactor vessel; however, relocation to the spent fuel pool'would allow greater control with respect to water clarity and provide greater flexibility in packaging, i.e., homogenization of the waste forms. Material meeting 10 CFR 61 Class C criteria or less may be routed for off-site disposal at a commercial shallow-land waste disposal facility.
- Disassembly/segmentation of remaining reactor internals, including the core shroud, core support assembly, control rod guide tube and other miscellaneous components. These operations will probably be confined to the reactor vessel due to the higher activation levels of the components.
- Segmentation/sectioning of the reactor vessel, placing segments into shielded containers. The operation is performed remotely, in-air, using a shielded work platform and a contamination control envelope. Sections are placed in liners and stored in the spent fuel pool. The liners are loaded into shielded transport casks for disposal at a commercial shallow-land waste disposal facility.
- Removal of control rod drive housings from reactor vessel bottom head and packaging for controlled disposal. The bottom head may be highly contaminated from the swarf generated from in-vessel segmentation activities. It may be advantageous to relocate the head to the spent fuel pool for additional processing and preparation for disposal. This will also significantly lower the working radiation levels within the drywell and allow disassembly work to proceed.
- Removal of systems and associated components as they become nonessential to the vessel removal operation, related decommissioning activities, or worker health and safety (ë.g., waste collection and processing systems, electrical and ventilation systems, etc.).
- Removal of steel drywell liner and the steel vent pipes connecting the drywell to the suppression chamber. Contaminated surfaces can be designated for decontamination while activated portions are packaged for direct disposal. This activity would also include the

removal of activated concrete from behind the drywell steel and the concrete floor slab at the bottom of caisson, and packaging the material for direct disposal.

- Decontamination and removal of the suppression chamber steel, Disposition as appropriate.
- Removal of contaminated equipment and material from the Radwaste Treatment and Refueling Buildings. Decontaminate the structures, e.g., scarifying concrete surfaces until residual levels of contamination are acceptable for unrestricted release.
- Decontamination of remaining contaminated site buildings and facilities. Package and dispose of all remaining low-level radioactive waste, and any remaining hazardous and toxic materials.
- Removal of remaining components, equipment, and plant services in support of the area release survey(s).
- Removal of contaminated soil and contaminated drain and catch basins. Remediation of the intake and discharge canals.

Components removed in the decontamination and dismantling of HBPP3 will be routed to an on-site central processing area. Material that has been preliminarily screened to be free of contamination will be shipped to an offsite processing facility where final release surveys will be conducted. Contaminated material will be characterized and segregated for off-site processing (disassembly, chemical cleaning, volume reduction, waste treatment, etc.) and/or packaged for controlled disposal at the designated low-level radioactive waste disposal facility.

2.3.4 <u>Building Demolition</u>

Buildings in the Restricted Area (RA) will be decontaminated as necessary to allow conventional demolition. Structures will be removed down to three feet below grade.

Demolition debris will be packaged, shipped, and disposed of at Envirocare. The waste will be packaged in intermodal containers and shipped by barge to a railhead in San Francisco or Portland for final rail shipment to Envirocare.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 2, Page 8 of 9

2.3.5 <u>Final Site Survey – License Termination</u>

Incorporated into the License Termination Plan, the Final Survey Plan details radiological surveys to be performed once the the decontamination activities are completed. The Final Site Survey will be performed in accordance with MARSSIM. This document delineates the statistical approaches to survey design and data interpretation acceptable to the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the NRC. Tt. also identifies state-of-the-art. commercially available. instrumentation and procedures for conducting radiological surveys.

Use of this guideline ensures that survey design and implementation are conducted in a manner that provides a high degree of confidence that NRC criteria are satisfied. Once the survey is complete, the results are provided to the NRC in a format that can be verified. The NRC then reviews and evaluates the information, mobilizes a team to perform an independent confirmation sample survey of radiological site conditions, and makes a determination on final termination of the license.

The NRC will terminate the license if it determines that the site remediation has been performed in accordance with the License Termination Plan and the Final Survey Plan, and that appropriate documentation has been presented to demonstrate that the facility is suitable for release. Once all applicable requirements are satisfied, the NRC can terminate the Part 50 license.

2.4 PERIOD 5 - SITE RESTORATION

Excavated areas will be backfilled to grade using clean fill. A small volume of clean asphalt paving will be available and used as fill. Site areas affected by the dismantling activities are cleaned and the plant area graded as required to prevent ponding and inhibit the refloating of subsurface materials.

2.5 POST-PERIOD 5 - ISFSI OPERATIONS AND DEMOLITION

Following the transfer of the spent fuel inventory from the Refueling Building, the dry storage facility will operate independently of the nuclear unit. The ISFSI will continue to operate until all spent fuel and greater than Class C (GTCC) material has been transferred to the DOE. This study assumes that the DOE will be able to complete the transfer of spent fuel from HBPP3 by the year 2015. At the conclusion of the transfer process, the ISFSI will be decommissioned. The storage modules are not assumed to be activated from the storage of fuel, due to the age of the fuel when placed and the relatively short residence time. Consequently, this estimate does not include the cost of any significant decontamination of the ISFSI facility. Confirmation of the radiological status will be obtained through surveys and sampling of the modules.

The Commission will terminate the ISFSI 10 CFR 72 license when it determines that site remediation has been performed in accordance with a license termination plan and the terminal radiation survey and associated documentation demonstrate that the structure is suitable for release. Once the requirements are satisfied, the NRC can terminate the license for the ISFSI.

The dry storage modules are then disposed of, the concrete loading ramps are removed, and the area graded and landscaped to conform to the surrounding environs.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 3, Page 1 of 21

3. COST ESTIMATE

A site-specific cost estimate was prepared for decommissioning HBPP3. The estimate accounts for the unique features of the site, including the nuclear boiler, electric power generating systems, structures, and supporting facilities. The basis of the estimate and the sources of information, methodology, site-specific considerations, assumptions, and total costs are described in this section.

3.1 BASIS OF ESTIMATE

The estimate was developed using work areas as the incremental unit. As part of the 1997 cost estimate, each accessible area was visually inspected and a physical inventory of each area was documented. Specific consideration included material accessibility and egress, radiological conditions, and physical limitations for staging work crews.

Drawings and other documentation were used to plan and schedule activities in high radiation areas and areas currently inaccessible due to the plant's configuration. The unit factors used in developing equipment and component removal costs were adjusted for the working conditions determined for each area. Adaptation of the unit factors was accomplished by the manipulation of the duration adjustment variables or "Work Difficulty Factors" (WDF's).

The waste stream is assumed to be transferred to an on-site radioactive waste processor for recycling and disposal. Class A low-level radioactive waste generated in the decontamination and dismantling of HBPP3 is assumed to be buried at the Envirocare facility in Clive, Utah. Class B and C low-level radioactive waste is assumed to be buried at the Southwest Compact's future disposal facility or nationally available equivalent.

Spent fuel is assumed to be relocated to an on-site ISFSI. This allows for decontamination and dismantling activities to proceed on the refueling building without the current constraint to maintain active spent fuel storage pool systems and services, as well as to eliminate any safety issues associated with dismantling activities in the vicinity of the pool.

HBPP3 above grade structures will be demolished using standard methods and all demolition debris will be shipped off site to Envirocare. Below grade structures will be decontaminated and left in place.

As the licensee, PG&E will oversee the decommissioning operations. The plant staff will be augmented with the resources necessary to ensure a safe and efficient operation. This organization will supervise the decontamination and dismantling of the nuclear unit. Oversight will continue in a reduced capacity during site restoration and beyond, as dictated by the management of the spent fuel.

3.2 METHODOLOGY

The methodology used to develop this cost estimate follows the basic approach originally presented in the AIF/NESP-036 study report, "Guidelines for Producing Commercial Nuclear Power Plant Decommissioning Cost Estimates," (Ref. 10) and the US DOE "Decommissioning Handbook" (Ref. 11). These references utilize a unit cost factor method for estimating decommissioning activity costs, which simplifies the estimating calculations. Unit cost factors for concrete removal (\$/cubic yard), steel removal (\$/ton), and cutting costs (\$/inch) were developed from the labor cost information provided by PG&E. The activity-dependent costs are estimated with the item quantities (cubic yards, tons, inches, etc.) developed from plant drawings and inventory documents.

The unit cost factors used in this study reflect site-specific costs as well as the latest available information about worker productivity in decommissioning. Lessons learned from the Shippingport Station Decommissioning Project, completed in 1989, the decommissioning of the Cintichem reactor, hot cells and associated facilities, completed in 1997, and from TLG's involvement in the decommissioning planning and engineering for the Big Rock Point, Maine Yankee, Shoreham, Yankee Rowe, Trojan, Rancho Seco, and Pathfinder nuclear units are reflected within this estimate.

The unit factor method provides a demonstrable basis for establishing reliable cost estimates. The detail available in the unit cost factors for activity time, labor (by craft), and equipment and consumable costs provide assurance that cost elements has not been omitted. These detailed unit cost factors, coupled with the plant-specific inventory of piping, components, and structures provide a high degree of confidence in the reliability of the cost estimates.

Work Difficulty Factors

WDF were assigned to each area, commensurate with the inefficiencies associated with working in confined hazardous environments. The ranges used for the WDFs are as follows:

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 3, Page 3 of 21

Access Factor	0% - 40%
Respirator Protection Factor	0% - 50%
Radiation/ALARA Factor	0% - 100%
Protective Clothing Factor	0% - 30%
Work Break Factor	8.33%
Alpha Adjustment Factor	0% - 50%

These factors and their associated range of values were developed in conjunction with the Atomic Industrial Forum's guideline. The factors (and their suggested application) are discussed in more detail in that publication. The WDF assigned to each work area is delineated in Appendix A.

An activity duration critical path was used to determine the total decommissioning program schedule. The program schedule is used to determine the period-dependent program management, costs for administration, field engineering, equipment rental, quality assurance, and security. The study used actual PG&E craft labor rates and adjusted them for the local region. Some of the costs for removal of radioactive components/ structures were based on information obtained from the "Building Construction Cost Data," published by R. S. Means (Ref. 12). Examples of unit cost factor development are presented in the AIF/NESP-036 study. Appendix B presents the detailed development of a typical site-specific unit cost factor. Appendix C provides the values contained within one set of factors developed for the HBPP3 analyses.

3.3 FINANCIAL COMPONENTS OF THE COST MODEL

TLG's cost model is comprised of a multitude of distinct cost line items, calculated using the unit cost factor methodology described in Section 3.2. Period-dependent and collateral costs are added to produce a comprehensive accounting of the identified expenditures.

A contingency cost is also included in the total estimated decommissioning cost. for HBPP3.

3.3.1 <u>Contingency</u>

Inherent in any cost estimate that does not rely on historical data is the inability to specify the precise source of costs imposed by factors such as tool breakage, accidents, illness, weather delays, labor stoppages, etc. Contingency fulfills this role in TLG's cost model. Contingency is added

to each line item to account for costs that are difficult or impossible to develop analytically. Such costs are historically inevitable over the duration of a job of this magnitude; therefore, this cost analysis includes monies to cover these types of expenses.

The activity- and period-dependent costs are combined to develop the total decommissioning costs. A contingency is then applied on a lineitem basis, using one or more of the contingency types listed in Chapter 13 of the AIF/NESP-036 Guidelines Study. This reference document also identifies the types of unforeseeable events that are likely to occur in decommissioning and provides guidelines for the application of contingency.

"Contingencies" are defined in the "Project and Cost Engineers' Handbook," (Ref. 13) as "specific provision for unforeseeable elements of cost within the defined project scope; particularly important where previous experience relating estimates and actual costs has shown that unforeseeable events which will increase costs are likely to occur." The cost elements in this estimate are based upon ideal conditions and maximum efficiency; therefore, consistent with industry practice, a contingency factor has been applied. It should be noted that contingency, as used in this estimate, does not account for price escalation and inflation in the cost of decommissioning over the program duration.

The use and role of contingency within decommissioning estimates is not a "safety factor issue." Safety factors provide additional security and address situations that may never occur. Contingency funds are expected to be fully expended throughout the program. They also provide assurance that sufficient funding is available to accomplish the intended tasks. An estimate without contingency, or from which contingency has been removed, can disrupt the orderly progression of events and jeopardize a successful conclusion to the decommissioning process.

The most technologically challenging task in decommissioning a nuclear generating unit will be the disposition of the reactor vessel and internal components, which have become highly radioactive after a lifetime of exposure to radiation produced in the core. The disposition of these highly radioactive components forms the basis for the critical path (schedule) for decommissioning operations. Cost and schedule are

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 3, Page 5 of 21

interdependent and any deviation in schedule may have an impact on cost for performing a specific activity.

Disposition of the reactor vessel internal components involves the underwater cutting of complex components that are highly radioactive. Costs are based upon optimum segmentation, handling, and packaging scenarios. The schedule is primarily dependent upon the turnaround time for the heavily shielded shipping casks, including preparation, loading, and decontamination of the containers for transport. The number of casks required is a function of the pieces generated in the segmentation activity, a value calculated on optimum performance of the tooling employed in cutting the various subassemblies. The risk and uncertainties associated with this task are that the expected optimization may not be achieved, resulting in delays and additional program costs. For this reason, contingency must be included to mitigate the consequences of the expected inefficiencies inherent in this complex activity, along with related concerns associated with specialty tooling modifications and repairs, field changes, discontinuities in the coordination of plant services, system failure, water clarity, lighting, computer-controlled cutting software corrections, etc. Experience in decommissioning other plants in the past has shown that many of these problem areas have occurred during and in support of the segmentation process. Contingency dollars are an integral part of the total cost to complete this task. Exclusion of this component puts at risk a successful completion of the intended tasks and, potentially, follow-on related activities.

The following list is a composite of some of the activities assembled from past decommissioning programs in which contingency dollars were needed to respond to, compensate for, and/or provide adequate funding of decontamination and dismantling tasks:

Incomplete or Changed Conditions:

• Unavailable/incomplete operational history - that led to a recontamination of a work area because a sealed cubicle (incorrectly identified as being non-contaminated) was breached without controls.
- Surface coatings covering contamination that, due to an incomplete characterization, required additional cost and time to remediate.
- Additional decontamination, controlled removal, and disposition of previously undetected (although at some sites, suspected) contamination due to access gained to formerly inaccessible areas and components.
- Unrecorded construction modifications, facility upgrades, maintenance, enhancements, etc., that precipitated scheduling delays, more costly removal scenarios, additional costs (e.g., for re-engineering, shoring, structural modifications), and compromised worker safety.

Adverse Working Conditions:

- Lower than expected productivity due to high temperature environments that resulted in a change in the working hours (shifting to cooler periods of the day) and additional manpower.
- Confined space, low-oxygen environments where supplied air was necessary and additional safety precautions that prolonged the time required to perform required tasks.

Maintenance, Repairs and Modifications

- Facility refurbishment required to support site operations, including those needed to provide new site services, as well as to maintain the integrity of existing structures.
- Damage control, repair, and maintenance from birds' nesting and fouling of equipment and controls.
- Building modification, i.e., re-supporting of floors to enhance loading capacity for heavily shielded casks.
- Roadway upgrades on site to handle heavier and wider loads; roadway rerouting, excavation, and reconstruction.
- Requests for additional safety margins by a vendor.

- Requests to analyze accident scenarios beyond those defined by the removal scenarios (requested by the NRC to comply with "total scope of regulation").
- Additional collection of site runoff and processing of such due to disturbance of natural site contours and drainage.
- Concrete coring for removal of embedments and internal conduit, piping, and other potentially contaminated material not originally identified as being contaminated.
- Modifications required to respond to higher than expected worker exposure, water clarity, water disassociation, and hydrogen generation from high temperature cutting operations.
- Additional waste containers needed to accommodate cutting particulates (fines), inefficient waste geometries, and excess material.

Labor

- Turnover of personnel, e.g., craft and health physics. Replacement of labor is costly, involving additional training, badging, medical exams, and associated processing procedures. Recruitment costs are incurred for more experienced personnel and can include relocation and living expense compensation.
- Additional personnel required to comply with NRC mandates and requests.
- Replacement of personnel due to non-qualification and/or incomplete certification (e.g., welders).

Schedule

• Schedule slippage due to a conflict in required resources, i.e., the licensee was forced into a delay until prior (non-licensee) commitments of outside resources were resolved.

• Rejection of material by NRC inspectors, requiring refabrication and causing program delays in activities required to be completed prior to decommissioning operations.

Weather

- Weather-related delays in the construction of facilities required to support site operations (with compensation for delayed mobilization made to vendor).
- Frozen crane hydraulics prior to a major lift.

The cost model incorporates considerations for items such as those described above, generating contingency dollars (at varying percentages of total line-item cost) with every activity.

3.3.2 Financial Risk

TLG believes that this estimate is the best available, under the constraints and conditions outlined in the assumptions (Section 3.5). However, in determining the extent of the financial liability faced by the owners of HBPP3, there are uncertainties other than the routine ones that contingency addresses. These additional uncertainties consist of such items as changes in work scope, pricing (e.g. burial costs), job performance, schedule increases caused by changes in plant conditions. variations in the cost of labor (both craft and staff), severance, and other variations that could conceivably, but not necessarily, occur. Consideration of such items may be necessary to address the question concerning how costly the decommissioning project could become, within a range of probabilities. TLG considers these types of costs under the broad term "financial risk." Financial risk is typically addressed through a probability analysis using a Monte Carlo-type simulation program. The output of such a simulation typically includes a curve and range of probabilities for various cost estimates.

Included within the category of financial risk are:

• Delays in approval of the decommissioning (or license termination) plan due to intervention, public participation in local community meetings, legal challenges, state and local hearings, etc.

- Changes in the project work scope from the baseline estimate, involving the discovery of unexpected levels of contaminants, contamination in places not previously expected, contaminated soil previously undiscovered (either radioactive or hazardous material contamination), variations in plant inventory or configuration not indicated by the as-built drawings.
- Regulatory changes, e.g., affecting worker health and safety, site release criteria, waste transportation, and disposal.
- Policy decisions altering federal and state commitments, e.g., in the ability to accommodate certain waste forms for disposition, or in the timetable for such.
- Pricing changes for basic inputs, such as labor, energy, materials, and burial. Some of these inputs may vary slightly, e.g., -10% to +20%; burial could vary from -50% to +200% or more.

TLG did not perform a risk analysis for this estimate and therefore this report does not include any additional costs to address the risks associated with changes in the base assumptions of the study.

3.4 SITE SPECIFIC CONSIDERATIONS

3.4.1 Spent Fuel Disposition

The estimate assumes that the ISFSI will commence operation in 2006. The proposed ISFSI transfer date will allow the facility decommissioning to proceed without constraints for spent fuel caretaking activities. The facility will have sufficient capacity to handle the inventory of 390 spent fuel assemblies currently in the spent fuel storage pool. The ISFSI design is for a multi-purpose (storage and transport) dry canister within a vertical multi-purpose steel cask. The ISFSI is also designed and sized to handle one container of greater than Class C (GTCC) waste that will be generated during the reactor vessel dismantling. The ISFSI will operate until 2015, the current projected date for the DOE to remove all spent fuel from the facility. Any delays in the transfer date to the DOE will increase the overall operations and maintenance cost. The ISFSI cost estimate includes the cost for the ISFSI canisters, the concrete storage facility, road to storage facility, all engineering, construction, and licensing costs, and the costs and cask handling. The ISFSI operational and maintenance costs include inspections and security.

3.4.2 <u>Reactor Vessel and Internal Components</u>

The reactor vessel and internal components will be segmented in place and transported for disposal in shielded transportation casks. Segmentation of the less activated components is performed in the spent fuel storage pool to the maximum extent practicable. The highly activated components can be disassembled in the vessel as long as water clarity is maintained. The vessel is segmented in place, using a mast-mounted cutter.

The dismantling of reactor internal components at HBPP3 will generate radioactive waste generally unsuitable for shallow land disposal (GTCC). Although the material is not classified as high-level waste, DOE has indicated it will accept title to this waste for disposal at the future high-level waste repository. However, the DOE has not yet established acceptance criteria or a disposition schedule for this material, and numerous questions remain as to the ultimate disposal cost and waste form requirements. As such, for purposes of this study, the GTCC waste has been packaged and disposed of as high-level waste, at a cost equivalent to that envisioned for the spent fuel.

Main steam and feedwater piping is cut from the reactor vessel once the water level in the vessel (used for personnel shielding during dismantling and cutting operations in and around the vessel) is dropped below the nozzles.

The estimate further assumes that the fuel failures that occurred released fission products at sufficiently low levels that the buildup of quantities of long-lived isotopes has been prevented from reaching levels exceeding those which permit the major NSSS components to be shipped under current DOT regulations and to be buried within the requirements of 10 CFR 61.

The cost to remove and dispose of 48 control rod blades is included in the estimate.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 3, Page 11 of 21

3.4.3 Main Turbine and Condenser

The main turbine is dismantled using conventional maintenance procedures. The generator, turbine rotors, and shafts are removed to a laydown area. The lower turbine casing is removed from its anchors by controlled demolition. The main condensers are also disassembled and moved to a laydown area. Each component is surveyed and designated for either decontamination, volume reduction, and conventional or controlled disposal.

The removal cost of the condenser and the turbine has been adjusted by revising the WDF to account for the presence of alpha contamination.

3.4.4 Plant Systems

Due to the high levels of alpha contamination, mechanical cutting is the primary method of removing mechanical and electrical components. This method will minimize the potential of alpha particle contamination and the remediation requirements associated with lead -based paint on the exterior piping surfaces.

The WDF and the unit cost factors associated with system removal activities in areas with known alpha contamination have been adjusted and increased by a factor of 1.5 to provide an additional allowance for the increased difficulty of performing work activities in areas containing alpha contamination.

3.4.5 Humboldt Bay Unit 3 Facilities

Typically surface contamination can be removed by scarification where the contamination is removed with the spalled or abraded concrete surface. This technique is most effective on smooth, unbroken surfaces. Over time, the concrete at Humboldt Bay has experienced cracking from the high seismic activity in the area providing pathways for contamination transport. In addition, the concrete surfaces were originally uncoated and were subject to additional contamination deposits due to failed fuel in early cycles. As such, the contamination has likely migrated to depths greater than effectively removed by surface scarification techniques. This condition was observed during the plant stack removal project where the vendor had difficulty in meeting the free-release criteria for the stack material, even after extensive surface decontamination. As a result of this expected plant condition and for the purposes of this estimate, structural material removed as part of the decommissioning project was assumed to be disposed of at a LLRW disposal facility. Although this same condition is expected to exist in below grade structures, due to the high water table and resulting cost to remove below grade structures, these structures will be decontaminated and surveyed in place. Decontaminating below-grade structures to free-release is expected to be more cost-effective than complete removal.

Significant alpha contamination exists within primary systems and as fixed contamination in the Refueling, Radwaste, and Turbine buildings. The extent of the alpha contamination will require additional radiological controls and will reduce the efficiency of component removal activities. These controls will include: additional resources to perform surveys and establish contamination controls, additional time to obtain, dry, and prepare for counting alpha samples, additional respiratory protection requirements and controls, additional time for the set up of localized control of the contamination and additional nonproductive time for personnel involved in removal activities due to the alpha contamination. Therefore, the worker inefficiency factors for building decontamination activities in specified work areas has been increased (compared to the 1997 study) by a factor of 1.05 to account for these limitations.

The caisson surrounding the reactor vessel and constituting the containment structure will remain in place. The caisson will not be able to be removed while the adjacent fossil-fueled units are still operational.

The additional resources and work activities during the decommissioning will necessitate additional facilities. This estimate provides for the following new facilities: radiation protection counting facility, craft entry facility, locker and sanitary facilities for project personnel, a radwaste packaging and container loading facility, temporary office facilities, and a temporary control room facility. An allowance has also been provided in the Period 3 costs for modification and upgrade of the Refuel Building crane. These upgrades are required prior to the start of decommissioning work in the building.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 3, Page 13 of 21

The HBPP site is physically small and members of the public can access within 100 feet of the current restricted area. As such, the Radwaste Process Facility will be moved closer to the center of the site to reduce potential members of the public dose.

The existing Solid Radwaste Storage Building located on the north side of Unit 3 will be converted into a combination radiation protection counting facility, radiation protection office area, and a new craft entry point. Modifications to this facility include counting room shielding, interior office space and furniture, radiation laboratory monitoring and measuring equipment, and installation of exit portal radiation monitors. The perimeter fence and in-plant security barriers will be moved as appropriate to conform to the Site Security Plan in force at the various stages of the project.

Before demolition of the turbine building can begin, the existing control room must be de-energized and an alternative control room will be erected to monitor radiation effluent and other permitted discharges. In addition the current count room facility must be moved prior to movement of the turbine generator.

A radwaste shipping and handling facility will be provided to support the radwaste removal and recycling contractor. A radioactive waste packaging area will be created in the lower level of the Turbine Building. This facility will rely on the existing mechanical, electrical, and other equipment that is currently available in the area. Also, a waste shipment loading area will be constructed. This facility will be a metal-sided building, (approximately 50 foot by 60 foot) with access for large moving and lifting equipment to support waste shipping operations.

Craft and technical office trailers and support facilities are provided for in the estimate, as is the installation of a sanitary pump lift station to support the additional project staff.

All buildings scheduled for demolition will be removed to a nominal depth of three feet below grade, with the decontaminated or noncontaminated sub grade foundations remaining in place. Holes will be drilled in each of the foundation basemats to allow for natural drainage. Building foundations will be backfilled with clean backfill (and a nominal volume of clean asphalt), and the site will be graded

and landscaped. All areas affected by dismantling activities will be cleaned up, covered with loam, and seeded.

A cost has been included for the survey of structures after decontamination and prior to the demolition and disposal of the debris. Partial decontamination and survey of the structure will allow demolition of the structure without the additional requirements imposed due to radioactive material monitoring and control.

Yard drainage piping including contaminated soils surrounding the drain system will be excavated and removed. The existing circulating water discharge piping will be abandoned in place.

The discharge canals and portions of the intake canal will be remediated. Contaminated material will be excavated and disposed of as Class A waste.

3.4.6 <u>Transportation Methods</u>

Class B and C low-level radioactive waste produced and destined for controlled disposal will be moved overland by truck or shielded van to the primary burial site (Southwest Compact site) assumed to be no more than 1,000 miles away. Class A waste (including waste from the reactor vessel segmentation) will be shipped by truck to the Envirocare burial site. Building demolition debris and waste soil will be shipped using intermodal containers via barge and then rail to Envirocare.

Recycling waste will be transported by the waste contractor to its recycling center. The cost of transportation of recycled waste is included in the bulk recycling rate of \$2 per pound.

Portions of the reactor vessel and internal components will be transported in accordance with 10 CFR 71, as Type B and C waste. It is conceivable that the reactor, due to its limited specific activity, could qualify as Low Specific Activity (LSA) II or III. However, the high radiation levels on the outer surface would require that additional shielding be incorporated with the packaging to attenuate the dose to levels acceptable for transport under 49 CFR 173 (Ref. 14). Contaminated piping, components, and structural steel other than the reactor vessel and internals, will qualify as LSA - I, II, or III or SCO-I, or II, as described in 49 CFR Part 173. The contaminated material will

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 3, Page 15 of 21

be packaged in Industrial Packages (IP I, II, or III) for transport unless demonstrated to qualify as their own shipping containers.

Shielded truck casks will be used to transport highly activated metal produced in the segmentation of the reactor vessel and internal components. Cask shipments may exceed 95,000 pounds due to the weight of the vessel segments(s), supplementary shielding, cask tiedowns and the tractor-trailer. The maximum curies per shipment assumed permissible is based upon the license limits of available shielded shipping casks. The number and curie content of vessel segments are selected to meet these limits. The number of cask shipments out of the Refueling Building is expected to average one every two weeks. Non-cask shipments will be limited to two per week.

An allowance has been provided in the estimate for the purchase of eight special trailer beds. State law restricts the size of the trucks on local roads. Since shortened truck beds are not readily available for rental, PG&E has decided to purchase the equipment.

3.4.7 <u>Coordination with Units 1 and 2</u>

This estimate includes the removal of the entire site drainage network. A portion of the excavated soil will require remediation and will be disposed of as radioactive waste. The essential portions of the yard drainage system that supports Units 1 or 2 will be replaced.

In accordance with NRC requirements, and based upon known radioactive contamination, radiological surveys of Units 1 and 2 will be conducted as part of the Final Site Survey. The surveys will be coordinated with any planned outages or maintenance for either unit.

3.4.8 Site Conditions Following Decommissioning

It is assumed that the Unit 3 structures and site facilities will be dismantled following their decontamination. Structures would be removed to a nominal depth of 3 feet below grade. The voids would be backfilled with clean debris and capped with soil. The site would then be graded to conform to the adjacent landscape. Vegetation would be established to inhibit erosion.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 3, Page 16 of 21

The canals would remain for use by the operating units; however, nonessential structures could be removed. The switchyard will remain in place, as well as the site access road.

3.5 ASSUMPTIONS

The following additional factors and conditions were used in developing the decommissioning cost estimate for HBPP3. Radwaste estimating assumptions are contained in Section 5.

3.5.1 Estimating Basis

The estimate is performed in accordance with the methodology described in the AIF/NESP-036 study. Decommissioning costs are reported in the year of projected expenditures; however, the values are reported in 2002 dollars for the current estimate. Costs are not inflated or escalated over the period of performance.

Plant drawings, equipment, and structural specifications, including construction details, were provided by PG&E. TLG personnel prepared the inventory of plant equipment.

3.5.2 Labor Costs

Although PG&E will oversee the decommissioning operations, this study assumes that PG&E hires a decommissioning operations contractor (DOC) to handle planning, engineering, procurement, field supervision, and labor. A separate waste disposal contractor will also be contracted to provide bulk one-stop recycling and disposal of decommissioning waste.

Utility staffing requirements will vary with the level of effort associated with the various phases of the project. Once the decommissioning program starts, only those staff positions necessary to support the decommissioning program are included. There are no costs reflected within the estimate for the transition of the maintenance organization to decommissioning, e.g., separation packages, re-training, severance, incentives, etc.

The craft labor required to decontaminate and dismantle the nuclear unit will be acquired through standard contracting practices. The current cost of labor from Diablo Canyon was adjusted for regional differences, escalated to 2002 dollars and used in the estimate. Costs for site administration, operations, construction and maintenance personnel are based upon current PG&E salary information. Engineering services for such items as writing activity specifications, detailed procedures, and work procedures are assumed to be provided by the DOC.

The WDF and unit cost factors for component removal and for selective building structural decontamination have been adjusted to account for the affects of alpha contamination. Mechanical cutting using saws and portable pipe cutters is the primary method of component removal used in the estimate.

3.5.3 General

The existing plant equipment inventory is obsolete and only suitable for scrap as deadweight quantities. No equipment is salvageable. Scrap generated during decommissioning is not recognized as having any value because (1) scrap value generally offsets scrap removal and processing costs and (2) scrap materials have a relatively low market value. Scrap processing and site removal costs are not included in the estimate.

Clean asbestos will be disposed in an approved landfill. Contaminated asbestos will be buried as radioactive waste.

PG&E will provide the electrical power for decommissioning. Current Humboldt Bay electricity rates are used.

PG&E will remove all items of furniture, tools, mobile equipment such as forklifts, trucks, bulldozers, other similar mobile equipment, and other such items of personal property owned by PG&E that will be easily removed without the use of special equipment at no cost or credit to the project.

Existing warehouses will remain for use by PG&E and its subcontractors.

The study follows the principles of ALARA through the use of work duration adjustment factors. These factors adjust the time and cost for performing tasks after consideration of factors such as use of protective clothing and respirators and the effect of indoctrination and mock-up training. These items lengthen a task's duration, which increase the costs and lengthen the overall schedule. ALARA planning is considered in the costs for engineering and planning, and in the development of activity specifications and detailed procedures.

Nuclear liability insurance provides coverage for off-site damage or injuries due to radiation exposure from equipment and material. Nuclear property insurance provides protection against direct physical damage to on-site property by a broad range of causes including, radioactive contamination, fires, floods, etc. This estimate includes the premium cost for both liability and property insurance. The premiums are adjusted to reflect the relative changes in risk during the various phases of decommissioning. Insurance is required until both the Part 50 and Part 72 licenses are terminated.

The perimeter fence and in-plant security barriers will be moved as appropriate to conform with the Security Plan in force at the various stages in the project. No additional security or Regulatory revisions have been included as a result of the events of 09/11/2001. A new craft entry point will be installed to support Unit 3 decommissioning without interfering with the remaining operating generating units. A new radiological protection counting room and storage facility will also be constructed to support the decommissioning. Additional survey equipment will be purchased to support the large radiological protection program and the Final Status Survey (FSS) effort.

The existing electrical switchyard will remain after decommissioning in support of the remaining site generating units and the utility's electrical transmission and distribution system.

Underground concrete pipe will be decontaminated and abandoned. Underground steel pipe will be removed, surveyed for contamination, removed from the site, and disposed of as clean scrap. Electrical manholes will be backfilled with suitable earthen material and abandoned.

It is assumed that all site vestiges are to be removed to a nominal depth of three feet below grade, with the decontaminated and noncontaminated sub grade foundations remaining in place. Holes will be

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 3, Page 19 of 21

drilled in each of the foundation basemats to allow for natural drainage. Building foundations will be backfilled with clean fill, and the site will be cleaned up, covered with loam, and seeded. The caisson encapsulating the reactor vessel compartment will be decontaminated and abandoned in place. Excavation and removal of the caisson is not practical without affecting the operation of the adjacent generating units.

Wherever shared process systems exist, between the fossil operations and Unit 3, the Unit 3 systems will be isolated from the remaining operational portions. Non-nuclear portions of these systems that contain residual contamination will be remediated and decontaminated as part of the dismantling of the operating unit unless the respective system is removed or replaced sooner.

No groundwater remediation is expected to be required. A nominal amount of mixed waste will be disposed of and 22,000 cubic feet of contaminated soil will require removal and disposal.

The remediation of the discharge canal requires the installation of a cofferdam. This will allow remediation of the canal without interruption of the operating units. Trap rock and sediment will be mechanically removed, trap rock will be washed to remove loose radioactive material. Contaminated rock and sediment will be packaged and buried. Recycled rock and new material will be replaced to return the canal to its original condition.

3.6 COST ESTIMATE SUMMARY

A summary of the decommissioning costs and annual expenditures is provided in the cash flow summary in Table 3.1a. Table 3.1b is a similar table of annual expenditures but omits those costs disallowed by the California Public Utility Commission (CPUC). Table 6.1 provides a breakdown of those same decommissioning costs into the components of decontamination, removal, packaging, etc. The costs were extracted from the detailed reports in Appendices D & E, which provide a detailed listing of activities and associated costs for the decommissioning scenario.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 3, Page 20 of 21

TABLE 3.1a

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES (2002 Dollars)¹

		Equipment &	Contractor			1
Year	PG&E Labor	Materials	Labor	Burial	Other	Yearly Totals
1996-2000	0	0	0	0	21,325,681	21,325,681
2001	0	0	0	0	286,626	286,626
2002	0	0	0	0	7,300,527	7,300,527
2003	0	0	0	0	1,189,667	1,189,667
2004	7,059,912	419,248	8,159,749	14,932	9,726,735	25,380,576
2005	14,213,432	3,410,413	16,603,978	6,308,413	13,390,891	53,927,127
2006	14,476,102	8,525,690	11,000,608	18,784,842	4,811,935	57,599,178
2007	13,591,464	8,525,690	10,273,829	18,784,842	4,683,067	55,858,893
2008	8,832,691	8,549,048	9,118,902	18,836,308	4,684,443	50,021,392
2009	2,135,885	1,710,261	2,063,167	1,388,174	3,982,329	11,279,817
2010	739,628	38,558	739,628	0	1,243,481	2,761,295
2011	739,628	38,558	739,628	0	1,243,481	2,761,295
2012	741,655	38,663	741,655	0	1,246,888	2,768,860
2013	739,628	38,558	739,628	0	1,243,481	2,761,295
2014	739,628	38,558	739,628	0	1,243,481	2,761,295
2015	361,904	18,866	361,904	0	1,648,173	2,390,847
-	64,371,558	31,352,111	61,282,306	64,117,513	79,250,884	300,374,371

1 Columns may not add due to rounding

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 3, Page 21 of 21

TABLE 3.1b

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES, EXCLUDING CPUC DISALLOWANCES (2002 Dollars)¹

Year	PG&FLabor	Equipment & Materials	Contractor	Burial	Other	Yearty Totale
1006-2000	1002 2000	<u></u>	0		21 325 681	21 225 601
1990-2000	0	0	0	0	21,525,001	21,525,001
2001	0	0	U	U	280,020	286,626
2002	0	0	0	0	7,300,527	7,300,527
2003	0	0	0	0	1,189,667	1,189,667
2004	7,059,912	419,248	8,159,749	14,932	9,726,735	25,380,576
2005	14,213,432	3,390,798	16,427,441	6,253,924	13,390,891	53,676,486
2006	14,476,102	8,503,042	10,748,380	18,721,927	4,811,935	57,261,386
2007	13,591,464	8,525,690	10,273,829	18,784,842	4,683,067	55,858,893
2008	8,832,691	8,549,048	9,118,902	18,836,308	4,684,443	50,021,392
2009	2,135,885	1,606,564	2,042,428	1,388,174	3,982,329	11,155,380
2010	739,628	38,558	739,628	0	1,243,481	2,761,295
2011	739,628	38,558	739,628	0	1,243,481	2,761,295
2012	741,655	38,663	741,655	0	1,246,888	2,768,860
2013	739,628	38,558	739,628	· 0	1,243,481	2,761,295
2014	739,628	38,558	739,628	0	1,243,481	2,761,295
2015	361,904	18,866	361,904	0	1,648,173	2,390,847
	64,371,558	31,206,150	60,832,802	64,000,108	79,250,884	299,661,502

1 Columns may not add due to rounding

.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 4, Page 1 of 3

4. SCHEDULE ESTIMATE

The schedule for the decommissioning scenario considered in this study follows the sequence presented in the AIF/NESP-036 study, with minor changes to reflect recent experience and site-specific constraints. In addition, the scheduling has been revised to reflect the spent fuel management plan outlined for HBPP3.

Appendix F presents a schedule for the 2006 SAFSTOR decommissioning alternative and the supporting assumptions. The key activities listed in the schedule do not reflect a one-to-one correspondence with those activities in the Appendix D cost table, but reflect dividing some activities for clarity and combining others for convenience. The schedule was prepared using the "Microsoft Project for Windows" computer software (Ref. 15).

4.1 SCHEDULE ESTIMATE ASSUMPTIONS

The schedule estimate reflects the results of a precedence network developed for the site decommissioning activities, i.e., a PERT (Program Evaluation and Review Technique) software package. The schedule forecast is current as of July 2001. The following assumptions were made in the development of the decommissioning schedule:

- Spent fuel will be transferred to the ISFSI by 2006. Final decommissioning activities will not begin before that time.
- All work (except vessel and internals removal) is performed during an 8hour workday, 5 days per week, with no overtime.
- Vessel and internals removal activities are performed by using separate crews for different activities working on different shifts, with a corresponding backshift charge for the second shift.
- Multiple crews work parallel activities to the maximum extent possible, consistent with: optimum efficiency; adequate access for cutting, removal and laydown space; and the stringent safety measures necessary during demolition of heavy components and structures.
- For removal of plant systems by area, the areas with the longest removal durations on the critical path are considered to determine the duration.

4.2 **PROJECT SCHEDULE**

The period-dependent costs presented in the cost table in Appendix D are based upon the durations developed in the decommissioning project schedule. Durations are established between several milestones in each project period; these durations are used to establish a critical path for the entire project. In turn, the critical path duration for each period is used as the basis for determining the total costs for these period-dependent items.

A project timeline for the decommissioning alternative is included in this section as Figure 4.1.

	Period 8	Period 4	ł	1		Period 5	Post-Period 5	1
	Planning Activities Plant proparations Wet fuel storage	System docon, Pailod Puel Removal Duilding docon Termination surveys Transition to dry storage		Romovo RPV / fuel pool Building Decon Dry fuel storage	Final torm, survey Building demolition Dry fuel storage	Site restoration Dry fuel storage	DOE fuel shipments Dry fuel storage	
7/20	104 8/20)05	10/	2006 9/21	008 1/20	09 7/2	2009 1 Decommissionin Com	2/2015 E pieto

Key Assumptions:

- 1. Decommissioning commences on July of 2004.
- 2. Initiation of selected decommissioning planning and regulatory activities occurs prior to plant shutdown.
- Use of a Decommissioning Operations Contractor (DOC) in later Period 3 planning activities. 3.
- USDOE acceptance of spent fuel shipments is initiated in year 2010 and continues at the design rate of 4. spent fuel acceptance for the final repository location.
- GTCC wastes are removed from the plant site with the spent fuel. 5.

Critical Path Discussion:

Following removal of all spent fuel to long term dry storage, the decommissioning critical path is assumed to be sequentially composed of removing the reactor vessel and spent fuel pool, decontamination of buildings, performing final site termination surveys, site restoration, and final spent fuel acceptance and removal by the USDOE.

DECOMMISSIONING TIMELINE (not to scale)

Humboldt Bay Power Plant Unit 3 Decommissioning Cost Study 2006 SAFSTOR

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 5, Page 1 of 3

5. RADIOACTIVE WASTE

5.1 GENERAL

A waste contractor will be employed to manage the handling, shipping, recycling and processing of radwaste. Due to the physical site layout limitations, and consistent with current decommissioning trends, a "rip and ship" philosophy will be utilized.

A facility will be constructed to support the efficient handling of radwaste. Structural demolition debris will be loaded onto intermodal containers and shipped by barge to a railhead in San Francisco or Portland for final shipment to Envirocare. The estimate also assumes that PG&E will purchase eight shipping trailers that are sized to meet the overland road shipping limitations of local highways. The cost of the facility and the trailers are included in the estimate.

A summary of the HBPP3 waste volumes is provided in Table 5.1.

5.2 CLASS A WASTE AND RECYCLING

All metallic radioactive waste will be shipped by the waste contractor to its recycling center. The estimate assumes that the total PG&E all-inclusive cost for recycling metallic waste is \$2.00 per pound. This cost includes processing, shipping, and burial of contaminated waste. An additional \$1.00 per pound recycling surcharge has been applied to specific components that have elevated alpha contamination. These components include radwaste tanks, main condenser, primary system components, and Class A portions of the reactor pressure vessel.

Class A dry active waste (DAW) will be processed and buried by the radioactive waste vendor at a delivered cost of \$140 per cubic foot. This waste will be shipped by truck to Envirocare. Class A mixed waste will also be shipped and buried in the same manner.

All structural debris, including concrete, metal siding, and structural steel will be buried at a cost of \$140 per cubic foot. This waste will be loaded onto barges, shipped to San Francisco or Portland, and rail-shipped to Envirocare. The material will be loaded on intermodal containers prior to barge shipment. Intermodals utilized for barge and subsequent rail shipment can be loaded to a 67,200 pound capacity. This is the preferred shipping

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 5, Page 2 of 3

alternative due to the local road limitations and the lack of accessible rail access. Contaminated soil will be disposed of similar to structural debris.

5.3 CLASS B WASTE

Class B waste will be transferred to the on-site waste contractor and shipped using a shielded truck to the Southwest Compact burial site or equivalent. The inclusive cost for Class B waste disposal is in accordance with the Barnwell fee schedule for Non-Atlantic compact generators. Class B waste includes spent resin waste from system decontamination and portions of the vessel shell and cladding in the beltline region.

5.4 CLASS C WASTE

Class C waste will be transferred to the on-site waste contractor and shipped using a shielded truck to the Southwest Burial Compact site or equivalent. The inclusive cost for Class C waste disposal is in accordance with the Barnwell fee schedule for Non-Atlantic compact generators. Class C waste includes control rod blades and portions of the reactor vessel internals.

5.5 GREATER THAN CLASS C WASTE

One additional canister and overpack will be purchased for the transport and dry storage of the GTCC waste. The waste will be stored consistent with the spent fuel and the DOE will assume ownership and disposal responsibility at a cost similar to the cost for disposal of spent fuel. GTCC waste includes those portions of the reactor vessel internals containing radioactivity levels in excess of Class C limits.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 5, Page 3 of 3

TABLE 5.1

DECOMMISSIONING WASTE DISPOSAL SUMMARY

	Waste Volume ³ (cubic feet)
Low Level Radioactive Waste ¹	
Class A ²	81,767
Class B	1,321
Class C	423
GTCC	14
Subtotal .	83,524
Miscellaneous Wastes	
Demolition Debris	240,775

Notes:	1	Radioactive waste is classified according to the requirements as delineated in Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 61.55.
	2	Class A waste includes soil, discharge canal sediment and reactor caisson mixed waste.
	3	Column may not add due to rounding.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 6, Page 1 of 2

6. RESULTS

The projected cost to decommission the Humboldt Bay Power Plant Unit 3 (2006 SAFSTOR), including costs spent to-date and the capital addition costs for the ISFSI is \$300,374,371 (including an 21% contingency) in 2002 dollars, which includes \$712,869 (17.3% contingency) for the CPUC's disallowances. The costs reflect the site-specific features of the HBPP3, the local cost of labor, the DOE's schedule for spent fuel receipt, and a projected cost for low-level radioactive waste disposal at the regional compact site. An analysis of the major activities contributing to the total cost for the decommissioning is provided in Table 6.1.

Staffing, including management, security, and health physics combine with the removal labor cost to represent the majority of the costs to decommission a nuclear station. This is a direct result of the labor-intensive nature of the decommissioning process, as well as the management controls required to ensure a safe and successful program. ISFSI installation, licensing and operating costs represent the next largest single item. Demolition debris disposal and low-level waste burial costs are indicative of the expense incurred in siting, developing, and licensing new disposal facilities, as well as the costs associated to meet the tighter standards being developed at the federal and local levels.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 6, Page 2 of 2

TABLE 6.1

SUMMARY OF DECOMMISSIONING COST CONTRIBUTORS

	Costs '02	Percent of
Work Category	(thousands \$)	Total Costs (%)
Decontamination	2,354	0.8
Removal	· 23,608	7.9
Packaging	3,451	1.1
Shipping	2,023	0.7
Waste Processing & Recycling	9,096	3.0
Low Level Waste Burial	17,459	5.8
Demolition Debris Disposal	38,765	12.9
Staffing	77,388	25.8
Security	2,766	0.9 ·
License Termination Survey	3,224	1.1
Insurance	664	0.2
Energy	527	0.2
NRC & EP Fees	2,167	0.7
NRC ISFSI Fees	2,925	1.0
ISFSI Capital, O&M, Fixed & Security	62,503	20.8
Non-ISFSI Expenditures	20,503	6.8
Equipment & Supplies	20,974	7.0
Engineering	9,980	3.3
Total	300,374	100.0
CPUC Disallowances		
Removal	311	43.6
Packaging	112	15.7
Shipping	4	0.5
Waste Processing	69	9.6
LLW Burial	117	16.5
Equipment & Supplies	100	14.1

713

100

Total

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 7, Page 1 of 2

7. REFERENCES

- 1. U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Title 10, Parts 30, 40, 50, 51, 70 and 72, "General Requirements for Decommissioning Nuclear Facilities," Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Federal Register Volume 53, Number 123 (p 24018+), June 27, 1988.
- 2. U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Regulatory Guide 1.159, "Assuring the Availability of Funds for Decommissioning Nuclear Reactors," February 1995.
- 3. U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Title 10, Parts 2, 50 and 51, "Decommissioning of Nuclear Power Reactors," Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Federal Register Volume 61 (p39278+), July 29, 1996.
- 4. "Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 and Amendments," U.S. Department of Energy's Office of Civilian Radioactive Management, 1982.
- 5. DOE/RW-0457, Acceptance Priority Ranking and Annual Capacity Report, U.S. Department of Energy's Office of Civilian Radioactive Waste Management, March 1995.
- 6. "Low-Level Radioactive Waste Policy Amendments Act of 1985," Public Law 99-240, January 15, 1986.
- 7. "U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Title 10, Parts 20, 30, 40, 50, 51, 70 and 72, "Radiological Criteria for License Termination", Federal Register Volume 62, Number 139, July 21, 1997.
- 8. SAFSTOR Decommissioning Plan for the Humboldt Bay Power Plant, Unit No. 3, July 1984.
- 9. Preliminary Shutdown Decommissioning Activities Report, PG&E letter HBL-98-002 dated February 27, 1998.
- 10 T.S. LaGuardia et al., "Guidelines for Producing Commercial Nuclear Power Plant Decommissioning Cost Estimates," AIF/NESP-036, May 1986.
- 11. Department of Energy, "Decommissioning Handbook," DOE/EM-0142P, March 1994.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev 0 Section 7, Page 2 of 2

7. REFERENCES (continued)

- 12. R.S. Means, Building Construction Cost Data, 2002.
- 13. Project and Cost Engineers' Handbook, Second Edition, p. 239, American Association of Cost Engineers, Marcel Dekker, Inc., New York, New York.
- 14. U.S. Department of Transportation, Section 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, "Transportation," Parts 173 through 178, 1996.
- 15. "Microsoft Project for 98," Microsoft Corporation, Redmond, WA.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix A, Page 1 of 4

APPENDIX A

WORK DIFFICULTY FACTOR ADJUSTMENTS

1

TLG Services, Inc.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix A, Page 2 of 4

APPENDIX A

WORK DIFFICULTY FACTOR ADJUSTMENT

			Respiratory		Protective	Alpha
AREA	AREA DESCRIPTION	Access	Protection	ALARA	Clothing	Adjust.
<u> </u>	•	(%)	(%)	(%)	(%)	(%)
	Emeranan Condonner	20	05	10	20	50
	Emergency Condenser	20	20	. 10	30	50
RD 1-2	Spent Fuel Pool	10	20	20	30	50
		10	20	10	30	50
	SPP Pumps/Pinters	10	20	10	30	50
RD1-0	Laydown/Cask washdown General Area	10	25	10	30	50
RB1-0	Reactor Vessel Cavity	50	50	100	100	50
RB2-1	El -2 Suppression Pool Cooler	10	25	10	30	U
RB2-2	Elev14, Manim	10	25	10	30	0
RB2-3	Elev24, CRD Hydraulic Filters	20	25	10	30	50
RB2-4	Elev34, Suppression Pool Access Hatch	20	25	10	30	50
RB2-5	Elev44, CRD Piping	20	25	10	30	50
RB2-6	Elev54, CRD Trip Accumulators	20	25	10	30	50
RB2-7	Elev66, Caisson Sump, REDT	20	25	10	30	50
RB2-8	Suppression Pool - North	30	50	20	30	50
RB2-9	Suppression Pool - South	30	50	20	30	50
RB3-1	Cleanup Heat Exchangers	10	50	20	30	50
RB3-2	New Fuel Storage/Fuel Pool Coolers	20	25	20	30	50
RB4-1	Shutdown Heat Exchangers/Pumps	10	25	10	30	50
RB4-2	TBDT/Floor Drain Pumps	20	50	20	50	50
RB5-1	RFB Root (HVAC only)	0	25	10	30	50
RB5-1	RFB Root	0	25	10	30	0
TB1-1	Main Turbine	20	25	20	30	50
TB1-2	Main Generator/Exciter House	0	0	0	0	0
TB1-3	Hydrogen Yard	0	0	10	30	0
TB2-1	Main Condenser	20	25	20	30	.50
TB2-2	Seal Oil Unit/Exciter Swgr	0	0	10	30	0
TB3-1	Reactor Feed/Lube Oil/Air Systems	0	25	20	30	50
TB3-2	Propane Engine Generator	0	0	0	. 0	0
TB3-3	2400/480V Transformers	0	0	10	0	0
TB4-1	Laundry Drain Tank/Pipe Tunnel	10	25	20	30	50
TB4-2	Pipe Gallery	30	. 50	40	50	50
TB5-1	Anion/Cation/Resin Tanks	10	25	20	30	0
TB5-2	Condensate Demineralizers	10	25	20	30	50
TB6-1	Air Ejector/Gland Seal Condenser	0	25	20	30	50
TB6-2	Vacuum Pump/Condensate Pumps	0	25	10	30	50

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix A, Page 3 of 4

APPENDIX A

WORK DIFFICULTY FACTOR ADJUSTMENT (continued)

			Respiratory		Protective	Alpha
AREA	AREA DESCRIPTION	(%)	(%)	(%)	(%)	(%)
TB7-1	Main Control Room	0	25	10	30	0
TB7-2	Instr Repair/Counting Room/Vent Equip	0	0	10	0	0
TB7-3	Locker Room/Personnel Decon	0	0	10	0	0
TB7-4	Hot Lab	0	25	20	30	50
TB7-5	Demin Control Panel/RFB Access	0	0	10	0	0
TB7-6	Hot Lab Attic	10	25	10	30	0
TB7-7	RP Office/Count Room	0	0	0	0	0
RW1-1	RWB - Concentrator/Pumps/Filters	10	25	20	30	50
RW1-2	RWB - Waste Receiver/Hold Tanks	10	25	20	30	50
RW1-3	Radwaste Demineralizer	20	50	40	50	50
RW1-4	Concentrated Waste Tanks	20	25	20	30	50
RW1-5	Resin Disposal Tank	20	50	40	50	50
RW1-6	Upper Elevation - RWB	0	25	10	30	0
RW1-7	Packaged Radwaste Storage Bldg	0	0	10	0	0
RW1-8	Low Level Waste Storage Bldg	0	0	10	0	0
RW1-9	Solid Waste Vault	10	25	20	30	50
YD1-1	Main Transformers	0	0	0	0	0
YD1-2	CCW Heat Exchangers/Pumps	0	25	10	30	50
YD1-3	n/a			n/a		
YD1-4	n/a ·	•		n/a		
YD1-5	Intake Structure	0	0	· 0	0	0
YD2-1	Stack - Elev 0'0"	10	25	10	30	50
YD2-2	Stack - Elev. 12'0"	10	25	10	30	0
YD2-3	Stack - Elev. 26'0"	10	25	1 0	30	0
YD2-4	Condensate/Demin Water Storage Tank	0	25	10	30	50 .
YD2-5	Plant Exhaust Fans	0	25	20	30	50
YD2-6	Gaseous Radwaste Holdup Tunnel	20	50	20	- 30	50
HMS1-1	HMS Decon Area	0	25	10	30	50
HMS1-2	Calibration Lab	0	25	40	30	0

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix A, Page 4 of 4

1

APPENDIX A

WORK DIFFICULTY FACTOR ADJUSTMENT (continued)

AREA	AREA DESCRIPTION	Access (%)	Respiratory Protection (%)	ALARA (%)	Protective Clothing (%)	Alpha Adjust. (%)
OTS1	Hydrogen Analyzer/MCC #14	0	0	0	0	0
OTS2	Moisture Skid/Sump Pump	0	0	0	0	0
OTS3	Jet Compressor/Recombiner/CG Bed	0	0	0	. 0	Ū.
OTS4	Carbon Adsorbers	0	0	0	0	0
OTS5	Pipe Tunnel	0	0	0	0	0
OTS6	HEPA Filter (outside access only)	0	0	0	0	0
YARD	General Yard	0	0	0	0	0
RBP	Refueling Building - Embedded Piping	10	50	20	30	50
TBP	Turbine Building - Embedded Piping	10	50	20	30	50
YDP	Buried Yard Piping/Catch Basins, Etc.	0	0	10	0	50
RWP	Radwaste Building - Embedded Piping	10	50	20	30	50
HMSP	Hot Machine Shop - Embedded Piping	10	50	20	30	50

٠

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix B, Page 1 of 4

APPENDIX B 🚬 '

UNIT COST FACTOR DEVELOPMENT

.

TLG Services, Inc.

.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix B, Page 2 of 4

APPENDIX B UNIT COST FACTOR DEVELOPMENT

Example: Unit Factor for Removal of Contaminated Heat Exchanger < 3,000 lbs.

1. SCOPE

Heat exchangers weighing < 3,000 lbs. will be removed in one piece using a crane or small hoist. They will be disconnected from the inlet and outlet piping. The heat exchanger will be sent to the waste processing area.

2. CALCULATIONS

Activity Description	Critical Duration (minutes)
Install contamination controls, remove insulation, and mount pipe c	utters 60
Disconnect inlet and outlet lines, cap openings	60
Rig for removal	30
Unbolt from mounts	30
Remove contamination controls	15
Remove heat exchanger, wrap in plastic, and send to packing area	<u>60</u>
Critical Duration	255
Work Adjustments (Work Difficulty Factors)	
+Duration adjustment(s)	
Site-specific labor adjustment (50% of Critical Duration)	128
	383
+ Respiratory Protection (25% of Critical Duration)	96
+ Radiation/ALARA (10% of Critical Duration)	<u>38</u>
Adjusted Work Duration	517
+ Protective Clothing (30% of Adjusted Work Duration)	155
Productive Work Duration	672
+ Work break adjustment (8.33 % of Productive Work Duration) Total Work Duration	<u>56</u> 728

*** Total Work Duration = 728 minutes or 12.133 hours ***

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix B, Page 3 of 4

APPENDIX B (continued)

.

3. LABOR REQUIRED

Crew	Number	Duration	Rate	Cost			
		(hours)	(\$/hr)				
Laborers	3.00	12.133	\$37.22	\$1,354.77			
Craftsmen	2.00	12.133	\$45.37	\$1,100.95			
Foreman	1.00	12.133	\$47.90	\$581.17			
General Foreman	0.25	12.133	\$50.10	\$151.97			
Fire Watch	0.05	12.133	\$37.22	\$22.58			
Health Physics Technician	1.00	12.133	\$34.14	\$414.22			
Total Labor Cost				\$3,625.66			
4. EQUIPMENT & CON	SUMABLES	COSTS					
Equipment Costs -Portable Pipe Cut/Milling Machine 1 @ \$10.86/hr x 12.133 hrs {1}							
-Blotting paper 50@ \$0 48 sc	r ft. {2}			\$24.00			
-Plastic sheets/bags 50 @ \$0.	12/sa ft {3}			\$6.00			
-Slitting Saw 1 @ \$34.69/hr x	: 1 hr {1}			<u>\$34.69</u>			
Subtotal Cost Of Equipment A	And Materials			\$196.45			
Overhead & Sales Tax On Eq	uipment And I	Materials @ 17.	.00%	<u>\$33.40</u>			
Total Costs, Equipment & Material							
TOTAL COST: Removal of Con	taminated He	at Exchanger <	3000 Pounds:				
	•			\$3,855.51			
Total Labor Cost:				\$3,625.66			
Total Equipment/Material Costs:							
Total Adjusted Exposure Mar	n-Hours Incur	red:		50.02			
Total Craft Labor Man-Hours Required Per Unit:							

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix B, Page 4 of 4

APPENDIX B (continued)

5. NOTES AND REFERENCES

- Work difficulty factors were developed in conjunction with the AIF (now NEI) program to standardize nuclear decommissioning cost estimates and are delineated in Volume 1, Chapter 5 of the "Guidelines for Producing Commercial Nuclear Power Plant Decommissioning Cost Estimates," AIF/NESP-036, May 1986.
- References for equipment & consumables costs:
 - 1. The Wachs Companies, Quote dated 10/2001
 - 2. McMaster-Carr website on-line catalog
 - 3. R.S. Means (2002) Division 015 Section 602-0200 pg 17
- Material and consumable costs were adjusted using the regional indices for Eureka, California.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix C, Page 1 of 8

APPENDIX C

UNIT COST FACTOR LISTING (Representative of Power Block Structures Only)

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix C, Page 2 of 8

APPENDIX C

UNIT COST FACTOR LISTING (Representative of Power Block Structures Only)

Unit Cost Factor	Cost/Unit(\$)
Removal of clean instrument and sampling tubing, \$/linear foot	0.37
Removal of clean pipe 0.25 to 2 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	3.98
Removal of clean pipe >2 to 4 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	5.53
Removal of clean pipe >4 to 8 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	10.67
Removal of clean pipe >8 to 14 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	15.17
Removal of clean pipe >14 to 20 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	21.56
Removal of clean pipe >20 to 36 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	33.90
Removal of clean pipe >36 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	41.46
Removal of clean valves >2 to 4 inches	70.96
Removal of clean valves >4 to 8 inches	106.68
Removal of clean valves >8 to 14 inches	151.73
Removal of clean valves >14 to 20 inches	215.61
Removal of clean valves >20 to 36 inches	338.97
Removal of clean valves >36 inches	414.60
Removal of clean pipe hangers for small bore piping	23.02
Removal of clean pipe hangers for large bore piping	84.97
Removal of clean pumps, <300 pound	194.69
Removal of clean pumps, 300-1000 pound	539.54
Removal of clean pumps, 1000-10,000 pound	1,973.43
Removal of clean pumps, >10,000 pound	3,807.43
Removal of clean pump motors, 300-1000 pound	228.02
Removal of clean pump motors, 1000-10,000 pound	823.13
Removal of clean pump motors, >10,000 pound	1,853.84
Removal of clean heat exchanger <3000 pound	1,152.29
Removal of clean heat exchanger >3000 pound	2,888.96
Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix C, Page 3 of 8

APPENDIX C (continued)

.

Unit Cost Factor

Cost/Unit(\$)

Removal of clean tanks, <300 gallons	250.73
Removal of clean tanks, 300-3000 gallons	729.44
Removal of clean tanks, >3000 gallons, \$/square foot surface area	6.08
Removal of clean electrical equipment, <300 pound	107.56
Removal of clean electrical equipment, 300-1000 pound	371.26
Removal of clean electrical equipment, 1000-10,000 pound	742.49
Removal of clean electrical equipment, >10,000 pound	1,613.08
Removal of clean electrical transformers < 30 tons	1,222.10
Removal of clean electrical transformers > 30 tons	3,226.15
Removal of clean standby diesel-generator, <100 kW	1,143.14
Removal of clean standby diesel-generator, 100 kW to 1 MW	2,553.17
Removal of clean standby diesel-generator, >1 MW	5.286.60
Removal of clean electrical cable tray, \$/linear foot	9.15
Removal of clean electrical conduit, \$/linear foot	3.84
Removal of clean mechanical equipment, <300 pound	107.56
Removal of clean mechanical equipment, 300-1000 pound	371.26
Removal of clean mechanical equipment, 1000-10,000 pound	742.49
Removal of clean mechanical equipment, >10,000 pound	1,613.08
Removal of clean HVAC equipment, <300 pound	107.56
Removal of clean HVAC equipment, 300-1000 pound	371.26
Removal of clean HVAC equipment, 1000-10,000 pound	742.49
Removal of clean HVAC equipment, >10,000 pound	1,613.08
Removal of clean HVAC ductwork, \$/pound	0.42
Removal of contaminated instrument and sampling tubing, \$/linear foot	1.24
Removal of contaminated pipe 0.25 to 2 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	31.13
//	

Unit Cost Factor

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix C, Page 4 of 8

APPENDIX C

(continued)

Unit Cost Factor	Cost/Unit(\$)
Removal of contaminated pipe >2 to 4 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	44.47
Removal of contaminated pipe >4 to 8 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	102.99
Removal of contaminated pipe >8 to 14 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	164.10
Removal of contaminated pipe >14 to 20 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	232.87
Removal of contaminated pipe >20 to 36 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	338.04
Removal of contaminated pipe >36 inches diameter, \$/linear foot	397.84
Removal of contaminated valves >2 to 4 inches	269.02
Removal of contaminated valves >4 to 8 inches	503.29
Removal of contaminated valves >8 to 14 inches	820.52
Removal of contaminated valves >14 to 20 inches	1,223.34
Removal of contaminated valves >20 to 36 inches	1,690.22
Removal of contaminated valves >36 inches	1,989.18
Removal of contaminated pipe hangers for small bore piping	97.19
Removal of contaminated pipe hangers for large bore piping	317.03
Removal of contaminated pumps, <300 pound	792.91
Removal of contaminated pumps, 300-1000 pound	1,836.16
Removal of contaminated pumps, 1000-10,000 pound	6,147.56
Removal of contaminated pumps, >10,000 pound	14,980.47
Removal of contaminated pump motors, 300-1000 pound	774.18
Removal of contaminated pump motors, 1000-10,000 pound	2,391.93
Removal of contaminated pump motors, >10,000 pound	5,395.80
Removal of contaminated turbine-driven pumps < 10,000 pounds	7,513.22
Removal of contaminated turbine-driven pumps > 10,000 pounds	17,129.92
Removal of contaminated heat exchanger <3000 pound	3,855.51
Removal of contaminated heat exchanger >3000 pound	10,699.94

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix C, Page 5 of 8

APPENDIX C (continued)

Unit Cost Factor

Cost/Unit(\$)

i

Removal of contaminated feedwater heater/deaerator	24,780.54
Removal of contaminated moisture separator/reheater	62,545.00
Removal of contaminated tanks, <300 gallons	1,313.08
Removal of contaminated tanks, >300 gallons, \$/square foot	36.94
Removal of contaminated electrical equipment, <300 pound	617.33
Removal of contaminated electrical equipment, 300-1000 pound	1,490.62
Removal of contaminated electrical equipment, 1000-10,000 pound	2,866.71
Removal of contaminated electrical equipment, >10,000 pound	5,438.34
Removal of contaminated electrical cable tray, \$/linear foot	28.77
Removal of contaminated electrical conduit, \$/linear foot	25.05
Removal of contaminated mechanical equipment, <300 pound	666.48
Removal of contaminated mechanical equipment, 300-1000 pound	1,597.83
Removal of contaminated mechanical equipment, 1000-10,000 pound	3,076.96
Removal of contaminated mechanical equipment, >10,000 pound	5,438.34
Removal of contaminated HVAC equipment, <300 pound	666.48
Removal of contaminated HVAC equipment, 300-1000 pound	1,597.83
Removal of contaminated HVAC equipment, 1000-10,000 pound	3,076.96
Removal of contaminated HVAC equipment, >10,000 pound	5,438.34
Removal of contaminated HVAC ductwork, \$/pound	2.75
Removal/plasma arc cut of contaminated thin metal components, \$/linear in.	3.23
Additional decontamination of surface by washing, \$/square foot	6.67
Additional decontamination of surfaces by hydrolasing, \$/square foot	28.29
Decontamination rig hook-up and flush	5,641.45
Chemical flush of components/systems, \$/gallon	11.65
Removal of standard reinforced concrete, \$/cubic yard	63.68

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix C, Page 6 of 8

APPENDIX C (continued)

Unit Cost Factor

Cost/Unit(\$)

Removal of grade slab concrete, \$/cubic yard	185.69
Removal of clean concrete floors, \$/cubic yard	261.45
Removal of sections of clean concrete floors, \$/cubic yard	832.30
Removal of clean heavily rein concrete w/#9 rebar, \$/cubic yard	177.20
Removal of contaminated heavily rein concrete w/#9 rebar, \$/cubic yard	465.09
Removal of clean heavily rein concrete w/#18 rebar, \$/cubic yard	233.74
Removal of contaminated heavily rein concrete w/#18 rebar. \$/cubic yard	1.713.05
Removal heavily rein concrete w/#18 rebar & steel embedments. \$/cu vd	334.25
Removal of below-grade suspended floors. \$/square foot	225.18
Removal of clean monolithic concrete structures, \$/cubic yard	641.19
Removal of contaminated monolithic concrete structures. \$/cu vd	1.713.29
Removal of clean foundation concrete, \$/cubic yard	546.25
Removal of contaminated foundation concrete, \$/cubic yard	1.593.72
Explosive demolition of bulk concrete, \$/cubic yard	24.63
Removal of clean hollow masonry block wall, \$/cubic yard	71.56
Removal of contaminated hollow masonry block wall. \$/cubic yard	243.94
Removal of clean solid masonry block wall. \$/cubic yard	71.56
Removal of contaminated solid masonry block wall, \$/cubic yard	243.94
Backfill of below-grade voids, \$/cubic yard	17.08
Removal of subterranean tunnels/voids, \$/linear foot	125.67
Placement of concrete for below-grade voids. S/cubic vard	99.68
Excavation of clean material. \$/cubic vard	2.91
Excavation of contaminated material. S/cubic vard	36.03
Excavation of submerged concrete rubble. \$/cubic vard	- 11.55
Removal of clean concrete rubble, \$/cubic yard	80.20

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix C, Page 7 of 8

APPENDIX C (continued)

Unit Cost Factor	Cost/Unit(\$)
Removal of contaminated concrete rubble, \$/cubic yard	28.99
Removal of building by volume, \$/cubic foot	0.24
Removal of clean building metal siding, \$/square foot	1.19
Removal of contaminated building metal siding, \$/square foot	4.04
Removal of standard asphalt roofing, \$/square foot	1.88
Removal of transite panels, \$/square foot	1.98
Scarifying contaminated concrete surfaces (drill & spall)	12.09
Scabbling contaminated concrete floors, \$/square foot	7.16
Scabbling contaminated concrete walls, \$/square foot	7.64
Scabbling contaminated ceilings, \$/square foot	68.72
Scabbling structural steel, \$/square foot	5.72
Removal of clean overhead cranes/monorails < 10 ton capacity	471.83
Removal of contaminated overhead cranes/monorails < 10 ton capacity	1,474.45
Removal of clean overhead cranes/monorails >10-50 ton capacity	1,130.93
Removal of contaminated overhead cranes/monorails >10-50 ton capacity	3,535.28
Removal of polar cranes > 50 ton capacity, each	4,716.04
Removal of gantry cranes > 50 ton capacity, each	20,161.42
Removal of structural steel, \$/pound	0.32
Removal of clean steel floor grating, \$/square foot	2.74
Removal of contaminated steel floor grating, \$/square foot	8.77
Removal of clean free-standing steel liner, \$/square foot	9.12
Removal of contaminated free-standing steel liner, \$/square foot	29.21
Removal of clean concrete-anchored steel liner, \$/square foot	4.56
Removal of contaminated concrete-anchored steel liner, \$/square foot Placement of scaffolding in clean areas \$/square foot	33.94
I MOMONT OF BUILDINING IN OFCAN ALCAD, WOYNALD 1000	13.54

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix C, Page 8 of 8

APPENDIX C (continued)

Unit Cost Factor Cost/Unit(\$) Placement of scaffolding in contaminated areas, \$/square foot 21.41 Landscaping w/ topsoil, \$/acre 15,848.42 Cost of LSA box & preparation for use 1,445.57 Cost of LSA drum & preparation for use 188.29 Cost of cask liner for CNSI 14-195 cask 9,739.76 Cost of cask liner for CNSI 8-120A cask (resins) 8,409.88 Cost of cask liner for CNSI 8-120A cask (filters) 8,409.88 Decontamination of surfaces with vacuuming, \$/square foot 1.55

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix D, Page 1 of 7

APPENDIX D

HUMBOLDT BAY 2006 SAFSTOR DECOMMISSIONING COST

TLG Services, Inc.

APPENDIX D HUMBOLDT BAY 2006 SAFSTOR DECOMMISSIONING COST (Thousands of 2002 dollars)

10																Craft Labor
Numb	erActivity	Decon	Remove	Pack	Ship	Bury	Other	Contingency	Total	Lie Term	Clean	A CF	8 CF	CCF	>C CF	Hours
PERM	07				•											
FERIO																
	HBPP Unit #3 1996 Completed Projects	•	•	•	•	•	1,678	•	1,678	1,678	•	•	-	-	•	•
	HBPP Unit #3 1997 Completed Projects	•	•	•	•	•	8.663	•	8.663	8,663	•	•	•	•	•	•
	HBPP Unit #3 1998 Completed Projects	•	•	•	•	•	5,574	•	5,574	5,574	•	•	•	•	•	•
	HBPP Unit #3 1999 Completed Projects	•	•	•	•	•	724	•	724	724	-	•	•	•	•	•
	HBPP Unit #3 2000 Completed Projects	•	•	•	•	•	64	•	64	84	•	•	•	•	•	•
	ISFSI Design & Licensing 1998	•	•	•	•	•	344	•	344	344	•	•	•	•	•	•
	ISF SI Design & Licensing 1999	•	•	•	•		1,994		9.764	1,994	•	•	•	•	•	•
	ISFSI Design & Licensing 2000	•					2.204		268	268						
,	ISP SI Design & Licensing 2001	•					1 492		4 340	4 140						
	ISESI Design & Licensing 2002					•	312	78	388	388			•			
	ISEST Design & Licensing 2003		•		•		724	176	900	900	•				•	
	(a) at on sign & coordinary coord															
	Radiological Characterization	•	•	•	•	•	477	133	510	610	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Reactor Vessel Activation Analysis	•	•	•	•	•	85	15	100	100	•	•	•	•		•
	Develop Cost, Schedule & Work Conirols	•	•	•	•	•	200	•	200	200	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Develop "Level 2" Decommissioning Schedule	•	•	•	•	•	175	•	175	175	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Develop Site Facilities & Statting Plan	•	•	•	•	•	170	•	170	170	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Asbestos Removal	•	•	•	•	•	1,052	318	1,380	1,380	•	•	•	•	•	•
	LLW Management Plan	•	•	•	-	•	467	118	585	585	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Decom Demonstration Project	•	-	•	-	•	321	79	400	400	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Decommissioning Design Basis	•	•	•	•	•	50	•	60	60	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Revise Licensing Basis	•	•	•	•	•	100		100	100	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Total	•	•	•	•	•	29,240	1,763	31,003	31,003	•	•	•	•	•	•
~																
FERIOL																
1	Perform detailed rad survey	-	•		•	•	•	•	Note 1	•	•	•	-	• •	•	•
2	Review plant dwgs & spece.	•	-	•	•	•	321	48	369	369	•	•	•	•	•	•
3	End product description	•	•	•	•	•	100	15	115	115	•	•	•	•	•	•
4	Detailed by-product inventory	•	•	•	•	•		.1	9		•	•	•	•	•	•
5	Define major work sequence	•	•	•	•	•	3/5	56	431	431	•	•	•	•	•	•
6	Perform SER and EA	•	-	•	-	-	310		337	357	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Perform Site-Specific Cost Study	•	•	•	•	•	500	75	3/3	5/3	•		•	•	•	•
	Prepare NDC some License i emeratori plan			:	-	:			Note 2	190	:		:		:	
,	receive ning approval or termination plan	-	•	•				•				•	-		-	-
Activity	Specifications															
10 1	Re-activate plant & temporary facilities	•	•		•	•	652	98	750	675	75	•	•	•	•	
10 2	Plant systems	•	· •	•	•	•	295	44	339	305	34	•	•	•	•	
10 3	Reactor internals	•	•	•	•	•	660	99	759	759	•	•	•	•	-	•
10.4	Reactor vessel	•	•	•	•	•	600	90	690	690	•	•	•	•	•	
10.5	Sacrificial shield	•	•	•	•	•	50		58	58	•	•	•	•		•
10 8	Morsture separators/remeaters	•	•	•	•		100	15	115	115	•	•	•	•	•	•
10 1	Turbon & condenses	•			•	•	417	<u> </u>	470	100	18	•	•	•	•	•
100	Pressure suppression structure			•		:	200	30	230	473	•	•	•	•	•	•
10 10	Pompor Contacting						141	24	184	230		•	•	•	•	•
10 11	Plant shuck me & huikinne						190	29	719	719	•		•	•	•	•
10 12	Waste management		•				109	16	175	175			•	•		•
10.13	Facility & site closeout		-					14	104	52				•	•	
10	Total		•	•		•	3,682	552	4,235	4,055	179		:		•	
										••••			-	-	-	
Plannin	a & Site Preparations						·									
	Pripare usmaning sequence	•	•	•	•	•	240	36	276	276	•	•	•	•		
12	Pram prep a temp, svces	•	•	•	•	•	2,219	333	2.552	2,552	•	•	•	•	•	
	Unsign water Clean-up system	•	•	•	•	•	140	21	161	161	•	•	•	•		
14	Programu Le S/100kng/etc.	•	•	•	•	•	1,300	195	1,495	1,495	•		•	•		
5	LIDCRE CRARTINELA 9 COURSINGLE	•	•	•	•	•	123	18	141	141	-	•				

.

.

.

•

TLG Services, Inc.

٠

.

.

.

APPENDIX D HUMBOLDT BAY 2006 SAFSTOR DECOMMISSIONING COST (Thousands of 2002 dollars)

<u> </u>																Collinho
Number	Activity	Decon	Remove	Pack	Ship	Bury	_Other	Contingency	Total	Lie Term	Clean	ACF	BICE	_C CF	>C CF	Hours
·																
Detailed	Work Procedures						475	74								
161	Plant systems	•	•	•	:		74	· · · · ·	244		54	•	•	•	•	•
102	Vessel head Seaster internale				-		400	60	460	460		:	:	:	•	•
10 3	Reaction Excertains Remaining buildings						135	20	155	39	116					
	CDD hourings & ICI hates						100	15	115	115	•	•				
10.5	Loove instrumentation						100	15	115	115	•					
187	Removal company contractment				•		200	30	230	230					•	
16.6	Rearing vessel	•		•	•	•	363	54	417	417		•		•		
16.9	Facily closeout	•		•		•	120	18	138	69	69	•	•	•	•	•
16 10	Sacrificial shield	•	•	•	•	•	120	18	138	138	•	•	•	•	•	•
16 11	Reinforced concrete	•	-	•	•	•	100	15	115	58	58	•	•	•	•	•
16.12	Turbine & condensers	•	•	• •	•	•	270	41	311	311	•	•	•	•	•	•
16 13	Moisture separators & inheaters	•	•	•	•	•	54	8	62	62	•	•	•	•	•	•
16 14	Radwaste building	•	•	•	•	•	127	19	145	131	15	•	•	•	•	•
15 15	Reactor building	•	•	•	•	•	127	19	146	131	C1	••	•	•	•	•
14	Total	•	•	•	•	•	2,713	407	3,120	2.793	327	•	•	•	•	•
				10	1	349	-	116	601	501						2 406
	ASDESIOS removal program	•	30		•		•	1.0								1,-00
Subsetal	Pariod 3 Activity Costs	•	98	39	1	349	12,197	1,945	14,628	14,122	506			•	•	2,406
10010.0																
Period 3	Additional Costs															
18	Addeonal Support Facilities	-	•	•	•	•	1,894	284	2,178	2,178	•	•	•	•	•	•
19	Mixed Waste Disposal	•	2	6	3	•	260	41	312	312	•	207	•	•	•	66
Period 3	Undistributed Costs			•				-	1	4 848						
1	DOC stall relocation expenses	•	1,441	•	•			210	1,050	224	•		•	•	•	•
Z		-	:				213		2.54			:	:		:	
3	Property taxes		228					57	285	285						
	Menut an invest	-	431		•	•	-	65	495	495	•	•				
ě	Disposal of DAW generated	•	•	34	1	28		10	73	73	•	199		-		540
ž	Plant theroy budget	•	•	•	•	-	133	20	153	153	-	•	•	•	•	•
à	NRC Fees	-	•	•	•	•	314	31	346	346	•	•	•	•	•	•
9	Emergency Planning Fees	•	•	•	•	•	118	12	130	130	•	•	•	•	•	•
10	Site Security	•	-	-	•	•	964	145	1,108	1,108	•	•	-	•	-	•
11	Fabricate Casks & Construct ISFSI	•	•	•	•	• •	. 13.616	4,153	17,769	17,769	•	•	•	•	•	•
12	Rebuild Refueling Bidg Crane	•	•	•	•	•	1,008	151	1,159	1,159	•	•	•	•	•	•
											•					
Subtotal	Undistributed Costs Period 3	•	2,100	34	,	25	16,367	4,881	23,411	23,411	•	199	•	•	•	540
···· ·· ··																
5000 000					_	-	1 730	261	3 000							
	Linder Staff Cost	•					14 785	2 141	18 427	16 477	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Unity Sull Cost	•	-	•				2.143	10,427		•	•	•	•	•	•
TOTAL P	ERIOD 3 COST	•	2,200	79	4	378	48,741	9,555	58,955	58,450	506	406				3.012
PERIÓO	t i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i															
			-		•											
20	Remove spent fuer racks	40	6	12	Z	133	00	81	402	402	•	1,377	•	•	•	1.068
2 1	Puer Pool Calando	•	•	•	•	•	346	52	400	400	•	•	•	•	•	750
Nuclear S	Steam Supply System Removal															
22 1	CRDMs & ICIs Removal	1	22	46		352		100	578	\$78		787				***
22 2	Reactor Vessel Internals	á	1.893	1,233	127	720		2 124	6 106	6.106	• •	104	•		•	620
22 3	Reactor Vessel	ă	3,443	294	97	500		2.934	7.276	7.278		796	674		•	13,4/3
22	Totals	19	5,358	1,574	228	1.572		5,158	13,910	13.910	•	1.575	6.76	421	•	24 856
								-								
Removal	of Major Equipment															
23	Main Turbine/Generator	•	72	•	•	•	1,251	206	1,528	1.528	•	•	•			1,548
Z4	Main Condensers	• •	21	57	27	1,175	989	460	2,750	2,760	•	8,396	•			479

•

.

TLG Services. Inc.

• .

APPENDIX D HUMBOLDT BAY 2006 SAFSTOR DECOMMISSIONING COST (Thousands of 2002 dollars)

						(1)	00341103 01 /	2002 000415)								
1D Number	Activity	Decon	Remove	Pack	Ship	Bury	Other	Contingency	Total	Lie Term	Clean	ACF	B CF	CCF	>C CF	Craft Labor Hours
Discosal of Plant Systems																
251 HMS1-1		•	40		•	•	28	14	82	82	•					980
25 2 HMS1-2		•	4	•	•	-	2	1			•	•	•	•	•	99
25.3 HM5P 25.4 OTS.1			12	:	:	:		2	12	12	:	•	:	•	•	135
255 015-2			11		-		10	Ä	25	25		-				235
25.6 OTS-3		•	16	•	-	•	30	8	54	54	•	•	•	•	•	353
257 0154			10	•	•	•	9	4	24	24	•	•	•	•	•	229
258 013-5 259 015-6			2		:			ţ,		3	:		:	:		33
25.10 R81-1		•	43	•	•	•	52	19	114	114		•	•	•	•	1.029
25 11 R81-2		•	20	• •	•	•	15	7	42	42	•	•	•	•	•	470
25.12 R81-3		:	16	•		:	3	5 27	25	25	•	:	•	:	:	395 1 700
2514 R81-5			97	:	-	:	38	30	165	165						2,340
2515 R81-5		•	401	•	•	•	201	130	732	732	•	-	•	•	•.	9,744
25.16 R82-1		٠	56	•	•	-	23	17	96	96	•	•	•	•	•	1,293
25.17 RBZ-Z		:	64 84	•	:	:	70	27	- 161	161	:		•	:		1,476
23 10 R02-3 25 19 R82-4			33	:			6		48	48		:		:		796
25.20 R82-5		•	136	•	•	•	82	46	265	265	•	•	•	•	•	3,237
25 21 R82-6		•	216	•	•	•	27	58	301	301	•	•	•	•	•	5,147
25 22 R82-7		•	205	•	•	•	42	57	304	304	•	•	•	•	•	4,859
25 ZJ K82-6			225			:	167	81	473	473		:			•	5,206
25.25 RB3-1	•		64	-		-	38	22	124	124	:	•		-		1,513
29 26 R83-2	·	· •	11	•	•	•	5	4	21	21	•	•	•	•	•	256
25 27 RB4-1		•	50	-	•	•	49	20	118	118	•	•	•	•	•	1,134
25.28 R84-2		•	36	•		•	15	"	61	61	•	•	•	•	•	831
25.23 R85-1 (HVAC Score	1		29	:	:	:	22	to	51	61	:	:	:	:	:	632
25.31 RBP	•	•	362			•	5	91	458	458	•	-			•	8,751
25 32 RW1-1		•	166	•	•	•	50	54	290	290	•	•	•	•	•	4,463
25.33 RW1-2		•	200	•	-	•	59	59	318	318	•	•	•	•••	•	4.651
25.35 RW1-4		:	47		:	:	32	16	95	95	:	:	:		:	52 1 070
25.36 RW1-5		•	55	•	•	•	24	17	96	96	-	-	•		•	1,278
25.37 RW1-8		٠	42	. •	•	•	30	15	88	88	•	•	•	•	•	965
25 30 PW1-7		•	15	•	•	•		5	27	27	•	•	•	•	•	342
2540 RW1-9					:		1	i	é	á	:			:	:	100
25.41 RWP		•	127	•	•	•	2	32	161	181		•	•	•	-	3.040
2542 TB1-1		•	82	•	•	•	63	30	175	175	•	•	•	•	•	2,119
25.44 TB1-3			25	:	:	:		10	5/4	5/4	:	:	•	•	•	150
2545 TB2-1		•	357	•		•	267	129	753	753			:	:	:	8.425
25 46 TB2-2		•	64	•	•	•	47	23	134	134	•	•	•	•	•	1,480
2547 183-1		•	385	•	•	•	263	136	784	784	•	•	•	•	•	9,190
25 49 T83-3			27	:	:	:	19	7	38	38	•	•	•	•	•	261
25 50 TB4-1		. •	105	•		-	51	34	191	191						2 448
25 51 TB4-2		•	436	•	•	•	150	131	716	716	•	•		•		10.423
25.52 TB5-1 25.53 TB5-7		•	97	•	•	•	19	27	144	144	•	•	•	•	•	2.311
25 54 TB6-1			69	•	:	:	19	- 18	98 141	98	•	•	•	•	•	1,455
25 55 TB6-2		•	62	-			48	28	157	157	:	:	:	:	:	7.63/1
25 56 TB7-1		•	83	•	•	•	75	32	192	192		-	-	•	•	1,326
25 57 187-2		•	14	•	•	•	14	5	35	35	•	•				303
43 39 10/-J 25 59 187.4		•	01	•	•	•	12		26	26	•	•	•	•	•	203
25 60 TB7-5			20	:	:	:	2	3	14	14	•	•	•	•	•	236
25 61 TB7-6			36	•			29	13	78	78			:	:		451
25 62 TB7-7		٠	26	•	٠	•	10	8	45	45		•		-		624

.

TLG Services. Inc.

•

.

.

APPENDIX D HUMBOLDT BAY 2006 SAFSTOR DECOMMISSIONING COST (Thousands of 2002 dollars)

.

.

.

10														· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Craft Labor
Numbe	Activity	Decon	Remove	Pack	Ship	Bury	Other	Contingency	Total	Lic Term	Clean	A CF	BCF	C CF	>C CF	Hours
Disposi	TOO		680	-			•	188	876	876						
23 03			1	-			,		4	4	•	•		•	•	10,964
25 64	TARU	•		•			110	47	1.4		•	•	•	•	•	60
25 65	101-1	•		•			231		320	320	••	•	•	•	•	440
23 66	YD1 2	•		•	•	•	68	a a			•	•	•	•	•	1,/11
25 67	101-5	•		•	•	•					•	•	•	•	•	153
25 68	Y02-1	•	35	•	•	•		10	23	21	•	•	•	•	•	832
25 69	Y02-2	•	14	•	•	•		-		21	•	•	•	•	•	320
25 70	YD2-3	•		•	•	•			14	14	•	•	•	•	•	121
25 71	Y02-4	•	82	•	-	•	51	20	102	102	•	•	•	•	•	1,605
25.72	YD2-5	•	199	•	•	•	137	70	407	407	•	•	•	•	•	4,538
25.73	YD2-6	•	142	• •	•	•		47	206	206	•	•	•	•	•	3,387
25.74	YDP	•	167	•	•	•	122	60	350	350	•	•	•	•	•	2,543
25	Totals	•	6,711	•	•	•	3,783	2,245	12,740	12,740	•	•	•	•	•	190,723
26	Erect scaffolding for systems removal		279	0	0	11	26	76	393	393	•	25	•	•	•	1,738
Deconta	mination of Site Buildings				-											
27.1	HMS	18	•	1	3	65	•	28	119	119	•	401	•	•	•	305
27 2	R81	379	250	108	43	1,015	532	603	2.932	2.932	•	7,009	•	•	•	13,924
27.3	RB2	590	635	21	8	214	488	584	2,539	2,539	•	1,298	•	•	•	26,690
27.4	R81	15	3	3	1	79		17	76	76	•	201	•	•	•	341
27 5	RB4	12	2	3	1	26		15	67	67	•	179	•	• •	•	282
27 6	RW1	57	1	13	5	121	1	61	259	259	•	847	•	•	•	1,053
27.7	T81	5	2	1	1	13	5	7	34	34	•	68	•	•	•	134
27 8	TB2	29	1	6	3	60	3	31	134	134	•	425	•	•	•	553
27 8	783	11	1	Z	1	23	2	12	51	51	•	160	•	•	•	209
27.10	184	15	3	4	2	36	9	19	86	86	•	247	•	•	•	337
27.11	TBS	8	•	2	1	17	•		35	35	•	119	•	•	•	139
27.12	TB6	7	•	2	1	15	•		32	32	•	110	•	•	•	123
27.13	TB7	. 11	•	4	1	23	•	14	63	63	•	236	•	•	•	185
27.14	YDt	7	•	2	1	15	•	8	34	34	•	117	•	•	•	130
27.15	YD2	43	•	12	5	109	•	51	219	219	•	776	•	•	•	767
27.16	RB5-1 (Refuel Blog Roof)	23	• .	5	2	46	•	24	100	100	•	330	•	•	•	417
27	Totals	1,230	897	194	78	1,839	1,054	1,485	6,779	6,779	•	12,504	•	•	•	47,588
Demoint	on of Remaining Site Buildings (Note 3)		_							•						
26 1	Contaminated Equipment Storage	•	1	•		250	•	44	339	333	•	•	•	•	•	104
28 2	Fuel Pool Tremie Removal	•	72	•	64	2,094	•	334	2.563	2.563	•	•	•	•	•	866
28 3	Gas Stack	•	29	•	67	2,221	•	348	2.665	2.665	•	•	•	•	•	513
28.4	Hot Machine Shop & Calibration	•	18	•	19	641	-	102	780	760	• •	•	•	•	•	296
28 5	New Off Gas Vault	•	79	•	154	5.000	•	798	6,119	6,119	•	•	•	•	•	1,294
28 6	Radwaste Treatment	•	123	•	97	3,193	•	512	3.925	3.925	•	•	•	•	•	1,702
28 7	Returning	•	352	•	271	8,927	•	1,433	10,983	10,983	•	•	•	•	•	5,175
28 8	Solid Waste Vault	•	5	•	5	155	•	25	189	189	•	•	•	•	•	67
28 9	Turbine	•	387	•	312	10,284	-	1.647	12.630	12.630	•	•	•	•	-	5,536
28.10	Yard Structures	-	32	•	25	827	•	133	1,017	1.017	•	•	•			565
28	Totals	•	1,104	•	1,023	33,709	•	5,375	41,210	41,210	•	•	•	•	•	16,118
29	Unity icense termination survey						2.232	670	2,901	2.901						37 171
30	ORISE confirmatory survey	•	•	•	•	•	111	33	144	144	•					
31	Terminale license			•	•	•	•	•	Note 2							-
											-	-		-	•	-

TLG Services, Inc.

•

APPENDIX D HUMBOLDT BAY 2006 SAFSTOR DECOMMISSIONING COST (Thousands of 2002 dollars)

.

10																Craft Labor
Numb	er Activity	Decon	Remove	Pack	Ship	Bury	Other	Contingency	Total	Lic Term	Clean	ACF	BCF	C CF	>C CF	Hours
Period	4 Additional Costs											~~ ~~ ~				
32	Decon and Remediate Intake and Discharge	174	1,562	6/9	167	3.620		1,450	7,702	7,702		25.855	•	•		29,368
33	Contaminated Soli Removal	:	68	41		279		109	505	505		1.419	:	:		1.390
35	Discharge Piping	28	342	106	32	974	•	359	1,841	1,641	•	6.958	•	•	•	4,977
36	Replacement of Drains and Catch Basins	•	51	•	•	•	•	8	59	59	•	•	•	•	. •	651
Subtoti	al Period 4 Activity Costs	1,490	18,504	2,693	1,637	46.452	9.859	18,584	\$7,220	97,220	•	80.209	626	423	•	324.575
Period	4 Undistributed Costs															
1	Decon equipment	689	•	•	•	•	•	103	793	793	•	•	•	•	•	•
2	Decon supplies	332	• • • • • •	•	•			215	15	1658	:	:	:	:	:	:
3	DOC star reocation expenses		1,441	48	92	313		137	669	669		•	695		-	247
-	Insurance		•			•	365	37	402	402	•	•	•		•	
4	Property laxes		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	-	•	•	•	•	•	•
7	Health physics supplies	•	1.603	•	•	•	-	401	2,001	2,003	:	•	•	•	•	-
8	Heavy equipment rental	•	6,164	•	•	•	•	926	7,111	6,400	711	•	•	•	•	•
	Small tool allowance	•	198	•	•	:	:	117	1048	1048				:	:	:
10	Pipe curing equipment Connected of DAM constant	:		101	· ,	61		31	215	215	•	581				1.579
	Disposal of DAVE generated Decommissioning Environment Disposition					80	480	93	666	666	-	572				778
11	Plant energy budget			•	•	•	316	47	363	327	36	•	•	•	•	
14	NRC Fees	•	•	•	•	•	545	55	600	600	•	•	•	•	•	•
15	Emergency Planning Fees	•	•	•	•	•	344	34	379	379	•	•	•	•	•	•
16	Site Security	•	•	•	•	•	1,420	213	1,633	1,633	•	•	•	•	•	•
- 17	LLRW Processing Equipment	•	•	•	•	-	1.001	150	1,131	1,151	•	•	•	•	•	•
18	ISFSI O&M	•	•		•		1 188	10	1 544	1 544	:	:	•			•
19	ISFSI Fixed Costs	-	:				2 292	687	2 979	2 979	-	-				
20			:				549	165	714	714	-	•		•	•	
22	Fabricate Casks & Construct ISFS1	•	•	•	٠	•	8,378	2,555	10,931	10,931	•	-	-	•	•	•
Subtolai	I Undistributed Costs Period 4	1,100	10,336	158	9 9	474	16,938	6,475	35,579	34,809	770	1,152	695	•	•	2.604
Staff Co	ete															
	DOC Staff Cost	•	•	•	•	•	9,888	1,483	11,371	11,371	•	•	•	•	•	•
	Unitry Staff Cost	•	• •	•	•	•	36,785	5,518	42,303	42,303	•	•	•	•	•	•
TOTAL	PERIOD 4	2,590	26,849	2,851	1,736	48.926	73,469	32,060	186,472	185,702	770	81,361	1,321	423	•	327,179
PERIOD	5															
Site Clo	seout Activities															
37	Backfill Sile	•	277	•	•	•	-	33	256	•	256	•	•	•	•	1.003
39	Final report to NRC				:	:	156	23	179	179	•		:	•	:	
Pariod S	Additional Costs															
40	Purchase Impact Limiters		•		•		1,800	540	2,340	2.340	•					
41	Transferat of spent fuel to DOE	•	•	•	•	•	400	120	520	520	•	•				•
42	Vessel & Internals GTCC Disposal	•	•	•	•	141	•	21	162	162	•	•	•		14	•
43	ISFSI Decommissioning	• •	675	•	•	•	•	203	878	676	•	•	•		•	3.721
Subtotal	Period 5 Activity Costs	•	921	•	•	141	2,358	944	4,362	4.079	283	•	•		14	4 303
Period S	Undistributed Costs															
1	Insurânce	•	-		•	•	25	2	27	27	•	•	•			
2	Property faxes	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•		. •	
3	treavy equipment rental	•	700	•	•	•	-	105	806	•	805	•	•	•	•	
1	Sinan root andwance Disot energy hydroit	•	14	•	•	•	•	Z	16	•	16	•	•		•	
6	Ememory Planent Fees	:	:	:	:		9 644	1	10		10	•	•	•	-	•
	and the state of t	•	-	-	•	•	0-0	60	/13	713	•	•	•	•	•	

.

•

•

TLG Sen ices, Inc.

APPENDIX D HUMBOLDT BAY 2006 SAFSTOR DECOMMISSIONING COST (Thousands of 2002 dollars)

.

ID Number	Activity	Decon	Remove	Pack	Ship	Bury	Other	Contingency	Total	Lie Term	Clean	ACF	B CF	C CF	>C CF	Craft Labor Hours
Period 5	Undistributed Costs (continued)															
7	Sile Security	•	•	•	•	-	21	3	24	•	24		•			
8	ISFSI OBM	•	•	•	•	•	179	54	233	233	•		•	•		
9	ISFSI Fixed Costs	•	•	•	•	•	3,563	1,069	4,632	4,632	•	•	•	•		
10	ISFSI Security	•	•	-	•	•	6,876	2,063	8,939	8,939	•	•	•	•	•	
11	NRC ISFSI Fees	•	-	•	•	•	1,700	511	2,211	2,211	•	•	•	•	•	•
Subtotal	Undistributed Costs Period 5	•	714	•	•	•	13.021	3,876	17,611	16,755	856	•	•	•	•	•
Staff Cor	ts															
	DOC Staff Cost	•		•	•	•	497	75	571		571	•				
	Unity Staff Cost	•	•	. .	•	•	1,217	183	1,400	1,260	140	•	•	•	•	•
TOTAL P	ERIOD S	•	1,636	•	•	141	17,091	5,077	23,945	22,094	1,850	-	-	•	14	4,303
TOTAL C	OST TO DECOMMISSION	2,590	30,675	2,929	1,740	47,443	166,541	48,455	300,374	297,248	3,126	81,767	1,321	423	14	334,494

•

.

.

TOTAL COST TO DECOMMISSION WITH	21.04%	Contingency:	\$300,374,371	
TOTAL NRC LICENSE TERMINATION COST IS:	98.96%	OR:	\$297,248,465	
NON-NUCLEAR DEMOLITION COST IS:	1.04%	OR:	\$3,125,906	
TOTAL RADWASTE VOLUME BURIED:			83,524	Cubic Feet
TOTAL CRAFT LABOR REQUIREMENTS:			334,494	Man-hours

NOTES:

.

.

.

C¹ Indicates costs less than \$500 (1) This activity is performed by the decommissioning staff following plant shurdown; the costs for this are included in this period's staff cost. 2) This activity is a milestone 3) 240,775 outcic ket of demoktion debris is disposed of at a controlled site

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix E, Page 1 of 2

APPENDIX E

HUMBOLDT BAY 2006 SAFSTOR CPUC COST DISALLOWANCES DECOMMISSIONING COST

APPENDIX E HUMBODLT BAY 2006 SAFSTOR CPUC COST DISALLOWANCES (Thousands of 2002 dollars)

	Activity	Decon	Remove	Pack	Ship	Bury	Other	Contingency	Total	Lic Term	Clean	ACF	B CF	C CF	>C CF	Craft Labor Hours
Dispos 1.1 1.2 1.3 1	al of Plant Systems Clean Seisme Modifications Containwriated Seismic Modifications Off Gas Modifications Totals	÷	13 60 38 111	- 0 1 1	- 0 1 1	0 12 13	- 25 35 60	2 19 18 39	15 105 106 225	105 106 210	15 - - 15	- 4 87 90	:	:		- 310 1463 891 2963
Period 1 2 Subiola	4 Undistributed Costs Small tool allowance Disposal of DAW generated I of Undistributed Costs	•	87 87	101 101	2 2	61 81	•	13 31 44	100 215 315	90 215 305	10 - 10	581 581	:	:		1579
Demoilit 2.1 2.2 2	tion of Remaining Site Buildings New Off Gas Vault Seismic Modifications Totals	:	79 72 150	:	:	•	:	12 11 23	90 82 173	:	90 82 173	:	:	:		1294 1344 2634
TOTAL	COST TO DECOMMISSION		349	102	3	94	60	105	713	515	198	671				6881

TOTAL COST TO DECOMMISSION WITH	17.32% Cor	tingency:	\$712,869		
TOTAL NRC LICENSE TERMINATION COST IS:	72.26%	OR:	\$515,105		
NON-NUCLEAR DEMOLITION COST IS:	27.74%	OR:	\$197,764		
TOTAL RADWASTE VOLUME BURIED:			671	Cubic Feet	
TOTAL CRAFT LABOR REQUIREMENTS:		•	6,881	Man-hours	

"0" indicates costs less than \$500

TLG Services, Inc.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix F, Page 1 of 9

APPENDIX F

HUMBOLDT BAY 2006 SAFSTOR DECOMMISSIONING SCHEDULE



٠

		1998	1997	1996	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003 200	4 2005	2008	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2016	2016
Period 2				!						_		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	[]							
Radiological Characterization						11/2 2/	21/02		2/13/03	10/14	1/04										
Prepare Specification	and RFP							0		-	•										
Identify Potential Ven	dors							0													
Solicit Vendor Propos	sais							1			:										
Review Bids	•••••••••							1													
Award Contract								۵ 🔶	1/02												
Mobilize Vendor	•••••••••••••							1		1	:										
Develop Sample Plan	1							0			•										
Obtain Samples								۵			:										
Perform Part 61 Anal	yses																				
Generate Final Repo	d										:										
Reactor Vessel Activation An	alyels ••••••					1/	24/02		9/25/02												
Prepare Specification	n and PR							0													
Mobilize Vendor (Sol	e Source WMG																				
Perform Analysis										1											
Cenemie Final Rang																					
Develop Cost, Schedule & W	ork Controls (CS&)							U					•								
Evaluate Available T	ools (software)					11/2	101	\sim	10/25/02	:											
Purchase Appropriat	e Tools						E														
Implement Schedulin	g Tool							U 1			-										
Implement Work Mar	nagement Tool							5		·	:										
Implement Cost Con	trol Tool							n		1											
Develop CS&WC Pr	ocedures										•										
Develop "Level 2" Decommu	sioning Schedule						5/28/02	$\overline{\mathbf{w}}$	10/25/02												
Prepare Draft Sched	ule							1			:	4									
Schedule Review and	d Comments																				
Finalize & Publish Sc	hedule							1													
Develop Site Facilities & Staf	Ing Plan						10/26	~ ~	10/	: 26/03											
				^				······		<u>_</u>											
Project: HBPP3 DECOM Timeline Onte: Tue 2/12/02	Task				Miles	tone				Externa	d Tesks	5.		9 F]	Spilt					_	
	Progress				Sum	nary	7)		Project	Summer	y 🖤			Rolle	d Up Sp	×nt _	• • • • • •	•••••	•	
								Page	2							_					

Humboldt Bay Power Plant Unit 3 Decommissioning Cost Study 2006 SAFSTOR

.

APPENDIX F (continued)

.

APPENDIX F (continued)

•

	t	1098	1997	1990	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004	2005	2008	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2010
sek Neme	ł	<u> </u>	ŀ	<u>ا</u>		با	<u>ل</u> حمد الم	, Fi		·					:							;
Site raciities Plan								. L 6														•
Stating Plan		į				•	10.70	102 C	لننتيم مد (11	17/03										, ,		
		(:					1														ļ
																					:	•
									1				,		;							;
Rolugility Duilding Turblas Canamire and	Auxillaries	1									:											
Raducela Trasimani R	ulidina	۱.	:		:		;	:	ī.			í					;	;				•
LLW Management Plan		١			•		2	14/03	;;=	7 211:	1/04		•		•	•			:	:		:
Prenara LI W Manager	ment Plan	Į	:		:	i		:		i			-		:	:	:	:	-		:	-
DECOM Demonstration Project		ł		:	:	:	:	2	2114/04	Ś	Ž 10/14	rộ4					:	:				:
Determine Project Sco	vpe	1		:	•	•		:		1	:	:	:	:	:		:				:	Ì
Prepare Work Packao	es	1	•	:	:					0	:	i				•	:	;	:	:		•
Perform Dismantle Act	tivity	1							}	۵	:	:	:	:			:		•			
Evaluate Processes &	Adjust	1	:	:	:		:	:	ł	1			Ĩ		:	:	:	•	:	•		
General Planning		1	į				;	; :	2/14/04	$\bar{\infty}$	a/14/0	•	į	:		•						
Decommissioning Design B	19919 1	1	i			;								•	:	:	•	:	•	:		:
Revise Licensing Basis		1	ļ	:		1	:	;	ł	0	:	:	:			i						
Final Decision on ISFSI Const	ruction	1								•	0,1/04		•	:	i	:		:			:	:
Release Decommissioning Tru	nt Pund]		:	:	:		5/5/0	n 🗸	÷	7/2/04											
Prepere Request for Fund	Release	1		•	:	•	•		0			:	:	į	;	;	;	÷		:		
Submit request to CPUC		1	i				:	•	•	7/3/03		:	ł			:		:		-		•
CPUC Review		!							E			•										
Decommissioning Trust	т илта (1919999) 	1			•	:	:		i	•	7/2/04	:	i	:	÷		:		:			:
Iransiron - SAFSTOR to DEC	, y 14 1	ł		į						<u> </u>	7/2/04	1		•	:	:				:		
		ł		:	:				7/2	M	1	12/2011	20		•	:		•				÷
Construct DECUM OTICS Fact	nary R Candom and	4		i	:	-	:	:	11	704 🗸	¥12	1/04	•	:	:	•	:	:	1	ł	ł	•
Raze Emuent Ponds	a cquipment	ł					:			I	:		:	ł	:	:		:	:	:	:	ł
FIII TO Grade & Pave		J								; 1						:		-	-		i	•
Install Office & Asser	nory Area Bidg	<u>Ч</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u>u</u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>		<u> </u>
	Tesk				<u>ч []</u>	Testone		•			Exter		7 3	N. N. P. S.		.		·····				
Date: Tue 2/12/02	Progress					ummary		Č.	Tunnya.		Protec	ti Summ	iary 🕊	<u></u>	<u>ندينده</u> بيا	ات ا Re 🖡	offed Un	Spill	••••	•••••	••••	
<u> </u>	L					́		Par	10 3					<u> </u>								
<u> </u>			·	-																		

APPENDIX F (continued)

Task Nome	,	1998	1997	1998	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004	2005	2008	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2018
Plant Temporary Services									1/2/0	T,	7 12/11	54 E										:
Relocate MEPP Equi	pment									4												:
Radiological Laborate	ory										1											
Construction Power											1) •
Access Control Facil	ity] :											
Waste Handiing Faci	lites																					
Temporary Control R	00171																					
General	•••••••••••								7/2/0	0	17 4/2	/05										
Review Plant Drawings &	Specifications										Ň											•
Perform SER and EA																						
Prepare/Submit License T	emination Plan									19												
Activity Specifications	***********								7/2/0	Ō		2/05										•
Planning and Site Preparation	na								1/2/0		7 120	5										:
Detailed Work Procedures									9/2	04 U		2/31/05										
Undistributed Costs	••••••••••								7/2/0	0		6/31/05										
Period 3 DECOM Staff	••••••								1/2/0	ò		2/31/05										:
Period 3 staff expense													•									i
Period 4 • Facility Dismantie	•••••									8/11					- - -							
Turbine-Generator & Auxiliar	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••									471			20.04	•								
Tö 1-2 Main Generator & 1	Excitor									0/31		\sim	30/08									
TB1-1 Main Turbine	•••••••••••										: Ig											
TB2-1 Main Condenser	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •																					:
TB2-2 Seal OI Unit/Excite	r Swiichgeer																					i
TB1-3 Hydrogen Yard	•••••••••••		-																			
TB3-3 2400/480V Transfo																						, ,
TB3-1 Reactor Feed Pum	pLube OWAIr Syste																					
784-1 Laundry Drain Tani	VPipe Tunnel										E E											
T84-2 Pipe Gallery	•••••••		:																			
TB1 Main T-G/H2 Yard De	contamination											U I										
TB2 Condenser/30 Room	Decontamination																					;
··										<u> </u>												
Project: HBPP3 DECOM Timelos	Task				Miles	tone		•			Eutomot	Terla	14.2									
Data: Tue 2/12/02	Progress				Sum	many		₹ 7000			Example Destant 4	. 19375 19975	. U <u>sv</u>	<u></u>	1. e	Spill		•	• • • • •	••••	••	
								Pant		<u> </u>						Rolle	d Up S	om .	•••••	•••••	••	
	- <u>-</u>	_																	_			

TLG Services, Inc.

.

APPENDIX F (continued)

lask Neme	ŀ	1996	1997	1990	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004	2005	2008	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2010
TB3 RFP ROOMPEQ Roo	m Decon				· · ·		:							• •			<u> </u>			L		<u> </u>
TB4 Pipe Tunnel Decontai	mination																					•
T85-1 Anion/Cation/Resin	Tanka										П											:
TB5-2 Condensate Demin	eratzera										. U 											-
TBS-1 Air Ejector/Gland 8	ell Condenser										ч 1											•
186-2 Vacuum Pump/Con	densate Pumpe																					
TBP Turbine Bidg Embedd	led Piping											ព										
TB5 Cond Demin Room D	•con																					
TBS Cond Pump/AE Room	Decon																					
TB3-2 Propene Engine Ge	nerator																					
T87-1 Main Control Room	•••••																					•
TB7-6 Demineralizer Cont	of Panel										 1											
TB7-2 Instrument Repetro	Counting Room																					
T87-3 Locker Room/Peric	nnel Decon																					
TB7-4 Hol Lab	•••••																			,		
TB7-6 Hot Lab Attic	····																					
TB7-7 RP Office/Counting	Room											3										
TB7 Control Room/Demin	Hell Decon																					
Hot Machine Shop	•••••										iene (
HM31-1 Hot Machine Sho	p Equipment										1 arus		30/00									•
HMS 1-2 Cellbration Fectilit	y Equipment											U T										•
HMSP Hot Machine Shop	Embedded Piping																					
HMS Decontamination	•••••																					
Receive NRC Aprovel of Terr	ninetion Pien																					
Puel to ISFSI	•••••												2200									
Refueling Building	******										5/22/06		2200									
RB2-1 Elev -2, Suppressi	n Pool Cooler										_	Ť		\sim	13/08							:
RB3-1 Cleanup Heat Exch	uangera											B										
RB2-2 Elev -14, Manith	•••••••••••											8										-
R84-1 Shutdown Heat Ex	changers/Pumps	i																				
				•	·		·	i					<u> </u>		<u> </u>							<u> </u>
Toject HBPP3 DECOM Timeline	Task		RCHINE		Me	itone				1	External	Taska	3.0	L 1-1	10.00	Som						_
	Progress				Sum	mary	7				Project S	ອີນາກກະຕຸ	y 🐺		 H	Rolle	d Un Si	e Nit	*****	****	••	
	•							Page	5					_				•	*****		••	
							•·	_														

APPENDIX F (continued)

		1996	1997	1998	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004	2005	2008	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2018
Isk Name RB1-1 Emergency Condense												n										
Remove Spent Fuel Racks	•••••																					.]
Fuel Pool Cleanup												ถ										
RB1-4 SFP Pumps/Filters	••••••											n										
RB3-2 New Fuel Storage/Fu	el Pool Coolers											Ĩ										:
RB4-2 TBDT/Floor Drain Pur	mpti																					
R81-6 Laydown/Cask Wash	down							•				0										
R81-3 Cask Shipping Area	••••••							:		•		1										
Reactor Vessel Removal	•••••										-	1	88	:	-			•	•			
RB1-6 Reactor Vessol Cavit	A.		•	:	:	:	:	:		•			0			•	:		•			
R81-2 Spent Fuel Pool				-								-	i I	1								:
RB2-3 Elev -24, CRD Hydra	tulic Filters		:	1	-				•		•	•	1					•		-	1	
RB2-4 Elev -34, Suppressio	n Pool Access						i	:	:	:		:	Į I	÷	į							
RB2-6 Elev -44, CRD Piping	9		•	•	:	ł	į	į					0		1	:		-	į	-	:	•
R82-8 Elev - 54, CRD Trp /	Accumulators		•	:	:		į	ł	i									1		:	į	:
RB2-7 Elev -66, Calsson S	ump, REDT				:	:	•			ļ	:		: _	LI .	i	÷	•	i				
RB2-8 Suppression Pool + I	North	ł							1	ł	:	:				:	:	:	:	i	÷	÷
RE2-9 Suppression Pool +	500m	}	•	•									Ľ	н П.	ł		•	•	•	:	:	•
RB2 Access ShafVSC Dec	ontamination	1												់ព		:	•	į		:	:	•
RB1 RFB +12 Decontamin	ation .	{			ł	;	;							ា	•							
RB3 Cleanup HX/NFSV D	contamination	ł	1		1		:				:			Ĩ	÷		:	÷	-	i		
RB4 Shutdown HX/TBDT (Decontermination	1												i.	-	1	•	1	1	•	•	į
R85-1 RF8 Root/HVAC	• • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1	:							÷		•								:		
Yard	• • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1		1	-			1	ł		4/30/	×7			7 8/18/	8	-	•		-		
YD1-2 CCW Heat Exchan	gers/Pumps	1	į		İ						i	1										
YD2-1 Stack - Elevation 0	• 0*	1		1	:		;			:	:	İ									:	:
YD2-2 Stack - Elevation 1	2.0	1					:			1		1				ł	1		ł	•		
YD2-3 Stack - Elevation 2	6 • 0 [•]]										1								•		
YD2-4 Condensate/Demin	Water Tank]								<u>.</u>		1					:					
	Test	ر روا			33						Eator	nal Tarl	. [7									
Project: H8PP3 DECOM Timeline Date: Tue 2/12/02	Propress						,				Prote	ct Sume	⊶ Li narv∎			L SI	offed 1 in	Som				
				_						<u> </u>					·	✓ ^						
									10.0													-

.

.

.

APPENDIX F (continued)

····		1998	1997	1998	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004	2005	2008	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2010	l
ynz & Gaserus Raderasta H	Notice Turned			<u> </u>				<u> </u>					<u> </u>	:									l
YD1-3 CWP Discharge Pipin	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,											R											
YD1-6 Intake Structure												1		•									j
YD1-4 Discharge Canal	• • • • • • • • • • •																	•					
Contaminated Soll Removal										•				888								:	
Reptacement of Drains & Ca	ich Basins											:	E			•	•		-	•			l
YD2-5 Plant Exhuast Fan												-	1	0	-			:					Į.
YDP Yard Embedded Piping					•								ļ	Į I									
YD1 South Yard Area Decor					:	:		:			•	:						•					1
YD2 North Yard Area Decon									•			:	-	<u> </u>	:	:	•	:	:	:	:	:	ļ
Redweste Treatment Building			;									8/3	107		5/4/08			1	:	-		•	
RW1-1 RW8 - Concentrator	(Pumps/Filters	1	1			•				:		:			:	•	:		į				l
RW1-2 RWB WING ROOM	8/711040 8/1×18	1						1	•	:	•	•		lt.	:		:		•		:	•	l
RW1-4 Concentrated Wash	- Tanka	ł						-	ł	ł	į	1	:	t A	•	:	ļ		:		:	:	ł
RW1-6 Resh Disposal Tan		1							-		1	:	-	i R	:	:	1	1	-	ł		:	ł
RW1-6 Upper Elevation - R	W8	1	į	į		į	į		•			ŀ											
RW1-7 Redweste Handling	Building	1	:			ł	į		:		•	ł	1	Ĩ		:	:	:	:			•	1
RW1-8 Low Level Waste S	lorage Building	1								:		1	:	i	:	1	į	1	}	-	:	•	ļ
RW1-8 Solid Waste Vault		1		į	i	•	•							ij									l
RWP Radwasta Embedded	l Piping	1	:	:	:	:		;		:	;	į	ł	i.	:	;	•	:		ł	i	:	ł
RW1 Radwaste Blog Deco	n]			•	:	:	:	:	•	:		•	1	÷	:	:	-		-		:	
Building Demoittion	<i>.</i>]									-	:	:		J į	ł	1		1	-	•	1	ļ
License Termination													9/	26/08 (<i>Υ</i> ''	27/09	-						J
	Survey 																						ļ
NRC Confirmation Survey	•••••••	1													• 12/ .n	27/08							ļ
NRC Termination of Lice	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	4		i	;	:		•	•	;	:	ł	į		₩ ▲ •	27/00		•		÷			Į
Undistributed Costs								1		8/3		;	:			27/09				:		:	
Period 4 DECOM Staff	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·									6/3	11/05	2			Ž "	27/09		;					J
		 771														<u>.</u>		_					-
Project: HBPP3 DECOM Timeline Dete: Tue 2/12/02	(ESR Programs		<u>uuuu</u> t		出 M ■ s	*/1072395					Exten	nël Tësi ci Sum-	Ki [2 11807 ₩	THELL	<u>att</u>	[] S] •	olleri i L	5010	••••	• • • • •	••••		
									• 7	<u> </u>													-
L	···		·								·												_

.

TLG Services, Inc.

•

.

•

		1004	1007	1004	1000	3000	2004	L ANAL	1 4444	1 4044	1 444.8 1	A044		1								
Test; Neme		1994	1441	Tived	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016
Period 4 staff expense								:	:	:					<u></u>							
Period 5 - Site Restoration													• 1	27/09		/13/09						
Site Closeout Activities													1	27/09	7	11/09						
Backin Site	•••••							:							n							
Grade and Landscape Site	••••••														l I							
Final Report to NRC															ā							
Undistributed Costa								:					1	27/09	$\overline{\mathcal{D}}$	13/09						
Period & DECOM Staff													1	: 127/09 (13/00						
Period 5 staff expense	• • • • • • • •							:	:													
									-			, '					·····					J
																						•
												•										
													•									
			•																			
	•																					
													•									
			·																			
•																						
					_																	
Project: H8PP3 DECOM Timeline Task.					Mile	stone		♦ .			External	Tasks	14		· (4.)	Spit	1					
Progn	***				Sun		ا 			∇	Project S	Summar	y 🛡			Roll	ed Up S	ρint _			••	
·								Page	8													

APPENDIX F (continued)

.

Humboldt Bay Power Plant Unit 3 Decommissioning Cost Study 2006 SAFSTOR

. *.

Document P01-1421-002, Rev. 0 Appendix F, Page 9 of 9

California Public Utilities Commission Decision 03-10-014

U

..

÷

ALJ/JPO/sid

Mailed 10/9/2003

Decision 03-10-014 October 2, 2003

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Application of Pacific Gas and Electric Company in its 2002 Nuclear Decommissioning Cost Triennial Proceeding.

(U 39 E)

Application 02-03-020 (Filed March 15, 2002)

<u>Robert B. Mc Lennan</u>, Attorney at Law, for Pacific Gas and Electric Company, applicant. <u>Gregory Heiden</u>, Attorney at Law, for the Office of Ratepayer Advocates; <u>Scott L. Fielder</u>, Attorney at Law, for the Surfrider Foundation; and <u>Bob Finkelstein</u>, Attorney at Law; and Bill Marcus for The Utility Reform Network; interested parties.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Title

ś

(

ł,

OPINION	2
I. Summary	2
II. Background	3
III. Overview	4
IV. Utility-Specific Issues	5
A. Diablo Canyon Decommissioning Cost Estimate	5
B. Humboldt Decommissioning Costs and O&M Expenses	6`
C. Early and Partial Decommissioning of Humboldt	7
D. Equity Turnover Assumption	8
V. Common Issues	10
A. Rate of Return	10
B. Escalation Rate	14
C. LLRW Burial Costs	20
D. Contingency Factors	22
VI. Conclusion	26
VII. Rate Proposal	27
VIII. Procedural Matters	28
IX. Comments on Proposed Decision	28
X. Assignment of Proceeding	29
Findings of Fact	29
Conclusions of Law	34
ORDER	37

OPINION

I. Summary

The purpose of this nuclear decommissioning cost triennial proceeding (NDCTP) is to set the annual revenue requirements for the decommissioning trusts for nuclear power plants owned by Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E).

For 2003, PG&E requests an annual revenue requirement of \$24.034 million for decommissioning Diablo Canyon Power Plant Units 1 and 2 (Diablo Canyon). PG&E also requests an annual revenue requirement of \$17.511 million for decommissioning Humboldt Bay Power Plant Unit 3 (Humboldt). In addition, PG&E requests \$8.254 million for Humboldt SAFESTOR O&M.¹ The resulting annual revenue requirement is \$49.799 million.

By this decision, we find that the trust funds for Diablo Canyon are sufficient to pay for its eventual decommissioning. In addition, we set the annual revenue requirement for Humboldt at \$18.450 million. The primary reasons for the differences between the requested and adopted numbers are different adopted rates of return for the trusts, cost escalation rates, contingency factors, and low level radioactive waste (LLRW) burial costs. We also grant PG&E's request for a revenue requirement of \$8.254 million for Humboldt SAFESTOR O&M. The total adopted annual revenue requirement of \$26.704

- 2 -

¹ SAFSTOR is a decommissioning alternative in which the nuclear facility is placed and maintained in a condition that allows it to be safely stored and subsequently decontaminated. O&M stands for operations and maintenance expenses.

Ć

million is a \$4.48 million decrease from the currently adopted revenue requirement of \$31.2 million.

In addition to the above revenue requirement, we find that the \$0.95 million expenditure for Humboldt decommissioning costs incurred above the \$15.7 million authorized in Resolution E-3503 was reasonable, and authorize PG&E to recover the costs from the Humboldt decommissioning cost trusts. We also order the \$3.5 million and \$3.85 million Humboldt decommissioning projects authorized in Resolution E-3737 to be reviewed for reasonableness in the next NDCTP, after they have been completed.

II. Background

Application (A.) 02-03-039 is the application of Southern California Edison Company (SCE) and San Diego Gas and Electric Company (SDG&E) for their 2002 NDCTP. Combined hearings were held for both the instant application and A.03-03-039, although the proceedings were not consolidated. The purpose of the combined hearings was to address issues common to both proceedings in a single set of hearings. In this way, a record was developed that allows the Commission to treat common issues consistently. Therefore, the testimony and exhibits of PG&E, SCE, SDG&E, and the Commission's Office of Ratepayer Advocates (ORA) regarding common issues are included in the record for both applications. The testimony and exhibits regarding utility specific issues are included only in the application to which they pertain.

SCE and SDG&E are not parties to this application. However, they participated in the development of the record. The Surfrider Foundation, and The Utility Reform Network are parties to this proceeding. However, they did not provide testimony or exhibits, cross-examine witnesses, or file briefs in this proceeding. Therefore, the term "parties," as used in the balance of this

- 3 -

proceeding, refers to the active parties, PG&E and ORA. In addition, the term "participants" refers to PG&E, SCE, SDG&E, and ORA.

Trust fund contribution levels and the resulting revenue requirements are calculated using complex computer models. The models are first used to estimate the decommissioning costs in current dollars. The decommissioning costs are then escalated to the future years in which they will occur. The models then use the current trust fund balances, and estimated future earnings, to estimate the trust fund contributions necessary to pay the decommissioning costs when they occur. The models then determine the revenue requirement needed to provide the contributions. The disputed issues in this proceeding concern model inputs and assumptions as addressed below.

III. Overview

PG&E is requesting the following revenue requirements:

Diablo Canyon Decommissioning	\$24.034 million
Humboldt Nuclear Decommissioning	\$17.511 million
Humboldt SAFSTOR O&M	<u>\$ 8.254² million</u>
Total Request	\$49.799 million

- 4 -

² In its application, PG&E requested \$7.343 million. It revised the request to include \$669,000 in additional direct post 9/11 security costs and \$200,000 for Department of Energy Decontamination and Decommissioning fees for federal facilities used to produce nuclear fuel, plus the addition of franchise fees and uncollectibles, and administrative and general costs.

IV. Utility-Specific Issues

Ę

Ć

A. Diablo Canyon Decommissioning Cost Estimate

PG&E's Diablo Canyon decommissioning cost estimate assumes that Diablo Canyon Unit 1 will be shut down in 2021, and Unit 2 shut down in 2025. PG&E estimated decommissioning costs using two methodologies: DECON, which is where radioactive contaminants are removed or decontaminated shortly after cessation of operations; and SAFSTOR. PG&E estimates that the DECON alternative will cost \$1.377 billion (in 2002 dollars) over a 20-year period starting in 2021, and that SAFSTOR will cost \$1.363 billion (in 2002 dollars) over a 41-year period. In this proceeding, PG&E selected the DECON alternative, which results in removal of the Diablo Canyon units more quickly.

ORA does not oppose the decommissioning cost study upon which PG&E's estimate is based. However, ORA does oppose PG&E's contingency factor, rates of return, escalation rates, and low level radioactive waste (LLRW) burial cost estimates. These issues are addressed later in this decision under Common Issues.

ORA points out that PG&E informed the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) that it is fully funded regarding the NRC's minimum requirements for decommissioning Diablo Canyon, and needed no further funding at this time. While PG&E admits that it made the statement, it explains that the NRC's minimum requirements include only the costs associated with radiological decommissioning. In addition, the calculation of the decommissioning costs is required to be based on a 1986 cost estimate provided by the NRC. Thus while PG&E says that Diablo Canyon decommissioning is fully funded as far as the NRC's requirements are concerned, PG&E says its

ĺ

(

estimate in this proceeding is based on a site-specific study that uses current estimated costs, and includes non-radiological decommissioning and site restoration. As a result, the scope of work and, therefore, the resulting decommissioning cost, is significantly greater than required by the NRC.

The NRC's requirements are far more limited than those addressed herein. We find that PG&E's statement to the NRC does not contradict its statements in this proceeding, and has no bearing on this proceeding.

B. Humboldt Decommissioning Costs and O&M Expenses

Humboldt is currently in SAFSTOR mode following its shutdown in 1976. PG&E studied two alternatives: decommissioning starting in 2015, at a cost of \$362 million in 2002 dollars; and early decommissioning starting in 2006 at an approximate cost of \$300 million in 2002 dollars. PG&E recommends the early decommissioning alternative, which removes non-fuel related radioactive materials, while waiting for the federal Department of Energy to be able to take delivery of spent fuel. Since early decommissioning is less costly, we will adopt PG&E's recommendation.

ORA does not oppose the decommissioning cost study upon which PG&E's estimate is based. However, ORA does oppose PG&E's contingency factor, escalation rates, rates of return, and LLRW burial cost estimates. These issues are addressed later in this decision under Common Issues.

PG&E requests authority to recover the direct costs of its SAFESTOR O&M expenses for Humboldt for 2003 that it estimates to be \$8.254 million. It also requests authority to adjust the administrative, general, tax, and allocated common plant amounts in this calculation in its 2003 general rate case. In addition, PG&E requests attrition for its SAFESTOR O&M expenses in the

- 6 -

amounts of \$218,000 for 2004, and \$ 230,000 for 2005. ORA does not oppose these requests. Since the requests are unopposed, we will grant them.

C. Early and Partial Decommissioning of Humboldt

PG&E has already commenced early decommissioning activities at Humboldt. In Resolution E-3503, adopted December 3, 1997, the Commission authorized PG&E to spend \$15.7 million on three decommissioning activities: mitigation of caisson in-leakage; removal and replacement of the ventilation stack; and a site radiological survey to support the decommissioning cost study. The Commission also found it reasonable to use the decommissioning trust funds to finance the three projects.

In Advice Letter 2095-E, submitted on March 28, 2001, PG&E requested authority to draw not more than \$8.3 million from the Humboldt Bay decommissioning trust funds to finance three additional decommissioning expense categories: \$0.95 million for decommissioning costs incurred above the \$15.7 million authorized in Resolution E-3503; \$3.5 million for additional design and licensing expenditures above the \$7 million authorized in Decision (D.) 00-02-046; and \$3.85 million for preparatory activities during 2001 through 2003 in anticipation of early transition from SAFESTOR to decontaminated status in 2004. In Resolution E-3737, adopted October 10, 2001, the Commission found it reasonable to use the decommissioning trust funds to finance the proposed projects. The request was approved in part subject to review of the requested expenditures in this proceeding, and subject to refund of any imprudent and unreasonable expenditures. The \$3.5 million and \$3.85 million requests were approved subject to the above provisions. The \$0.95 million request was denied,

without prejudice, until reviewed for prudence and reasonableness in this proceeding.

The three projects addressed in Resolution E-3503 were completed. The \$0.95 million increase was primarily due to higher-than-expected levels of radiation in the suppression chamber, which required an expansion of the scope of the project, and increased costs for removal of the ventilation stack. ORA does not oppose PG&E's request to use the nuclear decommissioning trust funds to pay the \$0.95 million in costs.

PG&E and ORA agree that the \$3.5 million and \$3.85 million activities authorized in Resolution E-3737 have not been completed. They also agree that the unfinished projects should be reviewed for reasonableness in the next NDCTP, after they have been completed.

Discussion

As recommended by the PG&E and ORA, we find that the \$0.95 million expenditure was reasonable, and PG&E should be authorized to use the trust funds to pay for the expenditure. In addition, we find that the unfinished projects should be reviewed for reasonableness in the next NDCTP, after they have been completed.

D. Equity Turnover Assumption

In order to determine the net returns the trust funds will earn each year, it is necessary to make an assumption as to the amount of taxable capital gains that will be realized on equities during the year. This, in turn, necessitates an assumption as to the amount of equities sold each year.

PG&E assumed that 100% of the equities will be sold each year. It says that this assumption was adopted by the Commission in D.00-02-046. PG&E asserts that one cannot accurately predict when a portfolio manager will choose

- 8 -

to sell a particular stock and take a capital gain or loss. PG&E's conservative approach is to assume that all of the trusts' equities are sold each year. This results in all of the annual gains or losses being taxed each year. Additionally, taxes are paid annually on all income and interest to the trust.

ORA points out that PG&E's forecast assumes that all trust fund earnings are taxed each year although, in reality, capital gains are only taxed when securities are sold. It argues that PG&E's assumptions ignore the benefits of deferring taxes by holding securities for a longer term. Therefore, PG&E's methodology overestimates actual taxes, causing an underestimation of future fund balances. ORA claims that PG&E's estimates do not accurately reflect how its funds are actually managed and taxed. For example, although PG&E fully taxes the trusts each year in its estimates, there will be no significant withdrawals from the decommissioning funds until 2021 and 2023, which means that, in reality, there will not be any significant capital gains until then. ORA believes that PG&E's approach does not accurately describe how the funds will actually be managed.

Discussion

Ę

PG&E's assumption of a 100% annual equity turnover rate is overly conservative. For 1999 through 2002, PG&E's annual equity turnover rate ranged from 18% to 27% for qualified trusts, with an average of 24%.³ For 2000 through 2002, its annual equity turnover rate ranged from 18% to 49% for non-qualified

³ There are two types of trusts. Qualified trusts hold decommissioning funds that result from contributions that qualify for an income tax deduction under U.S. Internal Revenue Code Section 468A. Nonqualified trusts hold decommissioning funds that result from other contributions.

trusts, with an average of 29%. PG&E has given us no reason to believe that future equity turnover rates will be substantially different from the recorded turnover rates. Therefore, we will assume a 24% annual turnover rate for equities in the qualified trusts, and 29% for equities in the non-qualified trusts. For any year in which a higher amount of equities will need to be sold to pay for decommissioning costs, the higher amount should be used.

V. Common Issues

Į

A. Rate of Return

For estimating the earnings of the nuclear decommissioning trusts, PG&E estimates an 11.0% pre-tax return on equities and a 7.0% pre-tax return on its fixed income assets. SCE estimates a pre-tax return on equities of between 7.42% and 10.11%, and a pre-tax return on fixed income assets of between 4.21% and 6.03%. SDG&E estimates a pre-tax return on equities of 7.42%, and a pre-tax return on fixed income assets of 6.03%. ORA recommends a 12.5% pre-tax return on equities and a 7.4% pre-tax return on fixed income assets.

PG&E's equity return forecast is based on the annualized rate of return for the U.S. equity market over rolling 10-year periods covering 80 years, from 1920 through 2001. PG&E believes that forecasts of long-term market returns are traditionally based on historic market experience over very long time periods, and it is preferable to include more data points where available to decrease the variance in the results. In PG&E's last general rate case (D.00-02-046), the Commission adopted an 11.0% pre-tax return on equities. PG&E believes an 11.0% pre-tax return on equities remains a reasonable and conservative forecast. In D.00-02-046, the Commission also adopted a 7.0% pre-tax return on the fixed income portion of PG&E's trusts. PG&E recommends the same value in this proceeding.
i

SCE used two sets of return assumptions to establish a range of contributions to its decommissioning trust funds for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station Units 2 and 3 (SONGS 2&3) and Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station Units 1, 2, and 3 (Palo Verde). The first set of assumptions relies on DRI-WEFA (DRI)⁴ projections for: (1) the Standard & Poor's (S&P) 500 Stock Price Index, and (2) the dividend yield for the S&P 500 Stock Index, to calculate future equity returns. SCE maintains that when compared to estimates derived from historical data, DRI's Treasury bond yield projections are too high relative to their inflation projection, and DRI's estimate of future equity returns is too low. Therefore, it constructed an alternative set of return assumptions that adjust Treasury bond yield projections and future equity returns to reflect historical relationships. SCE believes that its two sets of return assumptions bound expected returns for the decommissioning trust funds.

SDG&E argues that it does not make sense to adopt identical rate of return assumptions for itself, SCE and PG&E because each company has its own separate and independent decommissioning trusts with portfolios of hundreds of different domestic and international stocks. Moreover, each company has different investment committees with different risk tolerances. As a result of these differences, the three utilities may choose different portfolio asset allocations, investment strategies, and investment advisors, all of which will impact the realized investment rates of return.

SDG&E used DRI projections as the basis for computing expected equity and fixed-income asset returns. SDG&E maintains that DRI forecasts

⁴ DRI is a company that provides economic forecasts.

ί

should be consistently used in determining funding requirements. It believes that using DRI forecasts consistently over time provides the Commission with a consistent gauge to assess performance, and provides fewer opportunities for gaming that could occur if methodologies are changed every three years.

Specifically, DRI projects that the average annual pre-tax return for the S&P 500 and 10-year Treasury bonds will average 7.42% and 6.03%, respectively, from 2002 through 2026, which covers the period that contributions will be made (through 2013) to the decommissioning trusts.⁵ SDG&E says the DRI forecast is also consistent with equity projections from a variety of investment professionals.

ORA recommends a 12.5% pre-tax return on equities, and a 7.4% pretax return for fixed income investments. ORA's 12.5% pre-tax return on equities is derived from the 48-year (1954-2001) average annual return for the S&P 500 of 12.77%. ORA contends that evaluating historic performance beginning in 1954, after the Federal Recerve removed its cap on government debt rates, creates a more reliable historic record than using data beginning before the Great Depression, as PG&E has done. Furthermore, using 1954 as a starting date allows analysis of 10-year Treasury bond data.

ORA says the Commission should not adopt PG&E's rate of return assumptions when the historic results have been much higher. ORA points out that PG&E's estimates are lower than readily available investment options such as tax-free municipal bonds. ORA believes its 7.4% pre-tax return for fixed

⁵ SDG&E expects to collect decommissioning contributions only through 2013 (through the end of operations), although it will continue to invest in equities until commencement of decommissioning.

income investments is comparable to the DRI forecast, current municipal bond rates, and actual performance of the trust funds.

While ORA does not oppose SCE's methods, it does oppose SDG&E's methods. SDG&E relied exclusively on DRI long-term forecasts. In contrast, ORA says that SCE's rate of return estimate uses DRI and its own estimates to forecast its decommissioning fund performance. ORA says SCE's approach is preferable because it incorporates consideration of the historical premium for equity risk that it believes has virtually disappeared in the DRI projections.

ORA also says that SDG&E did not back-test the DRI projections for accuracy. DRI's short-term equity performance forecast from the 1998 NDCTP did not forecast the current state of the equities market. ORA believes that using the DRI projections alone, without any adjustments for historical risk premium, is not a good methodology.

Discussion

As pointed out by SDG&E, each utility has its own separate and independent decommissioning trust portfolios. In addition, each utility has different investment committees with different risk tolerances. As a result of these differences, SCE, SDG&E, and PG&E's realized investment rates of return will be different. However, in this proceeding, none of the participants has indicated specifically how these factors are incorporated into its estimates. In addition, the three utilities' trusts will have access to the same markets. As a result, their trusts will have the same investment opportunities. Therefore, we will adopt a uniform set of rate of return projections for all three utilities.

For equity returns, there is merit in using long-term historical data as used by PG&E and ORA. However, their presentations demonstrate that selection of which data to use can give quite different results. In contrast to the

- 13 -

1

Ę

historical data, the DRI forecasts, which SDG&E and SCE use in different ways, yield much lower returns. No participant has demonstrated that its estimate is substantially better than the rest. The midpoint of the range of values recommended by the participants is below the 11.0% pre tax return on equities we adopted for PG&E in D.00-02-046.⁶ This leads us to believe that some reduction is appropriate. Therefore, we will adopt a 10.5% pre-tax return on equities, which is slightly above the midpoint of the range of values estimated by the participants.

Regarding fixed assets, no participant has demonstrated that its estimate is substantially better than the rest. Since the midpoint of the range of values recommended by the participants is below the 7.0% pre tax return on fixed assets we adopted for PG&E in D.00-02-046, some reduction is appropriate. Therefore, we will adopt a 6.0% pre-tax return on fixed assets, which is slightly above the midpoint of the range of values estimated by the participants.

B. Escalation Rate

The escalation rate is used to bring the current estimate of decommissioning costs to the future years in which the costs will be incurred.

PG&E calculated the simple average of the escalation rates for labor, LLRW burial costs, contract labor, materials, and other costs to arrive at an annual escalation rate. It then added a 20% contingency factor to arrive at its recommended overall escalation rate.

PG&E's escalation rates, except for LLRW burial costs, are based on DRI forecasts. The DRI forecasts do not extend beyond 2023. Therefore, PG&E

⁶ The current trust fund contribution levels for SCE and SDG&E were adopted in D.99-06-007. That decision approved a settlement and, therefore, is not a precedent.

used a DRI forecast to calculate escalation rates until 2023, and used the 2023 rate for subsequent years. It represents that its labor, materials, contract labor and other escalation rates are comparable to the most recent DRI forecasts.

PG&E believes that using a weighted average rate simply adds false precision to a highly speculative estimate. PG&E says that its methodology is the same as was used to calculate the overall escalation rate used by PG&E, and adopted by the Commission in D.00-02-046.

PG&E added a 20% contingency factor to come up with its overall escalation rate.⁷ PG&E states that the contingency factor ensures against future ratepayer liabilities by recognizing uncertainties with regard to changes in the economy, and protects against uncertainties in how much decommissioning costs may increase in the future.

PG&E recommends a 7.5% LLRW burial cost escalation rate for use in this proceeding as it was in D.00-02-046. PG&E says it is uncertain where the LLRW will be buried, and how much it is going to cost. PG&E believes that since the uncertainty is even greater now, with the Ward Valley disposal site stalled, and other sites about to stop taking California LLRW, a 7.5% LLRW burial cost escalation rate is a conservative and reasonable assumption.

SCE and SDG&E (the utilities) calculated separate escalation rates for: (1) labor, (2) the combined category of material, equipment, and other, and (3) LLRW burial costs. They based the separate escalation rates for labor, and the combined category of material, equipment, and other upon DRI projections. The

⁷ In D.00-02-046, the Commission adopted a 25% contingency factor.

Í

ì

escalation rate for the combined category of material, equipment, and other was based on a weighted average of the escalation rates for each component.

The utilities used Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) published data to estimate an escalation rate for LLRW burial costs. The NRC data shows rapidly increasing burial costs followed by large, discrete jumps. The utilities utilized two similar statistical models to produce ten estimates ranging from 6.8% to 19.9%. They then chose a 10% LLRW burial cost escalation rate because of the possibility of additional large jumps in LLRW burial costs.

The utilities did not include a separate contingency factor in their calculation of escalation rates.

ORA argues that an unweighted average escalation rate makes no statistical sense, and overestimates actual escalation. ORA maintains that PG&E's unweighted calculation gives a 20% weighting to each of the five categories. However, the equipment and materials category accounts for 29%, and the "other" category accounts for 6% of actual expenditures, rather than the 20% used by PG&E for these two categories. ORA contends that this proves the inaccuracy of using an unweighted average. As a result, ORA recommends that a weighted average, based on expenditures, be used.

ORA also says that PG&E's use of the 2023 value for years after 2023, when using DRI forecasts in calculating an average escalation rate, gives undue weight to the 2023 value. It points out that, while the escalation rates in the earlier years have some relation to historic costs, the years after 2023 are not based on any independent forecast.

ORA contends that PG&E relied on a DRI forecast from 2001 in generating the labor escalation rate, and that a more recent DRI forecast yields

- 16 -

ţ

(

Ę

significantly lower numbers. Therefore, ORA recommends that the Commission adopt the most recent DRI data.

ORA also says that PG&E's request for an additional 20% contingency factor is redundant since an overall contingency factor is already built into its decommissioning cost estimate.

ORA recommends a 5% escalation rate for LLRW burial costs. This is because burial costs increased only 2.4% from 1996 to the present, and only 4.3% from 2000 to 2001. ORA says that PG&E's only rationale for using a 7.5% burial cost escalation rate is that the Commission has previously adopted it.

ORA also opposes the utilities' proposed 10% LLRW burial cost escalation rate. It says the utilities relied entirely on NRC disposal cost indexes from 1986 to 2000, but did not attempt to independently verify the data. It believes that a reasonable cost escalation projection should consider additional factors to help explain a data set, and should look beyond the numbers to determine causes for their variation, as well as possible future developments. ORA says the utilities performed no such evaluation, and did not inquire as to why certain years were missing from the NRC data, or why the costs jumped significantly in certain years.

ORA maintains that the utilities' choice of data is not representative of future costs. ORA says the data used by the utilities, from three disposal sites for the period 1986-2000, reflects non-competitive disposal pricing. It also says that more recent data under more competitive conditions for Barnwell in South Carolina, and Envirocare in Utah, including contracted San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station Unit 1 (SONGS 1) LLRW burial costs, were not considered in the utilities' estimate. ORA believes the utilities have projected the most

١,

(

l

expensive possible future scenario without consideration of the prospect of a more competitive market for burial of LLRW.

Discussion

While we agree with PG&E that we are dealing with a highly speculative estimate, that is no reason to deliberately introduce an error into the calculation. ORA has demonstrated that the actual expenditures do not support the equal weighting that results from a simple average. In addition, the utilities used a weighted average. Therefore, except for LLRW burial costs, we will require the use of a weighted average.

The participants agree that a DRI forecast should be used to forecast escalation rates, except for LLRW burial costs. The disagreement appears to be over which forecast to use. Here again, although forecasts of the future are speculative by nature, it makes sense to use the most recent available forecasts. Therefore, we will use the DRI forecasts used by ORA, which are the most recent DRI forecasts in the record.

We note that the DRI forecasts run only through 2023. When determining an average escalation rate for a forecast period, PG&E uses the 2023 rate for subsequent unforecasted years. However, as pointed out by ORA, this approach gives additional weight to the last forecasted year. There is no reason that the forecast for 2023 is any better than the forecast for other years. Therefore, the average rate for the forecast period shall be used for the subsequent unforecasted years. This means that the rate for 2024, and each year thereafter, would be the average of the rates for 2002-2023.

We adopt contingency factors for cost estimates when the work to be done may change substantially over time due to such things as changing NRC requirements. This is the case with the decommissioning cost estimate.

- 18 -

ĺ

ļ

However, the escalation rate is an estimate of the rate of change in the cost of specified work. The Commission routinely adopts forecasts of cost increases, in general rate cases for example, without applying contingency factors. Since the risk of substantial changes in the work to be done and the requirements that must be met to do the work is covered by the contingency factor applied to the decommissioning cost estimate, there is no reason to apply a separate contingency factor to the calculation of the escalation rate. We also note that the utilities are not requesting one. Therefore, we will not adopt a separate contingency factor for escalation rates.

Regarding the LLRW burial cost escalation rate, the utilities estimate a 10% rate based on economic modeling of NRC data, PG&E proposes a 7.5% escalation rate based on our previous adoption of it, and ORA proposes a 5% escalation rate based on burial cost increases from 1996 to the present. Since the NRC data shows significant jumps and has no data for some years, we believe that it demonstrates the uncertainty of the costs, but does not provide a good basis for estimation. Therefore, we will not adopt the utilities' 10% escalation rate. Likewise, ORA has not demonstrated that the recorded burial costs increases from 1996 to the present provide a better basis for estimation than the NRC data. Therefore, we will not adopt ORA's 5% escalation rate. As pointed out by PG&E, it is uncertain where the wastes will be buried, and at what cost. Burial costs are no less certain now than they were when the Commission adopted a 7.5% escalation rate for PG&E in D.00-02-046. Therefore, since no participant has demonstrated that its estimate is more accurate than the other estimates, it is reasonable to continue using the previously approved rate. This rate also happens to be the midpoint of the rates recommended by the participants.

-19-

l

Ę

C. LLRW Burial Costs

· LLRW burial costs are the costs of burying the LLRW generated by the decommissioning of a nuclear power plant. PG&E estimates LLRW burial costs of \$404 per cubic foot.⁸

PG&E points out that, in D.00-02-046, the Commission adopted LLRW burial costs at the Ward Valley site of \$509 per cubic foot in 1997 dollars. Because there is no indication that Ward Valley will ever be available during the times it will be needed, PG&E based its estimate on the costs of the only facility in America to which it can send more-contaminated LLRW, at Barnwell, South Carolina. Even though Barnwell is going to stop accepting wastes from non-Atlantic Compact generators such as PG&E, SCE, and SDG&E, PG&E believes Barnwell's costs are appropriate because they include all of the costs a future disposal facility (such as Ward Valley is intended to be) would likely bill a generator. Given the complete uncertainty over where these wastes will eventually go, and how much it will cost once that place is identified and operational, PG&E believes its \$404 per cubic foot estimate is optimistic.

The utilities' burial cost estimate is \$72.60 per cubic foot for SONGS 2&3. This estimate is based on the assumed availability of a licensed

⁸ In PG&E's application and exhibits, it used LLRW burial costs of \$404 per cubic foot for Diablo Canyon. For Humboldt 2015 decommissioning, it used \$450 per cubic foot. For Humboldt early decommissioning, it used \$140 per cubic foot for Class A LLRW and \$450 per cubic foot for the more hazardous classes of LLRW. This yields an average LLRW burial cost of \$147 per cubic foot for Humboldt early decommissioning. In its briefs, PG&E presented its recommendation as \$404 per cubic foot without distinguishing between Diablo Canyon and Humboldt. Therefore, we address only PG&E's \$404 per cubic foot recommendation herein.

disposal facility with rates comparable to the Envirocare facility, and located within 1,500 miles of the SONGS site.

SCE's LLRW burial cost estimate for Palo Verde is \$87 per cubic foot. SCE says its estimate is consistent with APS'⁹ assumptions about the burial sites that APS will use for Palo Verde LLRW.

ORA recommends that the Commission adopt the utilities' current LLRW burial cost estimate of \$72.60 per cubic foot. ORA claims that PG&E derives its \$404 estimate from recent cost increases at Barnwell and other facilities. ORA believes that PG&E's methodology is faulty because it ignores the likely availability of alternative facilities. ORA argues that the utilities' \$72.60 per cubic foot estimate reflects their current burial cost for all classes of LLRW. ORA does not oppose the utilities' estimated LLRW burial costs for Palo Verde.

Discussion

Ç

In D.00-02-046, we adopted burial costs of \$509 per cubic foot (in 1997 dollars). In this proceeding, the participants have recommended costs ranging from \$76.20 to \$404 per cubic foot. Therefore, it appears that the participants agree that the costs should be lower. However, they disagree on how much lower they should be.

Only PG&E and SCE actually prepared LLRW burial cost estimates. SDG&E and ORA recommend use of SCE's estimate. In addition, we have no reason to believe that there will be sufficient alternative burial sites available to lower costs due to competition, as recommended by ORA. Therefore, we are left with PG&E and SCE's estimates.

⁹ The Arizona Public Service Company (APS) is the operating agent for Palo Verde.

Although both PG&E and SCE's estimates are based on actual costs, neither estimate has been demonstrated to be substantially better than the other. This circumstance argues for using a cost of \$240 per cubic foot, the midpoint of the range of the proposed values. However, since SCE has done a more comprehensive analysis of decommissioning costs, especially for SONGS 2&3, we will give slightly more weight to its estimates. As a result, we will adopt a LLRW burial cost of \$200 per cubic foot. This amount is a bit more than twice SCE's estimates, slightly less than half of PG&E's \$406 estimate for Diablo Canyon, more than PG&E's original estimate for Humboldt early decommissioning, and substantially less than the cost adopted in D.00-02-046.

D. Contingency Factors

ţ

Ę

The contingency factor is used to increase the estimated decommissioning costs to allow for uncertainties in the required decommissioning work and, therefore, the costs. PG&E recommends an overall contingency factor of 40% for Diablo Canyon. It also proposes an overall contingency factor of 40% for Humboldt for 2015 decommissioning, and 30% for early decommissioning. In contrast, ORA recommends that the Commission adopt the engineering contingency factors estimated for PG&E by TLG Services, Inc. (TLG) for Diablo Canyon and Humboldt, as the overall contingency factors.

The decommissioning cost studies, performed by TLG for PG&E, identified engineering contingency factors of 18.83% for Diablo Canyon Unit 1, 17.95% for Diablo Canyon Unit 2, and 18.54% for early decommissioning, and 21% for 2015 decommissioning of Humboldt. PG&E proposes an overall contingency factor of 40% for Diablo Canyon to take into account the engineering contingencies addressed by TLG, as well as other non-engineering contingencies such as costs associated with delays in approval of decommissioning plans,

- 22 -

Ć

changes in the project work scope, regulatory changes and policy decisions at the state or federal level which change the scope, timeframe or level of work required for decommissioning.¹⁰ Similarly, it also proposes an overall contingency factor of 40% for Humboldt for 2015 decommissioning, and 30% for early decommissioning.

PG&E notes that for Palo Verde, a plant more like Diablo Canyon and whose decommissioning cost study was prepared by the same consultant that prepared PG&E's decommissioning cost studies, SCE is recommending a contingency factor of 40%. PG&E argues that SCE was able to reduce its contingency factor to 21% for SONGS 2&3 by making specific new estimates of costs that were previously undefined and assumed to be within the 40% contingency. Therefore, PG&E believes SCE did not eliminate its contingencies, but made individual estimates for many elements previously considered under contingency.

PG&E argues that the 40% contingency factor should be reduced only as it gets closer to the time that the actual work will be performed and costs become more certain, or as the components of potential contingencies are identified and separately estimated, as appears to be the case with SONGS 2&3. This is the reason it is recommending a 30% contingency factor for Humboldt early decommissioning.

ORA recommends that the Commission adopt TLG's estimated contingency factors. ORA says that TLG applied individual activity contingency

¹⁰ Engineering contingencies include such things as weather related delays and costs, personnel turnover, adverse working conditions, unrecorded construction modifications, previously undetected radioactive contamination, etc.

factors of 10% to 75% to arrive at its estimates, as opposed to PG&E's 30% or 40% overall contingency factor. ORA argues that Diablo Canyon and SONGS 2&3 are roughly of the same vintage, and the utilities have been able to reduce the SONGS 2&3 contingency factor from 40% to 21%. ORA asserts that a reduction in the contingency factor is appropriate because of developments in industry-wide experience.

Discussion

(

PG&E's overall contingency factors for Diablo Canyon, and Humboldt, accommodate engineering, financial, regulatory, and industry uncertainties in the initial cost estimate. The contingency factors estimated by TLG for PG&E address only engineering contingencies. Because the TLG contingency factors do not address all of these contingencies, we will not adopt ORA's recommendation of 17.95% to 21% overall contingency factors for these units.

We note that SCE has utilized its decommissioning experience and knowledge to refine its estimate for SONGS 2&3.¹¹ These refinements led to a reduction in uncertainty, and therefore, a reduction in the overall contingency factor to 21%. PG&E has access to much of the same industry information as SCE. We expect that PG&E availed itself of this information and experience to produce its decommissioning cost estimates. This suggests that a contingency factor lower than 40% is appropriate. SONGS 2&3 and Diablo Canyon are estimated to begin decommissioning at about the same time. This too suggests a lower contingency factor. PG&E's estimate has not been refined to the same level as the Utilities' estimate for SONGS 2&3. As a result, the uncertainty in

¹¹ The estimate was developed by SCE, but used by both SCE and SDG&E.

ί

PG&E's estimate has not been reduced to the same degree for Diablo Canyon. Therefore, the 21% contingency factor used for SONGS 2&3 would be inappropriate for Diablo Canyon.

For the above reasons, we believe that PG&E's proposed overall contingency factor of 40% for Diablo Canyon is too high. The range of proposed contingency factors is 17.95% to 40%. Were we to give equal weight to PG&E and ORA's recommendations, we would adopt the midpoint of the range of 29%. However, ORA's proposed use of the engineering contingency factors estimated by TLG as the overall contingency factor does not address all of the contingencies the contingency factor is intended to cover. Therefore, we will give greater weight to PG&E's estimate. As a result, we will adopt a 35% overall contingency factor for Diablo Canyon.

As to Humboldt, we note that PG&E's request is based on early decommissioning for which it has reduced its contingency factor to 30%. Here too, PG&E has access to much of the same industry information as SCE. We expect that PG&E availed itself of this information and experience to produce its decommissioning cost estimates. In addition, with early decommissioning of Humboldt scheduled to start in 2006, we expect there to be substantially less uncertainty than for Diablo Canyon or Palo Verde, since they will all begin decommissioning much later. Therefore, a lesser contingency factor is appropriate. As to SONGS 2&3, they also will begin decommissioning much later than Humboldt. This tends to support a contingency factor closer to the 21% contingency factor used for SONGS 2&3. PG&E's estimate has not been refined to the same level as the utilities' estimate for SONGS 2&3. As a result, the uncertainty in PG&E's estimate has not been reduced to the same degree for

- 25 -

Humboldt. Therefore, the 21% contingency factor used for SONGS 2&3 would be inappropriate for Humboldt.

For the above reasons, we believe that PG&E's proposed overall contingency factor of 30% for Humboldt early decommissioning is too high. The range of proposed contingency factors is 18.54% to 30%. Were we to give equal weight to PG&E and ORA's recommendations, we would adopt the midpoint of the range of 24%. However, ORA's proposed use of the engineering contingency factors estimated by TLG as the overall contingency factor does not address all of the contingencies the contingency factor is intended to cover. Therefore, we will give slightly greater weight to PG&E's estimate. As a result, we will adopt a 25% contingency factor for Humboldt.

VI. Conclusion

As discussed above, we have adopted the following modifications to PG&E's calculation of the decommissioning cost revenue requirements:

- A 24% turnover rate for equities in the qualified trusts.
- A 29% turnover rate for equities in the non-qualified trusts.
- A 10.5% pre-tax return on equities.
- A 6.0% pre-tax return on fixed assets.
- Escalation rates, except for LLRW burial costs, based on the most recent DRI forecasts in the record, using weighted averages, and no separate contingency factor.
- A 7.5% escalation rate for LLRW burial costs.
- LLRW burial costs of \$200 per cubic foot.

(

ſ

 Contingency factors of 35% for Diablo Canyon, and 25% for Humboldt.

Based on the above modifications to the decommissioning cost calculation for Diablo Canyon, we find that its decommissioning trusts are fully funded. Therefore, we will not authorize a revenue requirement for Diablo Canyon decommissioning. Based on the above modifications to the decommissioning cost calculation for Humboldt, we adopt an annual revenue requirement of \$18.450 million for Humboldt decommissioning for 2003. We also adopt an annual revenue requirement for Humboldt SAFESTOR O&M of \$8.254 Million. This results in an overall annual revenue requirement of \$26.704 million.

In addition to the above, we find that PG&E's \$0.95 million expenditure for Humboldt decommissioning costs incurred above the \$15.7 million authorized in Resolution E-3503 was reasonable, and PG&E should be allowed to use Humboldt decommissioning trust funds to pay for them. We also find that the \$3.5 million and \$3.85 million Humboldt decommissioning projects authorized in Resolution E-3737 should be reviewed for reasonableness in the next NDCTP, after they have been completed.

This decision should be effective immediately.

VII. Rate Proposal

PG&E proposes to implement the revenue requirement authorized in this proceeding on an equal cents per kilowatt-hour basis, consistent with D.00-06-034. ORA does not object to this proposal. D.00-06-034 requires that nuclear decommissioning costs be allocated on an equal cents per kilowatt-hour basis. Therefore, we will require PG&E to implement the revenue requirement adopted herein on an equal cents per kilowatt-hour basis.

- 27 -

VIII. Procedural Matters

ł

In Resolution ALJ 176-3085, dated April 4, 2002, the Commission preliminarily categorized this application as ratesetting, and preliminarily determined that hearings were necessary. Hearings were held on September 16 and 17, 2002.

IX. Comments on Proposed Decision

The proposed decision of the ALJ in this matter was mailed to the parties in accordance with Pub. Util. Code § 311(d) and Rule 77.1 of the Rules of Practice and Procedure. Comments were filed by PG&E, ORA and the Surfrider Foundation. All comments were considered. PG&E raises a few points that should be addressed.

After this matter was submitted, the Commission approved an offset to the nuclear decommissioning revenue requirement of approximately \$10 million (Resolution E-3823). PG&E asks that the offset, and the revenue requirement change adopted herein, be implemented in Investigation (I.) 02-04-026. We expect to be addressing PG&E's revenue requirement in I.02-04-026, the Commission's investigation into PG&E's bankruptcy. Therefore, we will address implementation of the revenue requirements adopted herein, and in Resolution E-3823, in I.02-04-026.

PG&E will need to request a revised Schedule of Ruling Amounts from the federal Internal Revenue Service (IRS) in order to implement this decision. To facilitate obtaining a favorable ruling from the IRS, PG&E asks that tables showing the results of operations, assumptions, and fund disbursements adopted herein be included in this decision. The request is reasonable, and we will grant it. The tables are included as Attachment A.

X. Assignment of Proceeding

Geoffrey F. Brown is the Assigned Commissioner and Jeffrey P. O'Donnell is the assigned Administrative Law Judge in this proceeding.

Findings of Fact

í

Ĺ

ĺ

1. Early decommissioning of Humboldt is less costly than decommissioning starting in 2015.

2. The decommissioning cost studies upon which PG&E's estimates for Diablo Canyon and Humboldt are based are unopposed except for contingency factors, escalation rates, rates of return, and LLRW burial cost estimates.

3. PG&E's request for authority to recover \$8.254 Million in Humboldt SAFESTOR O&M is unopposed.

4. PG&E's request to adjust the SAFESTOR O&M administrative, general, tax, and allocated common plant amounts in the calculation of decommissioning cost revenue requirements in its 2003 general rate case is unopposed.

5. PG&E's request for attrition for the SAFESTOR O&M for 2004 and 2005 is unopposed.

 PG&E has already commenced early decommissioning activities at Humboldt.

7. In Resolution E-3503, the Commission authorized PG&E to spend \$15.7 million on three decommissioning projects, and found it reasonable to use the decommissioning trust funds to finance them.

8. In Resolution E-3737, the Commission found it reasonable to use the decommissioning trust funds to finance three proposed projects. The \$3.5 million and \$3.85 million projects were approved subject to review of the requested expenditures in this proceeding. The request for approval of the \$0.95 million project was denied until reviewed in this proceeding.

í

ł,

ţ

9. PG&E's request to use the Humboldt decommissioning trusts to pay for the \$0.95 million project is unopposed.

10. The \$3.5 million and \$3.85 million projects have not been completed.

11. For 1999 through 2002, PG&E's annual equity turnover rate ranged from 18% to 27% for qualified trusts, with an average of 24%. For 2000 through 2002, its annual equity turnover rate ranged from 18% to 49% for non-qualified trusts with an average of 29%.

12. PG&E has given us no reason to believe that future equity turnover rates will be substantially different from recorded turnover rates.

13. In D.00-02-046, the Commission adopted a forecast of an 11% pre-tax return on equities, and a 7% pre-tax return on the fixed income portion of PG&E's trusts.

14. No participant has indicated specifically how differences in decommissioning trust portfolios, and investment committee risk tolerances are incorporated into its rate of return estimates.

15. The three utilities' trusts will have access to the same equities markets, with the same investment opportunities.

16. While there is merit in using long-term historical data for estimating rates of return, selection of which data to use can give quite different results.

17. The DRI forecasts, which SDG&E and SCE use in different ways, yield much lower returns than the historical data used by PG&E and ORA.

18. No participant has demonstrated that its estimate of pre-tax returns on equities is better than the other participant's estimates.

19. Since the midpoint of the pre-tax returns on equities recommended by the participants is lower than the 11% pre-tax return on equities adopted in D.00-02-046, a reduction in the pre-tax return on equities is appropriate.

20. A 10.5% pre-tax return on equities is slightly above the midpoint of the range of values proposed by the participants.

21. No participant has demonstrated that its estimate of pre-tax returns on fixed assets is better than the other participant's estimates.

22. Since the midpoint of the pre-tax returns on fixed assets recommended by the participants is lower than the 7% pre-tax return on fixed assets adopted in D.00-02-046, a reduction in the pre-tax return on fixed assets is appropriate.

23. A 6.0% pre-tax return on fixed assets is slightly above the midpoint of the range of values proposed by the participants.

24. The Commission adopted a 7.5% LLRW burial cost escalation rate for PG&E in D.00-02-046.

25. The NRC data shows rapidly increasing LLRW burial costs followed by large, discrete jumps.

26. The utilities did not include a separate contingency factor in their calculation of escalation rates.

27. Since PG&E's unweighted calculation of escalation rates gives a 20% weighting to each of the five escalation categories, while the equipment and materials category accounts for 29%, and the "other" category accounts for 6% of actual expenditures, PG&E's use of a simple unweighted average is inaccurate.

28. The participants agree that a DRI forecast should be used in forecasting escalation rates, except for LLRW burial cost escalation.

29. ORA's DRI forecasts are the most recent in the record.

i

30. When using DRI forecasts to estimate escalation rates, use of the value for the last forecasted year for subsequent unforecasted years gives additional weight to the last forecasted year.

31. There is no reason that the DRI forecast for the last forecasted year is any better than the forecast for other years.

32. The Commission adopts contingency factors for cost estimates when the work to be done, and the requirements that must be met to do the work, may change substantially over time.

33. The escalation rate is an estimate of the rate of change in the cost of specified work.

34. The Commission routinely adopts forecasts of cost increases, in general rate cases for example, without applying contingency factors.

35. Since the risk of substantial changes in the work to be done and the requirements that must be met to do the work is covered by the contingency factor applied to the decommissioning cost estimate, there is no reason to apply a separate contingency factor to the calculation of the escalation rate.

36. The NRC LLRW burial cost data shows significant jumps, and has no data for some years.

37. ORA has not demonstrated that its recorded LLRW burial cost increases from 1996 to the present provide a better basis for estimation than the NRC data used by the utilities.

38. It is uncertain where the LLRW will be buried, and at what cost.

39. LLRW burial costs are no less certain now than they were when the Commission adopted a 7.5% LLRW burial cost escalation rate for PG&E in D.00-02-046.

40. No participant has demonstrated that its LLRW burial cost estimate is more accurate than the other participants' estimates.

41. The midpoint of the range of LLRW burial cost escalation rates proposed by the participants is 7.5%.

ŧ

42. The facility at Barnwell, South Carolina, upon which PG&E's LLRW burial cost estimate is based, is going to stop accepting wastes from non-Atlantic Compact generators such as PG&E, SCE, and SDG&E.

43. The midpoint of the range of LLRW disposal costs proposed by the parties is \$240 per cubic foot.

44. The utilities have done a more comprehensive analysis of decommissioning costs, especially for SONGS 2&3, than PG&E.

45. The decommissioning cost study for Palo Verde was prepared by the same consultant that prepared PG&E's decommissioning cost studies.

46. PG&E's contingency factors for Diablo Canyon and Humboldt accommodate engineering, financial, regulatory, and industry uncertainties in the initial cost estimate, while the TLG contingency factor addresses only engineering uncertainties.

47. SCE has utilized its decommissioning experience and knowledge to reduce the contingency factor to 21% for SONGS 2&3.

48. PG&E has access to much of the same industry information as SCE.

49. PG&E availed itself of industry information and experience to produce its decommissioning cost estimates.

50. The fact that SONGS 2&3 are estimated to begin decommissioning in 2022, and Diablo Canyon is estimated to begin decommissioning in 2021-2025, suggests the use of a contingency factor for Diablo Canyon of less than 40%.

51. PG&E's Diablo Canyon decommissioning cost estimate has not been refined to the level of the utilities' estimate for SONGS 2&3.

52. PG&E's 30% contingency factor for Humboldt is based on early decommissioning.

(

53. With early decommissioning of Humboldt scheduled to start in 2006, there should be substantially less uncertainty than for Diablo Canyon or Palo Verde, since they will all begin decommissioning much later.

54. Since SONGS 2&3 will begin decommissioning much later than Humboldt, a contingency factor closer to 21% is appropriate.

55. Since decommissioning planning for Humboldt has not been done to the same level of detail as for SONGS 2&3, use of a 21% contingency factor for Humboldt would be inappropriate.

56. PG&E's proposal to implement the revenue requirement adopted herein on an equal cents per kilowatt-hour basis is unopposed.

Conclusions of Law

1. PG&E's recommended early decommissioning of Humboldt should be adopted.

2. PG&E's request for authority to recover \$8.254 Million in Humboldt O&M should be granted.

3. PG&E's request for authority to adjust the administrative, general, tax, and allocated common plant amounts in the calculation of Humboldt O&M expenses in its 2003 general rate case should be granted.

4. PG&E's request for attrition for SAFESTOR O&M for 2004 and 2005 should be granted.

5. The \$0.95 million expenditure for Humboldt decommissioning costs incurred above the \$15.7 million authorized in Resolution E-5303 was reasonable, and PG&E should be allowed to recover the costs from the trusts.

6. The \$3.5 million and \$3.85 million projects authorized in Resolution E-3737 should be reviewed for reasonableness in the next NDCTP, after they have been completed.

Ĺ

7. The Commission should adopt a 24% turnover rate for equities in the qualified trusts, and 29% for equities in the non-qualified trusts. For any year in which a higher amount of equities will need to be sold to pay for decommissioning costs, the higher amount should be used.

8. The Commission should adopt a uniform set of rate of return projections for all PG&E, SCE, and SDG&E.

9. D.99-06-007 approved a settlement and, therefore, is not a precedent.

10. The Commission should adopt a 10.5% pre-tax return on equities.

11. The Commission should adopt a 6.0% pre-tax return on fixed assets.

12. Since PG&E's actual expenditures do not support use of a simple average in determining escalation rates, and the utilities use a weighted average, the Commission should require the use of a weighted average.

13. Although forecasts of the future are speculative by nature, it makes sense to use the most recent available forecasts in estimating escalation rates.

14. The Commission should adopt the DRI forecasts used by ORA, which are the most recent DRI forecasts in the record, for use in determining escalation rates.

15. When using DRI forecasts for estimating escalation rates, the average rate for the forecast period should be used for the subsequent unforecasted years.

16. The Commission should not adopt a separate contingency factor for escalation rates where one is already applied to the decommissioning cost estimate.

17. NRC LLRW burial cost data does not provide a good basis for estimating LLRW burial cost escalation.

18. The Commission should adopt a 7.5% escalation rate for LLRW burial costs.

19. Future LLRW burial costs are uncertain at best.

20. PG&E's estimate of LLRW burial costs is no better than the estimates prepared by the utilities.

21. Actual LLRW burial costs will lie within the range of estimates proposed by the participants.

22. The Commission should adopt a LLRW burial cost estimate of \$200 per cubic foot.

23. The Commission should adopt a 35% contingency factor for Diablo Canyon.

24. The Commission should adopt a 25% contingency factor for Humboldt.

25. Since PG&E's decommissioning trusts for Diablo Canyon are sufficient to cover the estimated decommissioning costs, no revenue requirement should be authorized for Diablo Canyon decommissioning.

26. The Commission should authorize annual revenue requirements of \$18.450 million for Humboldt decommissioning, and \$8.254 million for Humboldt SAFSTOR O&M.

27. This decision should be effective immediately.

28. D.00-06-034 requires that decommissioning costs be allocated on an equal cents per kilowatt-hour basis.

29. The revenue requirement adopted herein should be implemented on an equal cents per kilowatt-hour basis.

30. Implementation of the revenue requirement changes adopted herein, and in Resolution E-3823, should be addressed in I.02-04-026.

ORDER

IT IS ORDERED that:

1. Annual revenue requirements of \$18.450 million for decommissioning Humboldt Bay Power Plant Unit 3 (Humboldt), and \$8.254 million for Humboldt SAFSTOR operations and maintenance expenses are adopted for 2003.

2. No revenue requirement is authorized for decommissioning Diablo Canyon Nuclear Power Plant Units 1 and 2.

3. Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) shall implement the revenue requirements adopted herein on an equal cents per kilowatt-hour basis.

4. Implementation of the revenue requirement changes adopted herein, and in Resolution E-3823, shall be addressed in Investigation 02-04-026.

5. PG&E's request for attrition for its SAFESTOR O&M expenses in the amounts of \$218,000 for 2004, and \$230,000 for 2005 is granted.

6. PG&E's request for authority to adjust the administrative, general, tax, and allocated common plant amounts in the calculation of Humboldt SAFESTOR operation and maintenance expenses in its 2003 general rate case is granted. The amount of any such adjustment shall be determined therein.

7. The \$0.95 million expenditure for Humboldt decommissioning incurred above the \$15.7 million authorized in Resolution E-5303 is reasonable, and PG&E is authorized to recover the costs from the Humboldt decommissioning trusts.

8. The \$3.5 million and \$3.85 million Humboldt decommissioning projects authorized in Resolution E-3737 shall be reviewed for reasonableness in the next nuclear decommissioning cost triennial proceeding, after they have been completed.

9. This proceeding is closed.

This order is effective today.

Dated October 2, 2003, at San Francisco, California.

MICHAEL R. PEEVEY President GEOFFREY F. BROWN SUSAN P. KENNEDY Commissioners

I dissent.

ĺ

/s/ CARL W. WOOD Commissioner

I reserve the right to file a dissent.

/s/ LORETTA M. LYNCH Commissioner

D0310014 Attachment A

í

!

ATTACHMENT A

•1

Tables

for

:

Internal Revenue Service

Revised Schedule of Ruling Amounts

Ć

í

ł

ATTACHMENT A

.

•1

Pacific Gas and Electric Company Electric Department Results of Operations at Proposed Rates Humboldt Nuclear Decommissioning Services Year 2004, 2005 (Thousands of Dollars)

REVENUE: (A) (B) 1 Revenue at Effective Rates 32,738 19 32,757 1 2 Less Non-General Revenue 0 0 0 2 3 3 General Rate Case Revenue 32,738 19 32,757 3 3 General Rate Case Revenue 32,738 19 32,757 3 4 Energy Costs 0 0 0 4 5 5 Other Production 0 0 0 6 6 7 Transmission 0 0 0 0 8 9 Customer Accounts 0 0 0 110 10 11 Customer Accounts 0 0 0 12 14 12 Administrative and General 0 0 0 110 10 12 Administrative and General 0 0 0 12 13 13 Franchise Requitements	Line No.	Description	CPUC	FERC	Total	Line No.
REVENUE: 1 Revenue at Effective Rates 32,738 19 32,757 1 2 Less Non-General Revenue 0 0 0 0 2 3 General Rate Case Revenue 32,738 19 32,757 3 OPERATING EXPENSES: 0 0 0 0 4 5 Other Production 0 0 0 5 6 Storage 0 0 0 6 7 Transmission 0 0 0 6 9 Customer Accounts 0 0 0 7 110 0 110 0 110 0 110 12 Admistrative and General 207 0 207 13 14 Protect Amortization 0 0 0 14 15 Wage Change Impacts 0 0 0 11 14 Protect Amortization 0 0 0 11			(A)	(B)		
3 General Rate Case Revenue 32,735 19 32,757 3 OPERATING EXPENSES: 6 0 0 0 0 4 4 Energy Costs 0 0 0 0 4 5 Other Production 0 0 0 0 6 6 Storage 0 0 0 0 6 7 Transmission 0 0 0 0 6 7 Bisitibution 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 Uncodectibles 110 0 110 0 110 10 11 Distribution 0 0 0 0 0 111 2 Administrative and General 0 0 0 0 111 2 Administrative and General 0 0 0 111 11 2 Adage Change Impacts 0 0 0 117	1 2	REVENUE: Revenue at Effective Rates Less Non-General Revenue	32,738 0	19 0	32,757 0	1 2
OPERATING EXPENSES: 4 Energy Costs 0 0 0 4 5 Other Production 0 0 0 6 7 Transmission 0 0 0 6 7 Transmission 0 0 0 6 9 Customer Accounts 0 0 0 10 11 Customer Accounts 0 0 0 110 10 11 Customer Services 0 0 0 112 116 10 110 10 12 Admistrative and General 0 0 0 12 13 Franchise Requirements 207 0 207 13 14 Project Amortization 0 0 0 15 16 Criter Adjustments 0 0 0 17 18 Subtotal Expenses: 317 0 317 18 17 18 17 18 17 13	3	General Rate Case Revenue	32,738	19	32,757	3
5 Subage Transmission 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 10 10 10 11 11 Customer Accounts 0 0 0 0 0 11 10 0 0 0 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	458	OPERATING EXPENSES: Energy Costs Other Production	0	0	0	45
8 Distribution 0 0 0 0 0 9 9 Customer Accounts 10 0 0 0 9 110 0 110 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	7	Transmission	0	ő	0	7
10 Uncodectibles 110 0 110 0 110 10 0 111 12 Administrative and General 0 0 0 111 12 Administrative and General 0 0 0 111 13 Franchise Requirements 207 0 207 13 14 Project Amortization 0 0 0 14 15 Wage Change Impacts 0 0 0 15 16 Other Adjustments 0 0 0 17 18 Subtral Expenses: 317 0 317 18 17 Other Adjustments 0 0 0 17 18 Subtral Expenses: 317 0 317 18 19 Superfund 0 0 0 20 20 Property 0 0 0 22 21 Payroll 0 0 0 22 22 Other 1,833 (0) 1,833 24	8 9	Distribution Customer Accounts	• 0 0	0	0	8 9
11 Obstative SetWise 0 0 0 0 11 12 Administrative and General 0 0 0 12 13 Franchise Requirements 207 0 207 13 14 Project Amortization 0 0 0 14 14 Project Amortization 0 0 0 14 14 Project Amortization 0 0 0 14 15 Wage Change Impacts 0 0 0 15 16 Other Adjustments 0 0 0 17 18 Subtotal Expenses: 317 0 317 18 TAXES: 11 0 0 0 20 17 18 Subtotal Expenses: 317 0 0 20 21 20 Proporty 0 0 0 22 22 21 Payroll 0 0 0 22 23 0 0 0 22 23 24 State Corporation Franchis	10	Uncollectibles	110	0	110	10
15 Wage Change Impacts 0 0 0 0 15 16 Other Price Change Impacts 0 0 0 0 16 17 Other Adjustments 0 0 0 17 18 Subtotal Expenses: 317 0 317 18 17 18 TAXES: 0 0 0 0 0 19 19 Superfund 0 0 0 20 21 Payroll 0 0 0 21 22 Dether 0 0 0 22 23 Other 0 0 0 23 24 State Corporation Franchise 1,833 (0) 1,833 24 25 Federal Income 7,258 (0) 7,258 25 25 Total Taxes 9,091 20 23,473 19 23,432 29 20 Total Operating Expenses 32,881 20 32,901 30 31 Net for Return (144) <td< td=""><td>12 13 14</td><td>Administrative and General Franchise Requirements Project Amortization</td><td>0 207 0</td><td>000</td><td>0 207 0</td><td>12 13 14</td></td<>	12 13 14	Administrative and General Franchise Requirements Project Amortization	0 207 0	000	0 207 0	12 13 14
18 Subtotal Expenses: 317 0 317 18 TAXES: 0 0 0 0 19 9 Superfund 0 0 0 20 21 Payroll 0 0 0 21 22 Business 0 0 0 22 23 Other 0 0 0 22 24 State Corporation Franchise 1,833 (0) 1,833 24 25 Federal Income 7,258 (0) 7,258 25 25 Total Taxes 9,091 (0) 9,091 28 27 Depresistion 0 0 0 27 25 Fossit Decommissioning 0 0 0 28 27 Depresistion 0 0 0 23 28 Total Taxes 32,881 20 32,901 30 30 Tutal Operating Expenses 32,881 20 32,901 30 31 Net for Return (1,474)	15 16 17	Wage Change Impacts Other Price Change Impacts Other Adjustments	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	15 16 17
TAXES: 0 0 0 19 19 Superfund 0 0 0 19 20 Proporty 0 0 0 20 21 Payroll 0 0 0 22 23 Other 0 0 0 23 24 State Corporation Franchise 1,833 (0) 1,833 24 25 Federal Income 7,258 (0) 7,258 25 25 Total Taxes 9,091 (0) 9,091 26 27 Depresistion 0 0 0 27 25 Fossil Decommissioning 0 0 0 28 27 Depresistion 0 0 0 28 28 Nuclear Decommissioning 23,473 19 23,492 29 30 Tutal Operating Expenses 32,881 20 32,901 30 31 Net for Return (144) (0) (144) 31 32 Rate Base (1,574) (1)	18	Subtotal Expenses:	317	. 0	317	18
19 Superfund 0 0 0 19 20 Proporty 0 0 0 0 20 21 Payroll 0 0 0 21 22 Business 0 0 0 22 23 Other 0 0 0 22 24 State Corporation Franchise 1,833 (0) 1,833 24 25 Federal Income 7,258 (0) 7,258 25 25 Total Taxes 9,091 (0) 9,091 26 27 Depreciation 0 0 0 27 25 Fossil Decommissioning 0 0 0 27 26 Total Taxes 9,091 20 0 23 27 Depreciation 0 0 0 27 28 Fossil Decommissioning 23,473 19 23,492 29 30 Total Operating Expenses 32,881 20 32,901 30 31 Net for Return		TAXES:				
23 Other 0 0 0 23 24 State Corporation Franchise 1,833 (0) 1,833 24 25 Federal Income 7,258 (0) 7,258 25 25 Total Taxes 9,091 (0) 9,091 26 27 Depreciation 0 0 0 27 25 Fossil Decommissioning 0 0 0 27 26 Total Taxes 9,091 (0) 9,091 26 27 Depreciation 0 0 0 27 28 Fossil Decommissioning 0 0 0 28 29 Nuclear Decommissioning 23,473 19 23,492 29 30 Total Operating Expenses 32,881 20 32,901 30 31 Net for Return (144) (0) (144) 31 32 Rate Base (1,574) (1) (1,575) 32 33 On Rate Base 9,12% 9,12% 33 34	19 20 21 22	Superfund Property Payroll Businees	0 0 0	0000	0000	19 20 21 22
24 State Corporation Franchise 1,833 (0) 1,833 24 25 Federal Income 7,258 (0) 7,258 25 25 Total Taxes 9,091 (0) 9,091 26 27 Decomposition 0 0 0 27 27 Decomposition 0 0 0 27 28 Fossil Decommissioning 0 0 0 27 29 Nuclear Decommissioning 0 0 0 28 20 Total Operating Expenses 32,881 20 32,901 30 31 Net for Return (144) (0) (144) 31 32 Rate Base (1,574) (1) (1,575) 32 33 On Rate Base 9,12% 9,12% 33 34 34 On Equity 11,22% 11,22% 34	23	Other	Ö	ŏ	ŏ	23
25 Total Taxes 9,091 (0) 9,091 28 27 Decompliation 0 0 0 27 28 Foisst Decommissioning 0 0 0 27 29 Nuclear Decommissioning 23,473 19 23,492 29 30 Total Operating Expenses 32,881 20 32,901 30 31 Net for Return (144) (0) (144) 31 32 Rate Base (1,574) (1) (1,575) 32 RATE OF RETURN: 9,12% 9,12% 9,12% 33 34 33 On Rate Base 9,12% 9,12% 34 34	24 25	State Corporation Franchise Federal Income	1,833 7,258	(0) (0)	1,833 7,258	24 25
27 Depresistion 0 0 0 27 28 Fossil Decommissioning 0 0 0 28 29 Nuclear Decommissioning 23,473 19 23,492 29 30 Total Operating Expenses 32,881 20 32,901 30 31 Net for Return (144) (0) (144) 31 32 Rate Base (1,574) (1) (1,575) 32 33 On Rate Base 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 33 34 On Equity 11.22% 11.22% 34	28	Total Taxes	9,091	(0)	9,091	28
30 Total Operating Expenses 32,881 20 32,901 30 31 Net for Return (144) (0) (144) 31 32 Rate Base (1,574) (1) (1,575) 32 RATE OF RETURN: 0n Rate Base 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 33 33 On Equity 11.22% 11.22% 34	27 28 29	Depreciation Fossil Decommissioning Nuclear Decommissioning	0 0 23,473	0 0 - 19	. 0 0 23,492	27 28 29
31 Net for Return (144) (0) (144) 31 32 Rate Base (1,574) (1) (1,575) 32 RATE OF RETURN: On Rate Base On Equity 33 On Rate Base On Equity 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 33	30	Tutal Operating Expenses	32,881	20	32,901	30
32 Rate Base (1,574) (1) (1,575) 32 RATE OF RETURN: 33 On Rate Base 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 23 34 On Equity 11.22% 11.22% 34	31	Net for Return	(144)	(0)	(144)	31
BATE OF RETURN: 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12% 9.12%	32	Rate Base	(1,574)	(1)	(1,575)	32
	33 34	RATE OF RETURN: On Rate Base On Equity	9.12% 11 <u>.22</u> %	9.12% 11.22%	0.12% 11.22%	33 34

NOTES

Line 32 - From Effects on Working Capital CPUC Julisticitional factor of JSS9175

- 1 -

ATTACHMENT A

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY TABLE 5-2 Nuclear Decommissioning Expense Adopted Escalation Rates (percentage change)

		POLE		Contract	Punial		Weigtwid Aversige Fersition	
Line No.	Yexer	Laiser	Malorias	Labor	Costs	Other	Raiz	Line No.
	**************************************	15	(C)		{ð}.	0)		20222000000000000000000000000000000000
	Y COM	21.60%	10.42%	ZAXEN	Z2.53%	10.25%		
1	2002	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	C.C.3	1
2	2003	2.90	1.09	3.79	7.50	. 2.39	4.11	2
3	2004	3.00	1,30	3.77	7.50	234	4.14	3
4	2005	2.90	1.40	3.71	7.50	2.38	4.12	4
5	2006	3.10	1.50	3.75	7.50	251	4.21	5
6	2007	3.20	1.55	3.79	7.50	2.65	4.27	-6
7	2008	3.30	1.62	3.89	7.50	2.74	4.34	7
8	2009	3.40	1.54	-4.00 -	7.50	2.80	4.38	· 8
9	2010	3.B0	1.57	4.09	7.50	2.85	4.45	9
10	2011	3.B0	1.64	4.20	7.50	2.92	4.54	10
11	2012	4.00	1.58	4.26	7.50	2.96	4.80	11
12	2013	4.10	1.61	4.16	7.50	2.96	4.60	12
13	2014	4.40	1.65	4.12	7.50	3.00	4.67	13 •
14	2015	4.50	1.70	4.11	7.50	3.03	4.70	14
15	2016	4.70	1.77	4.14	7.50	3.10	4.77	15
16	2017	4.70	1.91	4.32	7.50	'325	4.85	16
17	2018	4.70	2.07	4.54	7.50	3.51	4.96	17
18	2019	4.60	2.21	4.54	7.50	3.72	5.00	18
19	2020	4.70	2.38	4,89	7.50	3.97	5.15	19
20	2021	4,50	2.47	5.10	7.50	4.21	5.21	20
21	2022	4.60	2.59	5.26	7.50	4.38	5.21	21
22	2023	· 4,40	2.74	5.34	7.50	4.49	5.32	22
23	2024	3.62	1.65	3.91	7.50	2.88	4.44	23
24	2025	3.62	1.65	3.91	7_50	2.88	4.44	24
25	2026	3.62	1.65	3.91	7.50	2.88	4.44.10,	25
26	2027	3.62	1.65	3.91	7.50	2.88	4.44	26
21	2028	3.62	1.85	3.91	7.50	2.88	4,44	27
28	2029	3.62	1.85	3.91	7.50	2,88	5.44	25
29	2030	3.62	1.65	3.81	7.50	2.83	. 5,44	29
30	2031	3.62	1.05	3.81	7.50	2.65	4.44	30
31	2002	3.62	1.05	3.91	7.50	213	4.44	31
32	2003	3.62	1.65	3.91	750	2.63	4.44	32
33	2034	3.62	1.85	3.91	7.50	2.53		33
34	2035	3.62	1,05	3.87	7.50	2.63	2.44	34
		2.522	1,000	2.91	7.50	2123	4.44	25
30	2037	3.62	1.05	3.91	7.50	2.83	Z, E4 -	36
31	2020	3.62	1 85	2.81	7.50	2.03	6.64 	3/
30 20	2038	3,02	1.05	3.81 201	7,50	203	4,44 4,11	3×
38	2040	3.02	1.00	3.81	7,20	2.55	6,44 * 4,44	38
44	2041	3.64	1,00	2.61	لانتدار	2.03	4.44	40
41							4.55	4]
12			•	mittered availa		w yours	9.33	42
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~								43

Notes:

ł

(a) Forecast for POLE labor provided by DFIPMERA.

(b) Contract labor rates are based on the DRI/WEFA forecast of labor escalation rates for , , contract construction.

(c) Material rates are derived by taking a simple average of escalation rates of six industrial materials relevant to nuclear decommissioning activities. The forecasts for these indexes is provided by DRIWEFA.

2 -

:

•.

(d) Other is brand on DRIWEPA's forecast of the Consumer Price Index (CPI-U).

(e) The DRI/WEFA forecast extends to 2023, Escalation rates after 2023 are held constant at the the 2002-2023 average level forecast.

(I) Weights are based on relative expenditures of Humboldt Decommissioning

•.

#### PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY Table 5-5 Humboldt Bay Power Plant, Unit 3 Nuciear Decommissioning Costs Adopted Assumptions for Analysis

#### Line No. Type of Association

ι ω ι

1	Propaged method of decommissioning		Ś	AFSTOR/DECON IN 2006
			Thre	e partial decommissioning
2	Vaar is which substantial docommissionis	n coste first will be loov med	dieme	projects in 1997-1999;
2	Year is which substantial docommissioner	g costs inst will be incurred	disina	invernent to begin in 2000.
۵ ۸	Total Cost of decompletioning (\$2002)	g win be substantially completes		2009
-	Total Cost of decomplealeding (\$2002)	minet		\$309,223,158
5	Lorat coar of neoorthilligelound (\$intere to	(Intral)		\$377,118,379
	For each year between 2 and 3 above, the	annual cost of		
6	dacommissioning (\$future nominal)			see Table 5-6
7	After-lax annualized rate of return	Qualified Trust		Non-Qualified Trust
		2003 through 2004 - 6.69%	2	003 through 2004 - 5.97%
		2005 - 6.50%		2005 - 5 63%
		2006 - 5.88%		2008 - 4 82%
		2007 - 5.33%		2007 - 4 22%
		2008 - 4.85%		2007 - 4.2275
		2009 - 4.46%		2000 - 3,7378
		2010 through 2015 - 4,16%	2	010 through 2015 - 2.28%
8	Period over which decommissioning costs	will be included in cost of service	Colobar 2, 2002 th	
9	Projected amount to be included in cost of	service	2002	lough December 31, 2005
			2003	\$5,873,107
10	Date on which plant will no longer be inclu	dad in raia hasa	2004-2005	\$23,492,427
11	Frequency of deposit in external fund			N/A
12	Protected fund balance on January 1, 200	3		Variable
	trajector fand balance on varidaly 1, 200			\$177,880,000

A.02-03-020 /ALJ/JP0/sid

#### PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY TABLE 5-6 Humboldt Bay Power Plant Unit 3 Nuclear Decommissioning Costa

#### Adopted Cash Flow Analysis Includes Construction of Dry Casil Storage Facility, Decommissioning to begin in 2006 (in Millione of Dollars)

			Hext year		Next year	10 4 NO 1			Funde fr.		(cirroreste)	i vordozor	Unotation				NO TOUR FICE	t	
	Yexe	Quie Frond	Decents estat	Mar Quet	13.com : : : : : :	YE YATE	CA.4203.0009	Qualified	NQ & TAX	Non-Quel	Yes.	č.69 G.534.	Co & Co	201000	Oursetting	************	: Benestokie	sussesses.	Nemosasy
		12 Dal . Rotain da.	¢.	72 355 Definie + .	**2	States and	(# 12) #255 sent	Warewei	54/1798	Warwel	C233272	.13×81	ENTATION OF	(XE YX3	C3948559.	Roman	(4366A D)	18.1 29201X	: Azexte
•	Uc vy si		······		*********								مننهند مندو متمير	****	*****			~	
	12/3:/2883	28.43		\$5.74													Excess/(Short	feli):	0.0
																	Inflation rate		1
	3002	\$235	1.149-55	\$5.82	\$ \$5.9?	177.3	22	0.0	0.0	0.0	3.0	0 00	0.00	0.00			92.2	85.7	177.9
	\$ 83.5	\$8.3	1.0530	\$Q.\$	1 (063)	1697	33.	0.0	1.9	0.8	3.9	0.00	0.00	5.67	2.94	2.94	101.3	<b>93 O</b>	194.3
	200	147.3	. 5.03¥8.	82.2	3 2445.	2035	. 56.2.	00	36.6	21.7	14%	0.00	-0.03	23.49	11.75	11.76	119.0	<b>88.3</b>	207.9
	2565	169-2	1 55933	\$2.\$	1.0402	212.1	\$% S	0.0	85.6	36.8	2:17	0.00	-0.64	23,49	11.75	11.75	138.4	64 8	203.2
•	2006	. 145.8	( 23:00 )	\$7.5	1.02.55	213.3	78.0:	0.0	78.8	46.8	<b>3</b> 0.6	-0.36	-1.20	0.00			145.4	198	165.2
~	3:37:2	1627	2.0022	\$3.0	10.01	373.6	77.2	42.4	34.0	20.5	14,5	-1.09	0.00	0.00			1090	0.0	109 0
-	3026	1173	2:0418	2\$	1 6253	185	- 72.	76.4	0.0	0.0	20	-0.88	0.00	0.00			37.5	0.0	37.5
1	293.3	: 231	.3.5418		3.033	23.5	35.9	15.9	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00			23.1	• 0.0	23.1
	2010	24.1	1.0410	0.0	1.0338	24.1	4,0	40	0.0	0.0	3.9	0.00	0.00	0.00			20.1	0.0	20.1
	2011	20.0	1.0410	0.0	1.0338	20.0	42	4.2	0.0	0.0	39	0.00	0.00	0.00			16.7	0.0	18.7
	2012	17.4	1.0410	0.0	1.0330	10.4	4.4	4.4	0.0	0.0	**	0.00	0.00	000			120	00	12.9
	2013	97	1.0416	0.0	1.0006	13.0	4.7	4.7	0.0	0.0	2.2	0.00	0.00	0.00				0.0	86
	2015	4.8	1 0414	0.0	1.0000	4 1	4.5		0.0	0.0	2.2	0.00	0.00	0.00			43	0.0	4.3
	2016	0.0	1 0414	0.0	1.0004			4.0	0.0	0.0	0.2	000	0.00	0.00			0.0	00	0.0
	2017	0.0	1.0418		1 0338	0.0	, 0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	99 29	0.00	0.00	000			00	0.0	00
	2018	0.0	1 0418		1.0000	0.0	0.0				24	0.00	0.00	0.00			0.0	00	00
	2019	0.0	1.0418	0.0	1 0134	00	0.0	00	0.0	0.0	2.3	0.00	0.00	0.00			0.0	00	. 00
	2020	0.0	1 0416	0.0	1 0338	00	• 0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	8.0	0.00	0.00	0.00			00	00	. 00
	2021	00	1.0418	0.0	1 0334	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	4.0	0.00	- 0.00	0.00			0.0	00	. 0.0
	2022	0.0	1 0416	0.0	1.0000	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	<b>2</b> 2	000	0.00	0.00			00	0.0	0.0
	2023	0.0	1.0418	0.0	1 0334	0.0	0.0	00	0.0	00	28	000	0.00	0.00			00	00	00
				•.•	1,0300	0.0	0.0	0.0	00	0.0	90	0.00	0.00	0.00			00	00	00
		1				1													
	Total						377.1												
	I Dallada faul										•						1		

* Reflects Equidated value of actual account balances

"To calculate the kitol revenue requirement, the non-qualified trust contribution must be adjusted for tex to derive the revenue amount collected from relepsyors.

۰.

Note: Q+Qualified Fund, NQ-Non-Qualified Fund, AT ROR-After Tax Rate of Return

Before I/- = Before Adding or Subtracting Fund Return or Decommissioning Costs Incurred During that Period, YE=Year End

2

ATTACHMENT

. 🏊